
Notice of Public Meeting 

CONCHO VALLEY TRANSIT DISTRICT 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Wednesday, May 11, 2022 at 2:45 p.m. 
Concho Valley Council of Governments 

5430 Link Rd., San Angelo, Texas 76904 and via Teleconference

 
 

Join By Zoom Teleconference - https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89643825560 
*Meeting ID: 896 4382 5560  *Passcode: 390289

 833 548 0276 US Toll-free 833 548 0282 US Toll-free 
       877 853 5247 US Toll-free 888 788 0099 US Toll-free 

BUSINESS 

1. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM AND CALL TO ORDER

2. INVOCATION & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. PUBLIC COMMENT

4. APPROVAL of the Minutes from the April 13, 2022 Meeting.

5. APPROVAL OF CHECKS in excess of $2,000 for March 2022.

6. REVIEW of the Balance Sheet and Financial Report for March 2022.

7. CONSIDERATION & APPROVAL for the Executive Director to purchase fixed route and
demand response vehicles for CVTD fleet in an amount not to exceed $1,975,000.

8. CONSIDERATION & APPROVAL for the Executive Director to purchase a UTV in an
amount not to exceed $30,000.

9. REVIEW & APPROVAL of the 2021 Concho Valley Regional Coordination Transportation
Plan.

10. REPORT from the Director of Transportation ± Jeff York.

The meeting place is accessible to persons with disabilities.  If assistance is needed to observe or 
comment, please call the CVCOG office at 325-944-9666 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/89643825560


Notice of Public Meeting -  Pg. 2 

11. OTHER discussion items or future agenda items.

12. ADJOURNMENT

******************** 
Posted in accordance with the Texas Government Code, Title V, Chapter 551, Section .053 this  5th 

day of May, 2022. 

_____________________________________________ 
Erin M. Hernandez, Assistant Executive Director 



BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING MINUTES 
Wednesday, April 13, 2022 

The Concho Valley Transit District Board of Directors met on Wednesday, April 13, 2022 at 
2:45 p.m. at 5430 Link Rd., San Angelo, Texas 76904 and via Zoom Teleconference.   

Members present were:  
Harry Thomas, Vice-Chairman, COSA Council Member, District 3 
Charlie Bradley, Schleicher County Judge  
Brandon Corbin, Menard County Judge  
Molly Criner, Irion County Judge  
Fred Deaton, Crockett County Judge  
David Dillard, Concho County Judge 
Lucy Gonzales, COSA Council Member District 4 
Deborah Horwood, Sterling City Judge 
-LP�2¶%U\DQ, Reagan County Judge 
Hal Spain, Coke County Judge  
Larry Miller, COSA Council Member District 6 
Delbert Roberts, Kimble County Judge 

Members absent were: 
Steve Floyd, Chairman Tom Green County Judge 
Rachel Duran, Sutton County Judge 
Frank Trull, McCulloch County Judge 

BUSINESS 
Vice-chair, Councilman Harry Thomas, announced the presence of a quorum and called the 
meeting to order at 3:00 p.m.  

Councilman Harry Thomas gave the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

There was no public comment. 

APPROVAL of the Minutes 
Judge David Dillard made a motion to approve the Meeting Minutes from March 23, 2022. Judge 
Delbert Roberts seconded the motion.  No questions or discussion.  The motion passed 
unanimously.  

APPROVAL of Checks 
Audrey Aguirre, Finance Manager, presented the checks in excess of $2,000 written for February 
2022.  Judge David Dillard made a motion to approve the checks as presented.  Judge Deborah 
Horwood seconded the motion.  No questions or discussion.  The motion passed unanimously.  



REVIEW of Balance Sheet and Finance Report 
Audrey Aguirre, Finance Manager, presented the Balance Sheet and Finance Report for February 
2022.  She reported that everything is pretty normal and there is nothing out of the ordinary to 
report this month.  There is no action to take, as this is an informational item only.   
 
APPROVAL for the Executive Director to purchase bollards for the CVT Depot not to 
exceed $100,000. 
Jaylon Seales, Regional Coordinator/Grant Administrator, is seeking approval for the Executive 
Director to purchase bollards for the CVT Depot not to exceed $100,000. Judge Charlie Bradley 
made a motion to approve the request as presented.  Judge Molly Criner seconded the motion.  No 
questions or discussion.  The motion passed unanimously.  
 
DIRECTOR REPORT  
Jeff York, Director of Transportation, gave an update on the maintenance facility.  They had a 
space planning meeting with the A/E firm and it went really well.  They are still in the process of 
their operational study and just awaiting some additional data. Jeff York spoke about the upcoming 
job fair that will be happening in light of the recent wage increases for drivers.  Mr. York then 
JDYH�KLV�GLUHFWRU¶V�report in which he touched on urban and rural ridership, on time performance, 
fixed route trends, and paratransit services.  Mr. York UHSRUWHG�RQ�&97¶V�VDIHW\�PHWULFV, accidents 
and upcoming safety meeting topics. He gave mention to their regional coordination efforts 
throughout the region. There is no action to take, as this is an informational item only.   
 
ADJOURNMENT 
There being no other items to discuss, Judge Charlie Bradley made a motion to adjourn the 
meeting.  Judge David Dillard seconded the motion. Motion passed unanimously. Councilman 
Harry Thomas adjourned the meeting at 3:11 p.m.  
 
 
 

 
Duly adopted at the meeting of the Concho Valley Transit District Board of the Concho Valley 
Council of Governments on this 11th day of May 2022.  
 
 
 
__________________________________  ________________________________ 
Judge Steve Floyd, Chairman    Councilman Harry Thomas, Vice-Chair 



CVTD
Check/Voucher Register

From 3/1/2022 Through 3/31/2022

Number
Document 

Date
Document 

Name Transaction Description Document Am...

2359623596 3/3/2022 JC Roberts Construction Co., Inc. CVT: applctin & certfctn fr wrk dn @Link Rd 12/1/21-12/31/21 116,589.40 
2359723597 3/3/2022 Ready Maids Link; janitorial cleaning 11,666.67 
2360223602 3/9/2022 ENGINE PRO MACHINE LLC CVT; 1516 PM A, rear bre jb, R&R prkng brk shoe, lft rear br 2,237.20 

3/9/2022 ENGINE PRO MACHINE LLC CVT; 1868 PM A, R&R drve sd emrgncy wndw ltch, strng shk,trs 3,366.79 
3/9/2022 ENGINE PRO MACHINE LLC CVT; 1870 PM oil change C, tre rplcmnts, mont, blnc & dspsl 2,512.35 

2360823608 3/15/2022 ENGINE PRO MACHINE LLC CVT; 1309 PM A, rr brk jb, R&R prkng brk &brk clpr, tr rplmt 2,220.52 
2360923609 3/15/2022 Imperial Electrical Contracting LLC Link; retro fit outdr lghtng, 11 pl lghts & 14 wll pck lgts 6,324.71 

3/15/2022 Imperial Electrical Contracting LLC Link; dplx rcptcls in ftnss rm, wtng rm, rm 5140 & hllwy 2,103.62 
2361023610 3/15/2022 INTREPID ELECTRIC, INC Link; covert flurscnt fxtrs to LED, dsps, wll pcks w/LED 2,296.49 
2361523615 3/22/2022 ENGINE PRO MACHINE LLC CVT; 1710 PM D, rear brk jb, R&R prkng brks, fnt rgh clpr&hs 4,998.63 
2361923619 3/22/2022 Remix Technologies LLC CVT; Remix planning & scheduling license 09/01/21 - 08/31/22 27,000.00 
2362123621 3/22/2022 WEX BANK CVT; February fuel bill 01/24/22 - 02/23/22 14,914.34 
2362923629 3/29/2022 CITY OF SAN ANGELO-ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE CVT: February 2022 Fuel bill 02/01/22 - 02/28/22 20,465.49 

Report Total 216,696.21 

Date: 4/21/22 01:13:10 PM Page: 1



CVTD 
Balance Sheet 

As of3/31/2022 

Current Period Balance 

Assets 
First Financial Transit District Bank Acct 757,938.87 1115 

First Financial ICB Bank Acct 13,358.82 1119 

Petty Cash 150.00 1198 

FT AffxDOT Urban AR 153,119.00 1241 

TxDOTRural 540,888.00 1242 

TxDOT ED-5310-Mobility Mngt 19,953.00 1251 

TXOOT ARP-2202(07)107_21 60,580.00 1267 

US Dept of Commerce-EDA 108,632.80 1270 

TXDOT Rural CARES ACT 13,988.00 1276 

RCTP-2020-CVTD-00016 28,045.56 1279 

Account Receivable-AMR 11,899.90 1300 

Accounts Receivable - SafeRide 24,724.04 1306 

West Texas Counseling and Guidance 350.00 1381 

Workforce Solutions (Arbor ED 30.00 1382 

Sutton County 3,141.33 1384 

Angelo State University 6,834.68 1387 
CV Area Agency on Aging 2,377.50 1389 

CV Foster Grandparent 102.00 1390 

Accounts Receivable-Genera] 18,858.46 1391 

StafTTravel Advance 398.25 1392 

CV Senior Companion 146.00 1393 

CV Economic Development District 15,400.00 1394 

Bus Passes Receivable 1,980.00 1396 

Other Assets - Project Equipment 4,038,939.03 1811 

Other Assets - Land Chadbourne 353,098.80 1812 

Other Assets - Building Chadbourne 4,598,264.83 1813 

Other Assets - Land Link Road 396,000.00 1814 

Other Assets - Building Link Road 1,804,000.00 1815 

Total Assets 12,973,198.87 

Liabilities 

AP 65,840.23 2111 
AP Owed to CVCOG 405,608.13 2112 

Unearned Revenue - County Membership Dues 175,908.27 2917 

Unearned Revenue-AMR 14,503.84 2919 

Unearned Revenue- Bus Passes 2,010.00 2920 
Total Liabilities 663,870.47 

Fund Balance 
Unassigned General Fund 1,093,454.20 3101 
Investment - Capital Assets 11,190,302.66 3110 
Restricted - Insurance Payments 9 718.13 3603 

Total Fund Balance 12,293,474.99 

Excess Revenue over Expenditures 15,853.41 

Total Liabilities and Fund Balance 12 973 198.87 

Page: I 



4143 
4148 
4151 
4249 
4250 
4251 
4282 
4284 
4299 
4329 
4332 
4334 
4412 
4521 
4522 
4523 
4524 
4525 
4526 
4712 
4756 
4757 
4758 
4759 
4760 
4762 
4763 
4764 
4916 

5110 
5118 
5150 
5151 
5172 
5173 
5174 
5175 
5176 
5177 
5181 
5199 
5203 
5204 
5206 
5207 
5208 
5210 
5217 
5218 

CVTD 
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures 

From 9/1/2021 Through 3/31/2022 

Current Period Actual 

Revenue 
US Dept Commerce-EDA 108,632.80 
FTA TX-2020 CFDA 20.507 440,176.00 
FTA TX-2021-100-00, CFDA 20.507 605,876.00 
TXDOT RCTP-2020-CVTD-00016 22,448.56 
TXDOT 5311-2021-CVTD-024 CFDA 20.509 439,256.00 
TXDOT ARP 2202(07)107_21 CFDA 20.509 60,580.00 
TXDOT 5311-2020-CVTD CFDA 20.509 73,483.00 
TxDOT 5310-ED-Mobility Mngt, CFDA 20.513 79,480.00 
TXDOT Rural CARES ACT 110,256.00 
TXDOT State R-2020 149,625.00 
TXDOT State R-2021 280,951.00 
TXDOT State-U-2021 310,370.00 
Transportation Toll Credits 7,877.00 
Organization Program Income 4,657.00 
Program Income 50,608.00 
Local Revenue 165,467.69 
Greyhound Lines Pass-Thru 30,328.15 
Transit Charter Fees 11,613.75 
Building Lease 1,375.00 
TML Insurance Payment 26,935.67 
Revenue County Cash Match 110,997.22 
SafeRide Medical Transportation 158,874.88 
COSA Funds 427,003.97 
AMR Medical Transportation 83,143.69 
CVEDD Vendor Contract 160,409.00 
FGP Vendor Contract 858.00 
Transp Aging Vendor Cont 7,320.00 
SCP Vendor Contract 590.00 
Facility Management Allocation 86 352.15 

Total Revenue 4 015 545.53 

Expenditures 
General Wages 479,799.04 
General Overtime Wages 2,239.16 
Vacation Time Allocation 89,841.98 
Medicare Tax 17,635.26 
Workers Comp Insurance 44,812.80 
SUTA 2,218.04 
Health Insurance Benefit 298,212.64 
Dental Insurance Benefit 11,395.86 
Life Insurance Benefits 8,593.83 
HSA Insurance Benefit 7,404.34 
Retirement 148,899.94 
Management and Administration Indirect 119,635.22 
Uniforms 659.21 
Greyhound Pass•Thru 29,218.15 
HR Service Center 51,682.76 
Procurement Service Center 96,413.53 
Information Technology Service Center 77,772.80 
Driver Wages 672,689.14 
Dispatch/Customer Service Wages 72,153.15 
Driver Overtime Wages 40,112.95 

Date: 5/4/22 01:01:54 PM Page: I 



5219 
5222 
5291 
5309 
5310 
5351 
5352 
5361 
5363 
5365 
5366 
5414 
5431 
5451 
5452 
5510 
5516 
5520 
5622 
5623 
5629 
5632 
5711 
5712 
5713 
5714 
5721 
5723 
5736 
5737 
5738 
5753 
5754 
5762 
5791 
5792 
5793 
5796 
5810 
5811 
5814 
5831 
5851 
5861 
5876 
6999 

CVTD 
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures 

From 9/1/2021 Through 3/31/2022 

Current Period Actual 

Dispatch/Customer Service Overtime Wages 599.98 
Driver Double Time 775.16 
Contract Services 32,753.89 
Travel-In Region 53.89 
Travel-Out of Region 3,293.22 
Fuel 211,552.06 
Lubricant, Oil, Other Fluids(except Fuel) 8,315.79 
Vehicle Maintenance 169,164.18 
Tires 22,928.64 
Bus Stop Maintenance 137.65 
Non-Vehicle Maintenance 1,250.15 
Shop & Yard Space 120,000.00 
Utilities 15,812.40 
Facility Maintenance 55,983.05 
Capital Facility Improvements 19,000.00 
Supplies 16,773.08 
Supplies - Bus/Service Vehicles 11,309.44 
Parts Supplies 5,755.67 
Computers/Software 14,091.11 
Capital Equipment 75,916.83 
Tools 4,997.01 
Copier 498.53 
Insurance 59,582.69 
Communications - Bus 116,090.47 
Cell Phones 1,196.33 
Internet 109.20 
Printing 3,373.86 
Publications 6,639.15 
Capital Construction 626,280.76 
Capita] Construction Planning 3,001.66 
Capital Construction Administration 1,125.00 
Dues and fees 7,779.87 
Vehicle Registration 126.00 
Postage/freight 527.39 
Other 5,558.72 
Coffee Expense 390.98 
Physicals 1,195.00 
Safety 2,654.22 
Multi-Modal Supplies 12,431.74 
Multi-Modal Insurance 7,582.37 
Multi-Modal Internet 8,489.43 
Multi-Modal Utilities 13,161.40 
Multi-Modal Building Maintenance 48,508.96 
Multi-Modal Communications 3,584.32 
Shop ChristovaJ Rd Utilities 74.07 
Transportation Toll Credits 7 877.00 

Total Expenditures 3 999 692.12 

Excess Revenue over Expenditures 15 853.41 

Date: 5/4/22 0l:0l:S4 PM Page: 2 



CVTD 
Expenditure Journal 

From 9/1/2021 Through 3/3 l /2022 

Grant General Ledger Account Payable 
Code Grant Title Expenditures Expenditures Total 

010 !CB Program 46,768.80 0.00 46,768.80 
013 TML Insurance Repairs 0.00 16,127.00 16,127.00 
018 Extended Medical Transp Program 15,885.11 0.00 15,885.11 
019 Grant 019, Link Road Facility Operations 1,983.95 4,831.28 6,815.23 
020 Grant 020, US Dept Commerce Facility 0.00 135,791.00 135,791.00 
021 Grant 021, 911 Agreement Link Road 108,800.00 0.00 108,800.00 
023 Grant 023, Transit Construction Link Road (82,335.20) 530,582.06 448,246.86 
800 Grant 800, CVTD Urban CARES ACT (42,418.00) 42,418.00 0.00 
813 Grant 813, CVTD Urban FY 20-21 (9,879.26) 13,263.91 3,384.65 
814 Grant 814, CVTD Rural FY 20-21 (7,650.20) 8,889.36 1,239.16 
817 Grant 817, RCTP-2020-CVTD-00016 19,424.77 3,024.67 22,449.44 
823 Grant 823, Mobility Urban 5310-2019-074 9,898.53 0.00 9,898.53 
824 Grant 824, Mobility Rural 5310-2019-074 1,066.96 0.00 1,066.96 
825 CVTD Rural CARES 2021-00026 3,573.10 106,687.32 110,260.42 
LOI Program LOI, Link Road Facility Feb to Sept 2022 24,400.02 61,952.13 86,352.15 
MO! Grant MO!, Mobility Urban 5310-2021-0027 36,395.59 4,770.00 41,165.59 
M02 Grant M02, Mobility Rural 5310-2021-0027 28,721.02 4,770.00 33,491.02 
ROI Grant RO I, CVTD Rural FY 21-22 733,440.71 230,913.91 964,354.62 
ROZ Grant ROZ, ARP 2202(07) I 07 _ 21 29,042.87 31,537.97 60,580.84 
U0I Grant U0I, CVTD Urban FY 21-22 1,357,954.35 529,060.39 1,887,014.74 

Report Total 2,275,073.12 1,724,619.00 3,999,692.12 

Page: I 



CVTD 
Recondle Cash Accounts 

Summary 

cash Account: 1115 First Finandal Transit District Bank Acct 
Reconciliation ID: Reconciliation March 2022 
Recondlialion Data: 3/31/2022 
Status: Open 

Bank Balance 

Less Outstanding Checks/Vouchers 

Plus Deposits In Transit 

Plus or Minus Other Cash Items 

Plus or Minus Suspense Items 

Reconciled Bank Balance 

Balance Per Bcoks 

Unreconciled Difference 

786,872.54 

28,933.67 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

757,938.87 

____ 7~5~7 938.87 

0.00 

Click the Next Page toolbar button to view details. 

Date: 4/6122 01:26!51 PM 
__ , 



CVTD 
Reconcile cash Accounts 

Detail 

cash Account: 1115 First Financial Transit District Bank Acct 
Reconclllation ID: Recondllatlon March 2022 
Reconclllatlon Date: 3/31/2022 
status:Open 

Outstanding Checks/Vouchers 

Document Number Document Date Document Description 

23459 12/14/2021 System Generated 
Check/Voucher 

23486 1/20/2022 System Generated 
Check/Voucher 

23607 3/15/2022 System Generated 
Check/Voucher 

23608 3/15/2022 System Generated 
Check/Voucher 

23622 3/22/2022 System Generated 
Oiec:k/Voucher 

23626 3/29/2022 System Generated 
Oiec:k/Voucher 

23627 3/29/2022 System Generated 
Check/Voucher 

23628 3/29/2022 System Generated 
Check/Voucher 

23629 3/29/2022 System Generated 
Check/Voucher 

23630 3/29/2022 System Generated 
Check/Voucher 

23631 3/29/2022 System Generated 
Oieck/Voucher 

23632 3/29/2022 System Generated 
Check/Voucher 

23633 3/29/2022 System Generated 
Oieck/Voucher 

outstanding Checks/Vouchers 

Date: 4/6/22 01:26:Sl PM 

Document Amount 

394.78 

139.32 

ISO.OD 

3,633.89 

7.00 

204.72 

1,199.25 

S9.20 

20,465.49 

S70.00 

1,998.00 

SO.OD 

62.02 

28,933.67 

Payee 

DOUCET PLUMBING, INC. 

Alpha Batteries Plus, LLC 

AVTOMATIC FIRE 
PROTECTION, INC. 
ENGINE PRO MACHINE LLC 

TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF 
PUBLIC SAFETY 
ANGELO AUTO GLASS 

AT&T MOBILITY 

QNTAS 

aTYOFSAN 
ANGELO-ACCOUNTS 
RECEIVABLE 
CONSTANCIO TIRE AND 
FLEET 
Motus Space Solutions LLC 

SAN ANGELO POLICE 
DEPARTMENT 
Unifirst Holding Inc 



CVTD 
Recondle Cash Accounts 

Detail 

Cash Account: 1115 First Flnanclal Transit District Bank Acct 
Recondllatlon ID: Reconclllatlon March 2022 
Recondllation Date: 3/31/2022 
Status: Open 

Cleared Chedal/Vouchers 

Document Number Document Date Document Desaiptioo Document Amount Payee 

23545 2/15/2022 System Generated 44.25 AUDREY AGUIRRE 
Check/Voucher 

23550 2/15/2022 System Generated 268.40 ONTAS 
Check/Voucher 

23558 2/15/2022 System Generated 89.48 REPUBLIC SERVICES #691 
Check/Voucher 

23565 2/22/2022 System Generated 809.82 Amazon capital Services, Inc. 
Check/Voucher 

23566 2/22/2022 System Generated 1,169.65 AT&T MOBILITY 
Check/Voucher 

23568 2/22/2022 System Generated 885.50 ATMOS ENERGY 
Check/Voucher 

23571 2/22/2022 System Generated 127.83 CINTAS 
Check/Voucher 

23576 2/22/2022 System Generated 2,381.21 LYTl(, INC 
Check/Voucher 

23577 2/22/2022 System Generated 580.00 Motus Space Solutions LLC 
Checlc/VOucher 

23578 2/22/2022 System Generated 279.05 O'REILLY'S AUTO PARTS, INC. 
Check/Voucher 

23581 2/22/2022 System Generated 71.39 REPUBLIC SERVICES #691 
Checlc/Voucher 

23583 2/22/2022 System Generated 1,985.32 Stand by Power support 
Check/Voucher Systems 

23584 2/22/2022 System Generated 8,895.51 TML INTERGOVERNMENTAL 
Check/Voucher RISK POOL 

23587 2/22/2022 System Generated 180.00 WEST TEXAS 
Check/Voucher REHABILITATION CENTER 

23588 3/3/2022 System Generated 159.00 ANGELO RO EXPRESS, LLC 
Check/Voucher 

23589 3/3/2022 System Generated 59.20 CINTAS 
Check/Voucher 

23590 3/3/2022 System Generated 235.00 CONSTANOO TIRE AND 
Check/Voucher FLEET 

23591 3/3/2022 System Generated 1,208.00 CORTESE FLAG & 
Check/Voucher SILKSCREEN 

23592 3/3/2022 System Generated 66.00 CTWP 
Check/Voucher 

23593 3/3/2022 System Generated 1,500.00 Diamond D Mechanical Inc 
O,ecl</Voucher 

23594 3/3/2022 System Generated 1,415.46 ENGINE PRO MACHINE LLC 
Check/Voucher 

23595 3/3/2022 System Generated 517.00 HOUSE OF CHEMICALS 
Check/Voucher 

23596 3/3/2022 System Generated 116,589.40 JC Roberts Construction Co., 
Check/Voucher Inc. 

23597 3/3/2022 System Generated 11,666.67 Ready Maids 
Check/Voucher 

23598 3/3/2022 System Generated 92.52 ncu ENERGY RETAILS 
Check/Voucher COMPANY LLC 

23599 3/3/2022 System Generated 517.25 l)(U ENERGY RETAILS 
Check/Voucher COMPANY LLC 

Dab!: ,4/6/22 01:26:51 PM 

_, 



CVTD 
Reconc:lle cash Accounts 

Detail 

cash Account: 1115 First Flnancial Transit District Bank Acct 
Reconcillatlon ID: Remnclilatlon March 2022 
Remncillatlon Date: 3/31/2022 
Status: Open 

Cleared Checks/Vouchers 

DooJment Number Document Date Document Description Document Amount Payee 

23600 3/3/2022 System Generated 160.00 WEST TEXAS FIRE 
Check/Voucher EXTINGUISHER INC 

23601 3/9/2022 System Generated 58.66 Amazon capital Services, Inc. 
Check/Voucher 

23602 3/9/2022 System Generated 11,627.66 ENGINE PRO MACHINE LLC 
Check/Voucher 

23603 3/9/2on System Generated 167.88 HOUSE OF CHEMICALS 
Check/Voucher 

23604 3/9/2022 System Generated 
Check/Voucher 

418.37 O'REILL Y'S AUTO PARTS, INC. 

23605 3/9/2022 System Generated 
Check/Voucher 

710.00 VG! Technology 

23606 3/15/2022 System Generated 651.80 ATMOS ENERGY 
Check/Voucher 

23609 3/15/2022 System Generated 9,6SS.62 Imperial Electrical Contracting 
Check/Voucher LLC 

23610 3/15/2022 System Generated 
Check/Voucher 

2,296.19 INTREPID ELECTRIC, INC 

23611 3/22/2022 System Generated 98S.31 ATMOS ENERGY 
Check/Voucher 

23612 3/22/2022 System Generated 250.00 Bowles Heating and Cooling, 
Check/Voucher INC 

23613 3/22/2022 System Generated 59.20 ONTAS 
Oleck/Voucher 

23614 3/22/2022 System Generated 940.00 CONSTANCIO TIRE AND 
Olecl</Voucher FLEET 

23615 3/22/2022 System Generated 6,622.27 ENGINE PRO MACHINE LLC 
Oleck/Voucher 

23616 3/22/2022 System Generated 197.47 FLORES TIRE & AUTO 
Check/Voucher 

23617 3/22/2022 System Generated 713.54 G&G AUTOMOTIVE 
Check/Voucher 

23618 3/22/2022 System Generated 50.04 HOUSE OF CHEMICALS 
Check/Voucher 

23619 3/22/2022 System Generated 27,000.00 Remix Technologies LLC 
Oleck/Voucher 

23620 3/22/2022 System Generated 447.56 REPUBLIC SERVICES #691 
Oleck/Voucher 

23621 3/22/2022 System Generated 14,914.34 WEX BANK 
Check/Voucher 

23623 3/22/2022 System Generated 569.06 lXU ENERGY RETAILS 
Check/Voucher COMPANY LLC 

23624 3/22/2022 System Generated 
Check/Voucher 

124.04 un,flrst Holding Inc 

23625 3/22/2022 System Generated 118.05 WEST TEXAS ARE 
Check/Voucher EXTINGUISHER INC 

Cleared Checks/Vouchers 230,530.27 

Date: 4/G{J.Z 01:26!51 PH ...... 



CYTD 
Reconcile cash Accounts 

Detall 

Cash Account: 1115 First Flnandal Transit District Bank Acct 
Reconcillatlon ID: Recondllatlon March 2022 
Reconcillatlon Date: 3/31/2022 
Status: Open 

Cleared Deposits 

Document Number Document Date Document Description Document Amount Deposit Number 

CRT12321096 3/1/2022 AMR EMSC022822 790.40 
CRT12321097 3/1/2022 Safe Ride 1,270.44 
CRT12321098 3/1/2022 Token Transit 265.00 
CRT12321101 3/1/2022 Bus Fares 3/1/2022 295.75 
CRT12321104 3/2/2022 Y. Jaramillo O,arter 3-2-22 312.50 
CRT12321109 3/2/2022 Bus Fares 3/2/2022 525.83 
CRT12321108 3/3/2022 AMR EMSC030222 174.20 
CRT12321114 3/3/2022 Bus Fares 3/3/2022 342.10 
CRT12321111 3/4/2022 FTA Payment 188,145.00 
CRT12321112 3/4/2022 FTA Payment 22,028.00 
CRT12321113 3/4/2022 sarende 6,522.41 
CRT12321117 3/4/2022 Bus Fares 3/4/2022 450.17 
CRT12321122 3/4/2022 Deposit Mar 4 2022 5,012.68 
CRT12321123 3/4/2022 CVCOG deposited to CVTO in 308.62 

error 
CRT12321120 3/7/2022 State Comptroller payment 10,194.00 

0722207 
CRT12321121 3/7/2022 State Comptroller payment 9,889.00 

0722205 
CRT12321127 3/7/2022 Bus Fares 3/7/2022 283.69 
CRT12321126 3/8/2022 Token Transit 185.00 
CRT12321129 3/8/2022 Bus Fares 3/8/2022 326.56 
CRT12321133 3/9/2022 Bus Fares 3/9/2022 341.17 
CRT12321135 3/10/2022 AMR EMSC 030922 4,489.25 
CRT12321146 3/11/2022 Safe Ride 6,400.06 
CRT12321147 3/11/2022 State Comptroller payment 121,476.00 

0760087 
CRT12321148 3/11/2022 Deposit Mar 11 2022 37,185.73 
CRT12321149 3/11/2022 Bus Fares 3/11/2022 439.88 
CRT12321156 3/14/2022 Bus Fares 3/14/2022 217.43 
CRT12321151 3/15/2022 AMR EMSC031422 3,690.10 
CRT12321154 3/1S/2022 Token Transit 144.00 
CRT12321158 3/15/2022 Catholic Outreach Passes 210.00 
CRT12321159 3/15/2022 Bus Fares 3/15/2022 417.36 
CRT12321161 3/15/2022 ASU Direct Deposit Ram Tram 11,292.08 
CRT12321163 3/16/2022 Bus Fares 3/16/2022 382.08 
CRT12321165 3/16/2022 West Texas Counseling & 27S.OO 

Guidance ck 014506 
CRTl2321166 3/16/2022 Lupe Reyes Deposit 875.00 

3/16/2022 
CRT12321167 3/17/2022 AMR EMSC 031622 4,124.35 
CRT12321169 3/17/2022 Bus Fares 3/17/2022 238.81 
CRT12321171 3/18/2022 Bus Fares 3/18/2022 305.52 
CRT12321174 3/18/2022 Deposit Mar 18 2022 16,229.18 
CRT12321170 3/21/2022 Safe Ride 80.68 
CRT12321179 3/21/2022 Bus Fares 3/21/2022 227.92 
CRT12321178 3/22/2022 Token Transit 78.00 
CRT12321183 3/22/2022 Bus Fares 3/22/2022 496.47 
CRTl2321188 3/23/2022 Bus Fares 3/23/2022 288.47 
CRTl2321190 3/23/2022 CVT Annex Rental 375.00 
CRT12321187 3/24/2022 FTA payment 104,442.00 
CRT12321199 3/24/2022 Bus Fares 3/24/2022 288.41 
Date: '4/6/22 01:2.6:51 PH -· 



CVTD 
Reconcile cash Accounts 

Detail 

Cash Account, 1115 First Financial Transit District Bank Acct 
Recondllation ID: Reconciliation March 2022 
Reconclllation Date: 3/31/2022 
Status:Open 

Cleared Deposits 

Document Number Document Date Document Description 

CRTl2321197 3/25/2022 SafeRide 
CRTl2321202 3/25/2022 Bus Fares 3/25/2022 
CRTl2321198 3/28/2022 DepoSit Mar 25 2022 
CRTl2321206 3/28/2022 Bus Fares 3/28/2022 
CRTl2321204 3/29/2022 AMR EMSC032822 
CRTl2321205 3/29/2022 Token Transit 
CRT12321208 3/29/2022 Bus Fares 3/29/2022 
CRT12321210 3/30/2022 Bus Fares 3/30/2022 
CRTl2321215 3/31/2022 Bus Fares 3/31/2022 

aeared Deposits 

Date: 4/6/22 01:26:51 PH 

Document Amount 

10,248.38 
234.67 

3,141.33 
387.87 
931.00 
208.00 
205.23 
537.65 
171.43 

578,396.86 

Deposit Number 



CVTD 
Reconcile cash Accounts 

Detail 

cash Account: 1115 First Financial Transit Dlsbict Bank Acct 
Reconciliation ID: Reconciliation March 2022 
Reconciliation Date: 3/31/2022 
Status:Open 

Cleared Other cash Items 

Document Number Document Date Document Description Document Amount 

JVT1232!171 3/17/2022 Bank adjustment for Bus Fare (0.25) 
depasit 

JVT12321184 3/22/2022 Record funds transferred to (271,554.56) 
CVCOG 

JVT12321206 3/30/2022 Bank adjustment for Bus Fare (0.25) 
depcsit 

Cleared other Cash Items (271,555.06) 

Dine: ~/6122 01:26:51 PM 



Summary 

cash Account: 1119 First Financial ICB Bank Acct 
Reconcillatlon ID: Recondliatlon March 2022 
Recondllatlon Date: 3/31/2022 
Status: Open 

Bank Balance 

Less outstanding ChecksNouchers 

Plus Depo~ts In Transit 

Plus or Minus Other Cash Items 

Plus or Minus Suspense Items 

Reconciled Bank Balance 

Balance Per Books 

Unreconciled Difference 

CVTD 
Reconcile Cash Accounts 

13,358.82 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

0.00 

13,358.82 

13 358.82 

0.00 

CIiek the Next Page toolbar button to view details, 

Dab!: 4/6122 ll:20:44AM 



Detail 

CVTD 
Reconcile cash Accounts 

cash Account: 1119 First Financial ICB Bank Acct 
Reconclllatlon ID: Reconciliation March 2022 
Reconciliation Date: 3/31/2022 
Status: Open 

Cleared Deposits 

Document Number Document Date Document Descnption Document Amount 

CRTl2321102 3/1/2022 Greyhound deposits 3/1/2022 840.00 
CRT1232!110 3/2/2022 Greyhound depos,ts 3/2/2022 366.00 
CRT12321116 3/3/2022 Greyttound deposits 3/3/2022 302.70 
CRT12321128 3/7/2022 Greyhound deposits 3/7/2022 125.00 
CRT12321130 3/8/2022 Greyhound deposits 3/8/2022 261.00 
CRTl2321134 3/9/2022 Greyhound deposits 3/9/2022 345.00 
CRTl2321150 3/11/2022 Greyhound deposits 1,004.00 

3/11/2022 
CRT12321157 3/14/2022 Greyhound deposits 271.00 

3/14/2022 
CRT12321152 3/15/2022 Record Greyhound Service 646.04 

Fee Payment 
CRT12321160 3/15/2022 Greyhound deposl 3/15/2022 438.00 
CRT12321168 3/17/2022 Greyhound deposits 143.00 

3/17/2022 
CRT12321172 3/18/2022 Greyhound deposits 192.00 

03/18/2022 
CRT1232!180 3/21/2022 Greyhound deposits 186.00 

3/21/2022 
CRT12321184 3/22/2022 Greyhound deposit 3/22/2022 70.00 
CRT12321189 3/23/2022 Greyhound deposits 286.00 

3/23/2022 
CRT12321200 3/24/2022 Greyhound deposit 3/24/2022 335.00 
CRT12321201 3/25/2022 Greyhound deposit 3/25/2022 227.96 
CRT12321207 3/28/2022 Greyhound deposit 3/28/2022 90.00 
CRT12321209 3/29/2022 Greyhound deposits 316.00 

3/29/2022 
CRT12321211 3/30/2022 Greyhound deposit 3/30/2022 184.00 

Cleared Deposits 6,628.70 

Deposit Number 

..,.,, 



CVTD 
Reconcile cash Accounts 

Detail 

Cash Acoount: 1119 First Financial ICB Bank Acct 
Reconclllatlon ID: Recondllatlon March 2022 
Reconciliation Date: 3/31/2022 
Status: Open 

Cleared other cash Items 

Document Number Document Date Document Description 

JVT12321103 3/8/2022 Bank adJustment for 
Greyhound depos,t 

JVT43031230 3/8/2022 Record Greyhound ACH for 
the week of 2-22 thru 
2-28-22 cont# 81530 

JVT43102488 3/10/2022 Record Greyhound ACH 3/1 • 
3/7/22 conf #00426 paid 
3-10-22 

JVT43031233 3/18/2022 Record Greyhound ACH for 
the week of 03/08 • 03/14/22 
cont# 81602 paid 3-18·22 

JVT43!02514 3/24/2022 Record Greyhound ACH 3/15 
• 3/21/22 cont #41372 

Oeared Other cash Items 

Date: 4/6/22. 11:20:44 AM 

Document Amount 

(0.01) 

(1,527.00) 

(1,054.70) 

(2,058.00) 

(591.00) 

(5,230.71) 



Concho Valley Transit District 
Balance Sheet Reconciliation 
March 31, 2022 

Petty Cash 
Account 1198 

Description 
Greyhound Box Petty Cash Added 7 /27 /18 
Fare Box Petty Cash Added 4/30/19 

Amount 
100.00 JVT42363399 

50.00 JVT11942499 

150.00 * 

*Funds for petty cash account is to remain at $150 at all times 
(Petty Cash box is reconciled every Monday. Reconciliation forms are scanned 
to the trans drive titled "petty cash safe logs") 



Concho Valley Transit District 
Balance Sheet Reconciliation 
March 31, 2022 

FTA/TxDOT Urban AR 
Account 1241 

Description 

Record FTA 2021-100 Mar-22 

Record U-State Jan-22 Billing 
Record U-State Feb-22 Billing 
Record U-State Mar-22 Billing 

Amount 

141,067.00 JVT43881039 

FTA 2021-100-01 Y446 141,067.00 

6,848.00 JVT43102469 
1,596.00 JVT43102513 
3,608.00 JVT43102570 

Total Urban State-2021-00082 _ _:lc:2:.c,0c:5.c:;2.;.:.o-'o_ 

Total 153,119.00 

Pd 5/2/22 

Pd 4/8/22 
Pd 4/14/22 



Concho Valley Transit District 
Balance Sheet Reconciliation 
March 31, 2022 

TXDOT Rural 
Account 1242 

Description 
Record 5311-2020 Dec-21 

Total State Federal - 5311-2020-CVTD-00067 

Record R-State-2020 Billing Dec-21 
Total Rural State-2020-CVTD-00197 

Record 5311-2021 Dec-21 
5311-2021 Rural Jan-22 
5311-2021 Rural Feb-22 
5311-2021 Rural Mar-22 

Total State Federal - 5311-2021-CVTD-00021 

Record R-State-2021 Billing Dec-21 
R-State 2021 Jan-22 
R-State 2021 Feb-22 
R-State 2021 Mar-22 

Total Rural State-2021-CVTD-00081 

Total 

Amount 
22,754.00 JVT43102380 Pd 4/11/22 

22,754.00 

2,727.00 JVT43102382 Pd 4/8/22 

2,727.00 

74,869.00 JVT43102381 Pd 4/8/22 

99,630.00 JVT43102456 

54,262.00 JVT43102503 

55,830.00 JVT43102571 

284,591.00 

57,884.00 JVT43102383 Pd 4/8/22 

86,881.00 JVT43102457 

43,566.00 JVT43102504 

42,485.00 JVT43102573 

230,816.00 

540,888.00 



Concho Valley Transit District 
Balance Sheet Reconciliation 
March 31, 2022 

Accounts Receivable, TXDOT Mobility 5310 
Account 1251 

Description 
Record Feb-22 U-Billing 
Record Feb-22 R-Billing 
Record Mar-22 U-Billing 
Record Mar-22 R-Billing 

Amount 
6,895.00 
3,242.00 
5,213.00 
4,603.00 

Total 5310-2021-00027 19,953.00 

JVT43102500 Pd 4/11/22 
JVT43102500 Pd 4/11/22 
JVT43102560 
JVT43102560 



Concho Valley Transit District 
Balance Sheet Reconciliation 
March 31, 2022 

Accounts Receivable, TXDOT ARP 5311 
Account 1267 

Description 
Record 5311-00079 ARP Billing Feb-22 
Record 5311-00079 ARP Billing Mar-22 

Total 5310-2021-ARP 

Amount 
11,925.00 JVT43102515 
48,655.00 JVT43102559 

60,580.00 



Concho Valley Transit District 
Balance Sheet Reconciliation 
March 31, 2022 

EDA Accounts Receivable, US Dept Commerce-EDA 
Account 1270 

Description 

Record EDA Billing 6 

Note: Waiting on final construction check list 

Amount 

108,632.80 JVT12283S16 

Tota I ==1;;;0;;8.;;,6~3;;;2 -~80;:, 



Concho Valley Transit District 
Balance Sheet Reconciliation 
March 31, 2022 

TXDOT Rural CARES ACT 
Account 1276 

Description 

Record 5311 CARES Billing Dec-21 
Record 5311 CARES Billing Feb-22 
Record 5311 CARES Billing Mar-22 

Amount 

11,331.00 JVT43102378 

910.00 JVT43102505 

1747.00 JVT43102S62 

Total State Federal - 5311-2021-00026 CARES 13,988.00 ---'---

Pd 4/8/22 

Pd 4/8/22 



Concho Valley Transit District 
Balance Sheet Reconciliation 
March 31, 2022 

TXDOT Regional Planning 
Account 1279 

Description 
Accrue RCTP Billing May-21 
Record Aug-21 Billing 
Record RCTP Billing Sept-21 
Accrue RCTP Billing YTD 

RCTP-2020-00016 

NOTE: bill accruals when the deliverables are met, see PGA. 

Amount 
2,348.00 JVT43031092 

3,249.00 JVT43102223 

2,958.00 JVT43031136 

19,490.56 JVT43102582 

28,045.56 



Concho Valley Transit District 
Balance Sheet Reconciliation 
March 31, 2022 

Accounts Receivable AMR Medical Transportation 
Account 1300 

Description 
Record AMR Inv # 10092021 
Record AMR Inv # 11212021 
Record AMR Inv #I 1302021 
Record AMR Inv #12042021 
Record AMR Inv #01222022 
Record AMR Inv #01312022 
Record AMR Inv #03122022 
Record AMR Inv #03192022 
Record AMR Inv #03262022 
Record AMR Inv #03312022 

Amount 
80.00 paid 4312.90 on 10/14/21, paid 20.00 on 10/26/21 

30.00 Paid 2,928.95 on 11/25/21, paid 154.30 on 12/14/21 

48.60 paid 731.35 on 12/2/21, paid 3.498.05 on 12/7/21 

60.00 Paid 2,136.35 on 12/14/21 

20.00 Paid $2,448.00 on 1/27/22, Paid $425.50 on 2/8/22 

60.00 Paid $3,445.25 on 2/3/22, Paid $420.60 on 2/8/22, Paid 60.00 on 2/24/22 

20.00 Paid $4,124.35 on 3/17/22, paid $525.50 on 3/29/22, Paid 20.00 on 4/12/22 

4,089.15 Paid $1,013.75 on 4/5/22, paid $2,846.20 on 4/7/22. paid $229.20 on 4/12/22 

3,986.45 Paid $1,000.20 on 4/5/22, paid $2,921.95 on 4/7/22 

3,505.70 Paid $2,560.50 on 4/7/22, Paid $840.90 on 4/14/22 

Total __ 11~,_89_9_.9_0_ 



Concho Valley Transit District 
Balance Sheet Reconciliation 
March 31, 2022 

Accounts Receivable Saferide Medical Transportation 
Account 1306 

Description 
Record SAFERIDE Inv 09-24-21 additional billing 
Record SAFERIDE Inv 03052022 
Record SAFERIDE Inv 03122022 
Record SAFERIDE Inv 03192022 
Record SAFERIDE Inv 03262022 
Record SAFERIDE Inv 03312022 

Amount 
0.37 Paid 63.33 on 1/21/22 

1,019.64 Paid $4,630.49 on 3/25/22, $1,019 pd on 4/1/22 
6,903.04 Paid,$6,788.02 4/1/22, $115.02 4/8/22 
6,069.77 Paid, $6069.77 4/15/22 

5,722.37 Paidc $5,653.69 4/15/22 
5,008.85 Paid, $5008.85 4/29/22 

Total 24,724.04 --===--



Concho Valley Transit District 
Balance Sheet Reconciliation 
March 31, 2022 

West Texas Counseling and Guidance 
Account 1381 

Description Amount 
Record inv WTCG Mar-22 350.00 JVT43102549 

Total 350.00 

Note: 



Concho Valley Transit District 
Balance Sheet Reconciliation 
March 31, 2022 

Workforce Solutions (CV Workforce Development) 
Account 1382 

Description 
Jan 31 2022-WSCV 

Notes: 

Amount 
30.00 JVT43102353 -----

Total 30.00 -----

Per email from Judy on 4/30/22: Will submit payment next week for Jan 31 2022-WSCV. 



Concho Valley Transit District 
Balance Sheet Reconciliation 
March 31, 2022 

Sutton County 
Account 1384 

Description 
Record Monthly Membership Mar-22 

Amount 
3,141.33 JVT43102446 Paid 4/22/22 

Total 3,141.33 



Concho Valley Transit District 
Balance Sheet Reconciliation 
March 31, 2022 

Angelo State University 
Account 1387 

Description 
RAM TRAM Mar-22 

Amount 
6,834.68 JVT43102548 Paid 4/22/22 

Total 6,834.68 --=-=_.;.c.;c.:c... 



Concho Valley Transit District 
Balance Sheet Reconciliation 
March 31, 2022 

Area Agency on Aging 
Account 1389 

Description 
AAA Urban trips Billing Feb-22 
AAA Urban trips Billing Mar-22 

Amount 
975.00 JVT4310248S 

1,402.50 JVT43102S4S 

Total 2,377.50 ---==...:...::=-=-

Paid 4/8/22 



Concho Valley Transit District 
Balance Sheet Reconciliation 
March 31, 2022 

CV Foster Grandparent 
Account 1390 

Description 
Record invoice Mar-22 FGP 

Amount 
102.00 JVT43102544 Paid 4/22/22 

Total 102.00 



Concho Valley Transit District 
Balance Sheet Reconciliation 
March 31, 2022 

Accounts Receivable-General 
Account 1391 

Description Amount 
March Wex-Bank/Shell bill 2/24/22 - 3/23/22 18,443.46 PO credited 1391 in April-22 

BGCSA Mar-22 415.00 JVT43102sso 

Total 18,858.46 



Concho Valley Transit District 
Balance Sheet Reconciliation 
March 31, 2022 

Staff Travel Advance 
Account 1392 

Description 
AUATVLADV 02-21-22 
JWTVLADV 02-22-22 
JYVLADV 02-21-22 

OWTVLADV 02-22-22 
RHTVLADV 02-22-22 

Total 

Note: All items will be rec/assed in April-22 

Amount 
44.25 

103.25 
44.25 

103.25 
103.25 
398.25 -----



Concho Valley Transit District 
Balance Sheet Reconciliation 
March 31, 2022 

CV Senior Companion 
Account 1393 

Description 

Record SCP Billing Mar-22 

Amount 

146.00 JVC43102543 Pd 4/22/22 

Total 146.00 



Concho Valley Transit District 
Balance Sheet Reconciliation 
March 31, 2022 

CV Economic Development 
Account 13 94 

Description 
Record 5310 Rural Billing Feb-22 
Record 5310 Urban Billing Feb-22 
Record 5310 Rural Billing Mar-22 

Total 

Amount 
2,479.00 JVT43102490 paid S/3 

11,256.00 JVT43102491 paid 5/3 

1,665.00 JVT43102546 paid 5/3 

15,400.00 



Concho Valley Transit District 
Balance Sheet Reconciliation 
March 31, 2022 

Bus Passes Receivable 
Account 1396 

Description 

Feb 17 2022-PHS 
Mar 08 2022-GW 
Mar 16 2022-CVCAA 
Mar 15 2022-RES 
Mar 28 2022-TDFPS 
Mar 22 2022-ECLC 
Mar 24 2022-MHMR 

Amount 

150.00 JVT43102426 Pd 4/8/22 

300.00 JVT43102507 Pd 4/1/22 

750.00 JVT43102508 Pd 4/22/22 

60.00 JVT43102509 

50.00 JVT43102516 Pd 4/8/22 

520.00 JVT43102518 Pd 4/22/22 

150.00 JVT43102519 Pd 4/14/22 

Total 1,980.00 



cvm 
Aged Payables by Due Date - Outstanding AP 

Aging Date - 9/1/2020 
From 9/1/2021 Through 3/31/2022 

31 - 60 61 - 90 Over 90 
!""""' Invoice 1 - 30 Days Days Days Days Past 

Vendor Name Date Number CUrreot Past Due Past Due Past Due D"" Total 

Abilene 3/20/2022 0004466821 1,169.00 o.oo 0,00 0.00 0.00 1,169.00 
Reporter News 

Total Abilene 1,169.00 o.oo 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,169.00 
Reporter News 

STANDARD 2/22/2022. 0005122048 1,758.57 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,758.57 
TIMES 

Total 1,758.57 0.00 0.00 0.00 o.oo 1,758.57 
STANDARD 
TIMES 

3/9/2022 007355 591.00 0.00 o.oo o.oo 0.00 591.00 
TIRE AND 
FLEET 

3/11/2022 007363 434.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 o.oo 434.00 
3/21/2022 007394 35.00 o.oo o.oo D.00 0.OD 35.00 
3/21/2022 007397 676.00 0.00 _______QJ)Q_ _______QJ)Q_ o.oo 676.00 

Total 1,736.00 0.00 0.OD 0.00 0.00 1,736.00 

TIRE AND 
FLEET 

TXU ENERGY 3/16/2022 055177863128 183.56 o.oo o.oo o.oo 0.00 183.56 
RETAILS 
COMPANY LLC 

Total TXU 183.56 o.oo 0,0D 0.00 D.00 183.56 
ENERGY 
RETAILS 
COMPANY LLC 

CTWP 3/10/2022 1343460 66.00 D.00 _______Q.J!Q_ _______QJ)Q_ o.oo 66.00 

Total CTWP 66.00 0.00 0.OD 0.00 0.00 66.DD 

Dall!: 4/29/22 04:17:12 PM P11ge: 1 



CVTD 
Aged Payables by Due Date • Outstanding AP 

Aging Date - 9/1/2020 
From 9/1/2021 Through 3/31/2D22 

31 - 60 61- 90 ""'"'° ''"'""" Invoice 1 - 30 Days Days Days Days Past 
Vendor Name Date Number Current Past Due Past Due Past Due D,e Total 

TML 3/1/2022 1479 8,825.51 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 8,825.51 
INTERGOVER ... 03012022 
RISK POOL 

Total TML 8,825.51 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 8,825.51 
INTER GOVER ... 
RISK POOL 

ENGINE PRO 3/15/2022 16522 581.40 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 581.40 
MACHINE UC 

Total ENGINE 581.40 0.00 D.00 0.00 0.00 581.40 
PRO MACHINE 
LLC 

Amazon Capital 3/16/2022 193F-3W1R-... 1,481.40 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,481.40 
Services, Inc. 

3/29/2022 llVF-llFN-4 ... 267.72 D.00 o.oo o.oo o.oo 267.72 
3/31/2022 1NNK-CC3X-•.• 161.90 D.00 D.00 0.00 0.00 161.90 
2/19/2022 1VXM-MLL4-••• 24.91 o.oo ______Q,_QQ_ ______Q,_QQ_ 0.00 24.91 

Total Amazon 1,935.93 o.oo 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,935.93 
capital 
Services, Inc. 

DOUCET 3/14/2022 22-259856 402.95 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 402.95 
PLUMBING, 
INC. 

Total DOUCET 402.95 0.00 0.00 0.00 o.oo 402.95 
PLUMBING, 
INC. 

HUFFMAN 3/15/2022 2715B 13,050.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,050.00 
HEATING&. 
AIR 
CONDITTONING 

Date: 4/29(21 CM:17:12 PM P11ge: 2 



CVTD 
Aged Payables by Due Date • Outstanding AP 

Aging Date - 9/1/2020 
From 9/1/2021 Through 3/31/2022 

31 • 60 61- 90 o- 90 
Invoice Invoice 1 - 30 Days Days Days Days Past 

Vendor Name Dare Number Current Past Due Past Due Past Due Due Total 

Total 13,050.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 13,050.00 
HUFFMAN 
HEATING & 
AIR 
CONDmONING 

BUG EXPRESS 3/7/2022 35083 45.00 o.oo o.oo 0.00 0.00 45.00 
3/8/2022 35208 45.00 o.oo ___Jl9.Q_ ______Q_J!2_ o.oo 45.00 

Total BUG 90.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 90.00 
EXPRESS 

ATMOS 4/5/2022 4044369733 494.44 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 494.44 
ENERGY 03-22 

Total ATMOS 494.44 o.oo o.oo 0.00 0.00 494.44 
ENERGY 

GNTAS 3/2/2022 4112192637 59.20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 59.20 
3/9/2022 4112876583 59.20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 59.20 

3/23/2022 4114268772 59.20 0.00 0.00 o.oo o.oo 59.20 
3/30/2022 4114951729 68.80 0.00 ___Q,QQ_ ............Q&Q 0.00 68.80 

Total 246.40 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 246.40 

SOLJTHERN 3/15/2022 4930027247 20.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 20.00 
TIRE MART 

Total 20.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 20.00 
SOlJTHERN 
TIRE MART 

O'REILLY'S 2/21/2022 6032-152517 10.40 o.oo o.oo o.oo o.oo 10.40 
AUTO PARTS, 
INC. 

2/21/2022 6032-152526 (147.69) o.oo o.oo o.oo o.oo (147.69) 
21n12on 6032-152712 21.88 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 21.88 
3/8/2022 6032-154160 147.69 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 147.69 

Date: 4/29/22 04:17:12 PM Pi!Ge: 3 



CVTD 
Aged Payables by Due Date • Outstanding AP 

Aging Date - 9/1/2020 
From 9/1/2021 Through 3/31/2022 

31- 60 61 · 90 ave, ,o 
Invoice Invoice 1- 30 Days Days Days Days Past 

Vendor Name Date Number C=t Past Due Past Due Past Due Due Total 

3/9/2022 6032-154213 101.92 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 101.92 
3/10/2022 6032-154318 12.99 o.oo o.oo 0.00 o.oo 12.99 
3/16/2022 6032-154926 34.13 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 34.13 
3/17/2022 6032-155009 236.55 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 236.55 
3/17/2022 6032-155020 22.53 o.oo o.oo o.oo o.oo 22.53 
3/17/2022 6032-155022 (182.69) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (182.69) 
3/17/2022 6032-155040 (22.53) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 (22.53) 
3/17/2022 6032-155064 98.89 0.00 0.00 0.00 o.oo 98.89 
3/28/2022 6032-156205 8.49 0.00 __Q_,Q_Q_ ______Q,_QQ_ 0.00 8.49 

Total 342.56 o.oo 0.00 o.oo o.oo 342.56 
O'REILLY'S 
AI.JT() PARTS, 
INC. 

CONSTANCIO 3/9/2022 642299 197.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 o.oo 197,00 
TIRE AND 
FLEET 

3/28/2022 783480 200.00 0.00 ______Q,_QQ_ _____QJ!Q_ 0.00 200.00 

Total 397.00 0.00 0.00 o.oo o.oo 397.00 
CONSTANCIO 
TIRE AND 
FLEET 

WEXBANK 3/23/2022 79719262 18,443.46 o.oo __Q,QQ_ _____Q_,QQ_ 0.00 18 443.46 

Total WEX 18,443.46 o.oo o.oo 0.00 0.00 18,443.46 
BANK 

Cross Texas 3/9/2022 82187 640.76 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 640.76 
Supply 

Total Cross 640.76 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 640.76 
Texas Supply 

Unifirst Holding 3/7/2022 839 0320831 100.87 o.oo 0.00 o.oo o.oo 100.87 

'"' 
Dlllle: 4/29/22 04:17:12 PM P1111e: 4 



CVTD 
Aged Payables by Due Date - Outstanding AP 

Aging Date - 9/1/2020 
From 9/1/2021 Through 3/31/2022 

31 - 60 61- 90 Over 90 
Iovoice InVOice 1- 30 Days Days Days Days Past 

Vendor Name Date Number Current Past Due Past Due Past Due """ Total 

3/21/2022 839 0321627 62.02 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 62.02 
3/28/2022 839 0322024 62.02 0.00 _____Q,_QQ_ _____Q,_QQ_ 0.00 62.02 

Total Unifirst 224.91 0.00 o.oo o.oo 0.00 224.91 
Holding Inc 

CONSTANCIO 2/26/2022 883437 392.00 o.oo 0.00 0.00 0.00 392.00 
TIRE AND 
FLEET 

3/3/2022 899488 35.00 o.oo 0.00 0.00 0.00 35.00 
3/7/2022 991113 35.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 35.00 
3/8/2022 991115 35.00 0.00 _____Q,_QQ_ _____Q,_QQ_ o.oo 35.00 

Total 497.00 0.00 o.oo o.oo o.oo 497.00 
CONSTANCIO 
TIRE AND 
FLEET 

SUPERIOR 2/7/2022 12622 788.40 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 788.40 
SERVICES 

2/1/2022 13010 357.20 0.00 _____Q,_QQ_ _____Q,_QQ_ o.oo 357.20 

Total 1,145.60 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,145.60 
SUPERIOR 
SERVICES 

VGI Technology 3/29/2022 159405 1,630.00 0.00 _____Q,_QQ_ _____Q,_QQ_ 0.00 1,630.00 

Total VGI 1,630.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,630.00 
Technology 

Ready Maids 3/28/2022 Ready 336 11,666.67 0.00 __Q,_QQ_ __Q,_QQ_ 0.00 11,666.67 

Total Ready 11,666.67 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 11,666.67 
Maids 

CREATIVE BUS 3/1/2022 XA11100135 ... 172.99 o.oo 0.00 o.oo o.oo 172.99 
SALES, INC 

Date: 4/29/22 04:17:12 PM Pao,,: 5 



CVTD 
Aged Payables by Due Date - Outstanding AP 

Aging Date • 9/1/2020 
From 9/1/2021 Through 3/31/2022 

31 - 60 61- 90 
""'" 90 ln~a, '"""'"' 1- 30 Days Days Days Days Past 

Vendor Name Date Number C,m,nt Past Due Past Due Past Due Due Total 

3/9/2022 XA12100086 ... 119.52 o.oo _____Q,_QQ_ ________Q_JIQ_ 0.00 119.52 

Total 292.51 o.oo o.oo 0.00 0.00 292.51 
CREATIVE BUS 
SALES, INC 

Report Total 65,840.23 0.00 0.00 o.oo 0.00 65,840.23 

DIii!: 4/29/22 O'l:17:12 PM Paoe:6 



Concho Valley Transit District 
Balance Sheet Reconciliation 
March 31, 2022 

AP Owed to CVCOG 
Account 2112 

Date 
3/1/2022 Beginning Balance 

3/22/2021 Payment Received 

Description 

3/4/2022 CVCOG deposit received in error 
3/31/2022 Link Road Allocation 

Grant 010-Expenses paid by CVCOG 
Grant 018-Expenses paid by CVCOG 
Grant 019-Expenses paid by CVCOG 
Grant 023-Expenses paid by CVCOG 
Grant 817-Expenses paid by CVCOG 
Grant 825-Expenses paid by CVCOG 
Grant LOl-Expenses paid by CVCOG 
Grant MOl-Expenses paid by CVCOG 
Grant M02-Expenses paid by CVCOG 
Grant ROl-Expenses paid by CVCOG 
Grant R02-Expenses paid by CVCOG 
Grant UOl-Expenses paid by CVCOG 

S Amount 
379,878.74 

(271,554.56) 
308.62 

(32,045.02) 
2,343.93 
2,634.25 

131.12 
699.77 
441.93 

8.80 
11,608.79 

5,549.21 
4,898.98 

90,702.70 
17,190.90 

192,809.97 

Total Amount owed to CVCOG 405,608.13 
MIP 405,608.13 

Va r"1ance il!lli'5:'\'~\''~:;'lt~o:ifo-01r ~)ftl'\ ·.,.·,,,·_/,c .. 



Concho Valley Transit District 
Balance Sheet Reconciliation 
March 31, 2022 

Unearned Revenue County Membership Dues 
Account 2917 

Description 
Coke County 
Concho County 
Crockett County 
Irion County 
Kimble County 
McCulloch County 
Menard County 
Reagan County 
Schleicher County 
Sterling County 
Sutton County 
Funds Recognized as Revenue 

Total Rural Program 

Tom Green County 

Amount 
20,864.69 paid 10/22/21 

21,198.25 paid 10/22/21 

26,001.92 
11,081.07 paid 10/15/21 

10,588.69 paid 10/22/21 

33,338.76 paid 10/22/21 

15,324.23 paid 10/29/21 

40,050.80 paid 10/8/21 

24,008.11 paid 10/22/21 

7,979.44 paid 10/15/21 

21,989.31 paid 10/22/21 

(110,997.22) 
121,428.05 

54,480.22 
Total Urban Program 54,480.22 ---'---

Grand Total Dues Reserved 175,908.27 



Concho Valley Transit District 
Balance Sheet Reconciliation 
March 31, 2022 

Unearned Revenue• AMR 
Account 2919 

Description 
Record AMR Inv 09042021 
Record AMR Inv 09112021 
Record AMR Inv 09182021 
Record AMR Inv 09252021 
Record AMR Inv 09302021 
Record AMR Inv 10092021 
Record AMR Inv 10162021 
Record AMR Inv 10262021 
Record AMR Inv 10302021 
Record AMR Inv 11062021 
Record AMR Inv 11092021 
Record AMR Inv 11 132021 
Record AMR Inv 11212021 
Record AMR Inv I 1302021 
Record AMR Inv 12042021 
Record AMR Inv 12112021 
Record AMR Inv 12192021 
Record AMR Inv 12252021 
Record AMR Inv 12312021 
Record AMR Inv 01082022 
Record AMR Inv 01152022 
Record AMR Inv 01222022 
Record AMR Inv 01312022 
Record AMR Inv 02052022 
Record AMR Inv 02122022 
Record AMR Inv 02192022 
Record AMR Inv 02282022 
Record AMR Inv 03052022 
Record AMR Inv 03122022 
Record AMR Inv 03192022 
Record AMR Inv 03262022 
Record AMR Inv 03312022 

Amount 
407.48 Paid63.33on 1/21/22 

1,782.50 Paid 1527.83 3/4 

1,551.55 Paid: 4994.58 3/4, 34.34 3/11 

2,149.20 Paid: 6365.72 3/11, 80.68 3/18 

1,513.60 Paid: 5617.89 3/25 

4,412.90 
3,886.95 
3,375.50 
3,372.95 
2,766.15 
1,029.55 
4,315.35 
3,113.25 
4,278.00 
2,196.35 
3,704.30 
3,421.00 
2,629.05 
2,474.55 
3,097.70 
2,086.30 
2,693.50 
3,985.85 
1,059.00 
3,484.60 Paid $60.00 on 3/10/52 

4,014.50 Pa(d $104.30 on 3/10/22 

4,660.15 Paid $4,324.95 on 3/10/22, Paid $335.20 on 3/1S/22 

3, 760.40 Paid $3,354.90 on 3/15/22, Pald $405.50 on 3/29/2 

4,669.85 Paid $4,124.35 on 3/17/22, paid $525.50 on 3/29/22, Paid 20.00 on 4/12/22 

4,089.15 Paid $1,013.75 on 4/S/22, paid $2,846.20 on 4/7/22, paid $229.20 on 4/11/22 

3,986.45 Paid $1,000.20 on 4/5/22, paid $2,921.95 on 4/7/22 

3,505.70 Paid $2,560.50 on 4/7/22, Paid $840.90 on 4/14/22 

Total AMR Billings __ .,c9c;7,_,4c;7.::3c:.3;::3_ 

Payments recognized for Sept 2021 (2,277.51) 
Payments recognized for Oct 2021 (5,188.63) 
Payments recognized for Nov 2021 (7,082.11) 
Payments recognized for Dec 2021 (8,845.19) 
Payments recognized for Jan 2022 (5,229.61) 
Payments recognized for Feb 2022 (16,800.06) 
Payments recognized for Mar 2022 (37,946.38) 

Total Pending Payments Recognized __ ,.18;.;3,.,3;.;6;;;9;..4;;;9._) 

Grand Total Deferred AMR Revenue ===l;,;4.;,1;;0;;;3;;.8;;4_ 

1 ofl 



Concho Valley Transit District 
Balance Sheet Reconciliation 
March 31, 2022 

Unearned Revenue -Bus Passes 
Account 2920 

Description 
Jan 31 2022-WSCV 
Feb 17 2022-PHS 
Mar 08 2022-GW 
Mar 16 2022-CVCAA 
Mar 15 2022-RES 
Mar 28 2022-TDFPS 
Mar 22 2022-ECLC 
Mar 24 2022-MHMR 

Total 

Amount 
30.00 JVT43102353 

150.00 JVT43102426 Pd 4/8/22 

300.00 JVT43102507 Pd 4/1/22 

750.00 JVT43102508 Pd 4/22/22 

60.00 JVT43102509 

SO.OD JVT43102516 Pd 4/8/22 

520.00 JVT43102518 Pd 4/22/22 

150.00 JVT43102519 Pd 4/14/22 

2,010.00 



SCHEDULE OF REVENUES BY SOURCE
                               YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2006September 1, 2021 - March 31, 2022  

CV Transit District     State Federal    

 Administered  US Dept Program Transit TML Transit Sale of CVEDD Pass FGP/SCP/Aging Local Toll Total Total Excess Revenue
Grant No Grant Name    Federal CARES      Federal    State    EDA Income Charter Ins Medical  Equipment Vendor Thru Vendor Revenue Credits Revenue Expenditures over Expenditures Notes

010 ICB Program -                      -                     -                      -                5,003.76       -              -               12,588.19       -                  -                30,328.15   -                           -                  -               47,920.10                     46,768.80 1,151.30                           $1,110.00 Owed to Greyhound, $41.30 PY funds

013 TML Depot Insurance Repairs -                      -                     -                      -                -                -              21,558.19    -                  -                  -                -              -                           -                  -               21,558.19                     16,127.00                      5,431.19                           Excess funds

018 Extended Medical Transp Program -                      -                     -                      -                -                    -                -              -               15,885.11       -                  -                -              -                           -                  -               15,885.11                     15,885.11                      -                                    

019 Grant 019, Link Road Facility Operations -                      -                     -                      -                -                    -                -              -               -                  -                  -                -              -                           6,815.23         -               6,815.23                       6,815.23                        -                                    

020 Grant 020, US Dept Commerce Facility -                      -                     -                      -                108,632.80       -                -              -               -                  -                  -                -              -                           27,158.20       -               135,791.00                   135,791.00                    -                                    

021 Grant 021, 911 Agreement Link Road 108,800.00     108,800.00                   108,800.00                    -                                    

023 Grant 023, Transit Construction Link Road -                      -                     -                      -                -                    -                -              -               120,735.64     -                  -                -              -                           327,511.22     -               448,246.86                   448,246.86                    -                                    

800 CVTD Urban CARES ACT FY 19-20 -                      -                     -                      -                -                    -                -              -               -                  -                  -                -              -                           -                  -               -                                -                                 -                                    

813 CVTD Urban FY 20-21 633.00                -                     -                -                    79.00            (156.25)       -               2,828.90         -                  -                -              -                  -               3,384.65                       3,384.65                        -                                    

814 CVTD Rural FY 20-21 -                      -                     -                      46.00            -                -              1,193.16         -                -              -               1,239.16                       1,239.16                        -                                    

817 CVTD RCTP-2020-00016 FY 20-21 -                      -                     22,448.56           -                    -                -              -               0.88                 -                  -                -              -                           -                  -               22,449.44                     22,449.44                      -                                    5 Yr plan approved, will bill in in April

823 Mobility Urban 5310-2019-074 -                      -                     7,807.00             -                -                    -                -              -               530.53            -                  -                -              -                           -                  1,561.00      9,898.53                       9,898.53                        -                                    

824 Mobility Rural 5310-2019-074 -                      -                     841.00                -                -                    -                -              -               57.96               -                  -              -                           -                  168.00          1,066.96                       1,066.96                        -                                    

825 Rural CARES 2021-00026 -                       110,256.00        -                -                    -                -              -               4.42                 -                  -              -                           -                  -               110,260.42                   110,260.42                    -                                    

L01 Link Road Facility -                       -                     -                      -                -                    -                -              -               -                  -                  -                -              -                           86,352.15       -               86,352.15                     86,352.15                      -                                    

M01 Mobility Urban 5310-2019-074 -                      39,028.00           -                -                    -                -              -               2,137.59         -                  -              -                           -                  -               41,165.59                     41,165.59                      -                                    

M02 Mobility Rural 5310-2019-074 -                      31,804.00           -                -                    -                -              -               1,687.02         -                  -              -                           -                  -               33,491.02                     33,491.02                      -                                    

R01 CVTD Rural FY 21-22 -                      -                     512,739.00        430,530.00   -                    -                500.00        -               262.13            -                  13,801.00     -              6.00                         9,639.41         6,148.00      973,625.54                   964,354.62                    9,270.92                           Excess funds

R02 CVTD ARP Rural FY 21-22 -                      -                     60,580.00           -                -                    -                -              -               0.84                 -                  -                -              -                  -               60,580.84                     60,580.84                      -                                    

U01 CVTD Urban FY 21-22 1,045,419.00     -                     310,370.00   -                    50,182.24     11,270.00   5,377.48      84,106.20       -                  146,608.00   -              8,762.00                  224,919.82     -               1,887,014.74                1,887,014.74                 -                                    

1,046,052.00     110,256.00        675,247.56        740,946.00   108,632.80       55,265.00     11,613.75   26,935.67    242,018.57     -                  160,409.00   30,328.15   8,768.00                  791,196.03     7,877.00      4,015,545.53                3,999,692.12                 15,853.41                         

 

 

  



CONCHO VALLEY TRANSIT DISTRICT
September 2021 through August 2022  

URBAN PROGRAM Less Previous
SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG   TOTAL Request BUDGET Variance

TOTAL EXPENSE 221,086.83        250,574.70              329,461.58        277,072.56           347,183.19           204,629.83          260,390.40            -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    1,890,399.09           -                              3,342,720.48            1,452,321.39            

Urban - 5307 Grant U01 URB 1901 (07)
STATE-U-2021-00082 STATE Period 9/1/20 thru 08/31/2021
 Preventative Maint 11.7A.00 2,566.00            4,494.00                  6,078.00            -                        6,848.00               1,596.00              3,608.00                -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    25,190.00                -                              70,197.00                 45,007.00                 
 Operating 30.09.01 82,609.00          87,173.00                115,398.00        -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    285,180.00              -                              285,180.00               -                            
TOTAL 85,175.00          91,667.00                121,476.00        -                        6,848.00               1,596.00              3,608.00                -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    310,370.00              -                              355,377.00               45,007.00                 

Grant 813  
FTA TX-2020-175-00  Y403 FED  
Operations 30.09.01 82,609.00          87,806.00                92,321.00          -                        13,917.00             -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    276,653.00              575,861.00                 853,147.00               633.00                      
ADA 11.7C.00 22,214.00          28,275.00                33,841.00          23,829.00             8,111.00               -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    116,270.00              153,901.00                 270,171.00               -                            
Prev Maint 11.7A.00 15,697.00          24,359.00                7,197.00            -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    47,253.00                162,316.00                 412,629.00               203,060.00               
Lease Yards 11.46.05 -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           96,000.00                   96,000.00                 -                            
Acquire Mobile Surv/Security Equip 11.42.09 -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           -                              -                            -                            
TOTAL CFDA 20.507 120,520.00        140,440.00              133,359.00        23,829.00             22,028.00             -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    440,176.00              988,078.00                 1,631,947.00            203,693.00               

Grant U01  
FTA TX-2021-100-01 FED
Operations 30.09.01 -                     -                           26,779.00          92,851.00             76,187.00             74,397.00            85,781.00              -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    355,995.00              -                              900,000.00               544,005.00               
ADA 11.7C.00 -                     -                           -                     -                        15,384.00             18,691.00            35,078.00              -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    69,153.00                -                              120,000.00               50,847.00                 
Prev Maint 11.7A.00 -                     -                           33,841.00          18,751.00             42,814.00             11,036.00            20,208.00              -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    126,650.00              -                              351,813.00               225,163.00               
Lease Yards 11.46.05 -                     -                           -                     -                        53,760.00             -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    53,760.00                -                              96,000.00                 42,240.00                 
Acquire Bus Passenger Shelters 11.32.10 -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           -                              20,280.00                 20,280.00                 
Acquire Mobile Surv/Security Equip 11.42.09 -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        318.00                 -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    318.00                     -                              15,031.00                 14,713.00                 
TOTAL CFDA 20.507 -                     -                           60,620.00          111,602.00           188,145.00           104,442.00          141,067.00            -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    605,876.00              -                              1,503,124.00            897,248.00               

Total Government Funding 205,695.00        232,107.00              315,455.00        135,431.00           217,021.00           106,038.00          144,675.00            -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    1,356,422.00           988,078.00                 3,490,448.00            1,145,948.00            
 

OTHER REVENUE
Program Revenue 6,905.87            7,327.71                  6,540.81            6,930.36               6,816.36               6,696.16              9,043.97                -                     -                   -                        -                    50,261.24                78,810.00                 28,548.76                 

Charter 293.75               1,312.50                  500.00               6,625.00               1,050.00               510.00                 822.50                   -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    11,113.75                10,500.00                 (613.75)                     
Area Agency on Aging 1,552.50            922.50                     -                     1,650.00               817.50                  975.00                 1,402.50                -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    7,320.00                  6,000.00                   (1,320.00)                  

Tom Green -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           -                            -                            
Sale of Equipment -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           -                            -                            

TML Insurance -                     -                           -                     -                        5,377.48               -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    5,377.48                  5,377.48                   -                            
Ram Tram 6,854.78            7,719.98                  5,794.62            2,971.60               4,605.98               6,388.94              7,131.84                -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    41,467.74                55,870.69                 14,402.95                 
Advertising -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    2,500.00                   2,500.00                   

COSA Funds -                     -                           -                     91,589.22             78,171.12             -                      1,871.99                -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    171,632.33              399,491.00               227,858.67               
Other/Local 1,765.00            1,909.00                  1,835.00            1,498.00               2,447.75               515.00                 1,850.00                -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    11,819.75                9,199.31                   (2,620.44)                  

Medical 145.20               633.69                     -                     2,049.71               -                        952.52                 83,153.68              -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    86,934.80                124,610.00               37,675.20                 
CVEDD 19,348.00          28,560.00                28,168.00          28,504.00             30,772.00             11,256.00            -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    146,608.00              146,606.00               (2.00)                         

FGP 244.00               124.00                     62.00                 94.00                    114.00                  118.00                 98.00                     -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    854.00                     886.00                      32.00                        
SCP 42.00                 106.00                     66.00                 96.00                    80.00                    52.00                   146.00                   -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    588.00                     500.00                      (88.00)                       

TOTAL OTHER REVENUE 37,151.10          48,615.38                42,966.43          142,007.89           130,252.19           27,463.62            105,520.48            -                     -                   -                        -                    -                     533,977.09              840,350.48               306,373.39               

Total Urban Excess/(Shortage) 21,759.27          30,147.68                28,959.85          366.33                  90.00                    (71,128.21)          (10,194.92)            -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           -                            

Grant Award started September 2019

Grant Award started September 2019



CONCHO VALLEY TRANSIT DISTRICT
September 2021 through August 2022  

RURAL PROGRAM Less Previous
SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG   TOTAL Request BUDGET Variance

TOTAL EXPENSE 131,429.13        120,931.60              154,949.24        164,415.88           197,623.73           97,891.77            98,352.43              -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    965,593.78              -                              2,138,646.70            1,173,052.92            

Rural 5311 Grant 814 Suffix
5311-2020-CVTD-00067 SAF
Administrative 11.79.00 -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           68,839.00                   68,839.00                 -                            
Preventative Maint 11.7A.00 -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           49,304.00                   49,304.00                 -                            
Operating 30.09.01 42,746.00          -                           4,915.00            (4,915.00)              -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    42,746.00                298,717.00                 341,463.00               -                            
Acq Misc Equip 11.42.20 7,983.00                  22,754.00             -                    -                    30,737.00                30,737.00                 -                            
Engineering and Design Maint Facility 11.41.02 -                           204,997.00               204,997.00               
TDCs 1,597.00                  4,551.00               -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    6,148.00                  6,141.00                     16,000.00                 3,711.00                   
TOTAL CFDA 20.509 42,746.00          7,983.00                  4,915.00            22,390.00             -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    79,631.00                416,860.00                 695,340.00               208,708.00               

 
Rural 5311 Grant R01 Suffix
5311-2021-CVTD-00021 SAF  
Administrative 11.79.00 13,974.00          13,046.00                -                     10,573.00             13,798.00             12,495.00            12,349.00              -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    76,235.00                -                              134,223.00               57,988.00                 
Preventative Maint 11.7A.00 6,045.00            (6,045.00)                 32.00                 5,640.00               5,624.00               7.00                     5,444.00                -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    16,747.00                -                              151,052.00               134,305.00               
Operating 30.09.01 10,787.00          49,847.00                66,979.00          56,474.00             82,216.00             42,184.00            37,787.00              -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    346,274.00              -                              411,727.00               65,453.00                 
TOTAL CFDA 20.509 30,806.00          56,848.00                67,011.00          72,687.00             101,638.00           54,686.00            55,580.00              -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    439,256.00              -                              697,002.00               257,746.00               

Rural Grant 814 RUR 1902 (07)
STATE-R-2020-00197 STATE  Period: 09/1/20 thru 08/31/22
 Preventative Maint 11.7A.00 -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           -                              -                            -                            
 Project Admin 11.79.00 3,493.00            3,262.00                  19,865.00          2,727.00               -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    29,347.00                17,209.00                   46,556.00                 -                            
 Operating 30.09.01 53,533.00          49,893.00                21,056.00          (4,204.00)              -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    120,278.00              298,717.00                 418,995.00               -                            
TOTAL 57,026.00          53,155.00                40,921.00          (1,477.00)              -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    149,625.00              315,926.00                 465,551.00               -                            

Rural Grant R01 RUR 1902 (07)
STATE-R-2021-00081 STATE  Period: 09/1/20 thru 08/31/22
 Preventative Maint 11.7A.00 -                     -                           8.00                   1,410.00               1,406.00               1.00                     1,361.00                -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    4,186.00                  -                              37,763.00                 33,577.00                 
 Project Admin 11.79.00 -                     -                           -                     -                        3,449.00               3,123.00              3,087.00                -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    9,659.00                  -                              33,556.00                 23,897.00                 
 Operating 30.09.01 -                     -                           50,127.00          56,474.00             82,466.00             40,002.00            38,037.00              -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    267,106.00              -                              394,232.00               127,126.00               
TOTAL -                     -                           50,135.00          57,884.00             87,321.00             43,126.00            42,485.00              -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    280,951.00              -                              465,551.00               184,600.00               

Total Government Funding 130,578.00        117,986.00              162,982.00        151,484.00           188,959.00           97,812.00            98,065.00              -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    949,463.00              732,786.00                 2,323,444.00            651,054.00               
   

OTHER REVENUE 974,864.70              
Program Revenue -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           -                            -                            

Charter -                     -                           -                     -                        500.00                  -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    500.00                     500.00                      -                            
FGP -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      4.00                       -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    4.00                         18.00                        14.00                        
SCP -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           -                            -                            

Other/Local 646.00               760.00                     1,552.68            535.00                  986.52                  112.00                 165.00                   -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    4,757.20                  18,355.00                 13,597.80                 
Advertising -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           -                            -                            

Sale of Equipment -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           -                            -                            
County Overage -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           -                            -                            

Medicaid -                     46.58                       711.00               697.71                  -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                    -                    1,455.29                  149,994.00               148,538.71               
County Cash Match -                     -                           -                     -                        4,884.21               -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    4,884.21                  363,767.70               358,883.49               

CVEDD 1,406.00            1,998.00                  2,109.00            1,850.00               2,294.00               2,479.00              1,665.00                13,801.00                15,354.00                 1,553.00                   
Trans Aging -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           -                            -                            

TOTAL OTHER REVENUE 2,052.00            2,804.58                  4,372.68            3,082.71               8,664.73               2,591.00              1,834.00                -                     -                   -                        -                    -                     25,401.70                547,988.70               522,587.00               
  

Total Rural Excess/(Shortage) 1,200.87            (141.02)                    12,405.44          (9,849.17)              -                        2,511.23              1,546.57                -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    9,270.92                  -                            

Period: 11/6/20 thru 5/31/2023

Period: 11/6/20 thru 8/31/2022



CONCHO VALLEY TRANSIT DISTRICT
September 2021 through August 2022  

ED PROJECTS  Less Previous BUDGET
 SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG   TOTAL Request Variance

5310
5310-2019-00091 Grant 823 Suffix Period: 09/1/2020 thru 9/30/2021                                                                                 
Mobility Management-U 11.7L.00 A2 7,807.00            -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    7,807.00                  38,022.00                   67,838.00                 22,009.00                 
TD Credits TDCs 1,561.00            -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    1,561.00                  7,605.00                     13,568.00                 4,402.00                   
Medical Funds  530.53               -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    530.53                     2,583.60                     3,392.00                   277.87                      
TOTAL CFDA 20.513 9,898.53            -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    9,898.53                  48,210.60                   84,798.00                 26,688.87                 

5310-2019-00091 Grant 824 Suffix Period: 09/1/2020 thru 9/30/2021                                                                                 
Mobility Management-Rural 11.7L.00 A1 841.00               -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    841.00                     29,017.00                   36,159.00                 6,301.00                   
TD Credits TDCs 168.00               -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    168.00                     5,806.00                     7,232.00                   1,258.00                   
Medical Funds  57.96                 -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    57.96                       1,971.17                     1,808.00                   (221.13)                     
TOTAL CFDA 20.513 1,066.96            -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    1,066.96                  36,794.17                   45,199.00                 7,337.87                   

5310-2021-00027 Grant M01 Suffix Period: 09/3/2021 thru 8/31/2022                                                                                 
Mobility Management-U 11.7L.00 A2 -                     9,610.00                  6,479.00            5,276.00               5,555.00               6,895.00              5,213.00                -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    39,028.00                -                              67,838.00                 28,810.00                 
Medical Funds  -                     300.57                     402.00               327.45                  344.31                  427.05                 336.21                   -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    2,137.59                  -                              3,392.00                   1,254.41                   
TOTAL CFDA 20.513 -                     9,910.57                  6,881.00            5,603.45               5,899.31               7,322.05              5,549.21                -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    41,165.59                -                              71,230.00                 30,064.41                 

5310-2021-00027 Grant M02 Suffix Period: 09/3/2021 thru 8/31/2022                                                                                 
Mobility Management-Rural 11.7L.00 A1 -                     9,003.00                  5,704.00            4,613.00               4,639.00               3,242.00              4,603.00                -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    31,804.00                -                              36,159.00                 4,355.00                   
Medical Funds  -                     262.78                     353.26               286.19                  287.55                  201.26                 295.98                   -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    1,687.02                  -                              1,808.00                   120.98                      
TOTAL CFDA 20.513 -                     9,265.78                  6,057.26            4,899.19               4,926.55               3,443.26              4,898.98                -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    33,491.02                -                              37,967.00                 4,475.98                   

PLANNING PROJECTS  Less Previous BUDGET
 SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG   TOTAL Request Variance

5304
RCTP-2020-CVTD-00016 Grant 817  Period: 9/01/20 thru 02/28/2022  
Regional Planning 44.24.00 2,958.00            -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      19,490.56              -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    22,448.56                31,826.00                   91,794.00                 37,519.44                 
Medical Funds  0.70                   0.18                         -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    0.88                         4.57                            1,673.64                   1,668.19                   
TOTAL CFDA 20.505 2,958.70            0.18                         -                     -                        -                        -                      19,490.56              -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    22,449.44                31,830.57                   93,467.64                 39,187.63                 

5304
RCTCP-2022-CVTD-00021 Grant P01  Period: 3/02/22 thru 08/31/2022  
Regional Planning 44.24.00 -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           -                              17,500.00                 17,500.00                 
Medical Funds  -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           -                              20.00                        20.00                        
TOTAL CFDA 20.505 -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           -                              17,520.00                 17,520.00                 



CONCHO VALLEY TRANSIT DISTRICT
September 2021 through August 2022  

CAPITAL PROJECTS  Less Previous BUDGET
 SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG   TOTAL Request Variance

Grant 815

BBF 2002-5339-D-2020-00011 Rural Period: 9/1/2020 thru 9/30/2022  
Vehicles <30 11.12.04 -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           634,130.00               634,130.00               
TD Credits TDCs -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           -                              126,826.00               126,826.00               
Medical Funds  -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           -                              -                            -                            
TOTAL CFDA 20.526 -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           -                              760,956.00               760,956.00               

Grant 816

BBF 2002-5339-R-2020-00021 Rural Period: 9/1/2020 thru 9/30/2022  
Engineering and Design Maint Facility 11.41.02 -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           85,598.00                 85,598.00                 
TD Credits TDCs -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           -                              5,459.00                   5,459.00                   

Engineering and Design Maint Facility 11.41.02 -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           291,521.00               291,521.00               
TD Credits TDCs -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           -                              11,660.00                 11,660.00                 
Medical Funds  -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           -                              -                            -                            
TOTAL CFDA 20.526, 20.509 -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           -                              394,238.00               394,238.00               

Grant 797

TX-2020-068-00 Urban Period: 5/10/2020 thru 12/31/2021  
Bus-Rolling Stock 11.12.03 -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           399,202.00               399,202.00               
TD Credits TDCs -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           -                              79,841.00                 79,841.00                 
Medical Funds  -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           -                              -                            -                            
TOTAL CFDA 20.526 -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           -                              479,043.00               479,043.00               



CONCHO VALLEY TRANSIT DISTRICT
September 2021 through August 2022  

ADDITIONAL SERVICES  BUDGET
SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG   TOTAL Variance

MIP 019  
Transit Operations Link Road Local  
COSA Funds -                     1,606.31                  2,665.04            2,432.06               -                        54.77                   57.05                     -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    6,815.23                  -                              85,888.00                 79,072.77                 
TOTAL -                     1,606.31                  2,665.04            2,432.06               -                        54.77                   57.05                     -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    6,815.23                  -                              85,888.00                 79,072.77                 

Grant 020  
EDA 08-79-05344 FED  
US DEPT Commerce-EDA -                     108,632.80              -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    108,632.80              2,091,367.20              2,200,000.00            -                            
Local Funds -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           42,500.00                   42,500.00                 -                            
Revenue Co Cash Match -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           253,390.89                 253,390.89               -                            
COSA Funds 27,158.20          -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    27,158.20                58,767.26                   85,925.46                 -                            
Medical Funds -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           168,183.65                 168,183.65               -                            
TOTAL CFDA 11.307 27,158.20          108,632.80              -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    135,791.00              2,614,209.00              2,750,000.00            -                            

MIP 023  
Transit Construction Link Road Local  
MTM -                           300.00                        300.00                      -                            
Revenue Co Cash Match 5,183.90            100,929.11              -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    106,113.01              316,021.71                 422,134.72               -                            
SafeRIde Medicaid 109,317.95          109,317.95              51,248.75                   171,984.39               11,417.69                 
COSA Funds -                     -                           157,562.78        19,088.85             44,046.81             -                      699.77                   -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    221,398.21              121,042.82                 341,741.26               (699.77)                     
AMR Medicaid 11,417.69            11,417.69                77,709.31                   77,709.31                 (11,417.69)                
TOTAL 5,183.90            100,929.11              157,562.78        19,088.85             44,046.81             120,735.64          699.77                   -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    448,246.86              566,322.59                 1,013,869.68            (699.77)                     

GREYHOUND SERVICES MIP 010
ICB Local  Period: 09/01/2021 thru 08/31/20222
Services Program Income 1,145.71            673.26                     711.33               564.40                  809.54                  453.48                 646.04                   -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    5,003.76                  -                              9,010.00                   4,006.24                   
Pass-Thru Revenue 3,733.00            3,819.15                  3,177.10            5,082.00               4,233.25               4,301.00              5,982.65                -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    30,328.15                -                              43,048.00                 12,719.85                 
Medical Funds -                     1,696.14                  2,942.72            2,868.86               2,051.98               2,482.55              545.94                   -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    12,588.19                -                              20,684.00                 8,095.81                   
TOTAL 4,878.71            6,188.55                  6,831.15            8,515.26               7,094.77               7,237.03              7,174.63                -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    47,920.10                -                              72,742.00                 24,821.90                 

MIP 018
Extended Medicaid Transportation Local  Period: 09/01/2021 thru 08/31/2022

Medical Funds 1,543.12            2,246.11                  2,673.33            2,613.99               2,545.77               1,628.54              2,634.25                -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    15,885.11                -                              22,900.00                 7,014.89                   
TOTAL 1,543.12            2,246.11                  2,673.33            2,613.99               2,545.77               1,628.54              2,634.25                -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    15,885.11                -                              22,900.00                 7,014.89                   

MIP 013
TML Depot Insurance Repairs Insurance   

TML Insurance Funds 94.25                 -                           -                     21,463.94             -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    21,558.19                -                              21,558.19                 -                            
TOTAL 94.25                 -                           -                     21,463.94             -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    21,558.19                -                              21,558.19                 -                            

MIP L01
Link Road Facility Local   

Link Road Facility -                     -                           -                     -                        13,109.07             41,198.06            32,045.02              -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    86,352.15                -                              190,247.00               103,894.85               
TOTAL -                     -                           -                     -                        13,109.07             41,198.06            32,045.02              -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    86,352.15                -                              190,247.00               103,894.85               

Grant Award started March 2020

Grant Award started March 2020

Grant Award started March 2020



CONCHO VALLEY TRANSIT DISTRICT
September 2021 through August 2022  

     CARES ACT PROJECTS
SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG   TOTAL Request BUDGET Variance

Grant 800  
TX-2020-096-00 Y364 CARES ACT FED  
Operations 30.09.08 -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           1,684,686.00              1,684,686.00            -                            
Preventative Maint 11.7A.00 -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           185,891.00                 185,891.00               -                            
Acquire mobile surv/security 11.42.09 -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           13,758.00                   287,696.00               273,938.00               
Acquire misc support equip 11.42.20 -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           87,073.00                   100,000.00               12,927.00                 
Replacement >30ft 11.12.03 -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           -                              1,200,000.00            1,200,000.00            
Replacement <30ft 11.12.04 -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           -                              575,000.00               575,000.00               
Replacement trolley 11.12.09 -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           -                              200,000.00               200,000.00               
Acquire misc support equip 11.42.20 -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           5,539.00                     5,539.00                   -                            
Charter Revenue -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           2,125.00                     2,125.00                   -                            
Medical Funds (to cover rounding) -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           1,150.97                     1,150.97                   -                            
TOTAL CFDA 20.507 -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           1,980,222.97              4,242,087.97            2,261,865.00            

 

Rural 5311 Grant 825  
5311-2021-CVTD-00026 CARES ACT SAF  
Operations 30.09.08 -                     32,868.00                3,729.00            -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    36,597.00                281,342.00                 317,939.00               -                            
Preventative Maint 11.7A.00 -                     10,460.00                15,345.00          19.00                    -                        910.00                 1,747.00                -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    28,481.00                21,288.00                   50,000.00                 231.00                      
Project Administration 11.79.00 -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           50,258.00                   50,258.00                 -                            
Acq-Misc Equip 11.42.20 1,999.00            31,867.00                -                     11,312.00             -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    45,178.00                7,591.00                     755,685.00               702,916.00               
Revenue Co Cash Match -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           0.92                            0.92                          -                            
Charter Revenue 241.00               -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           241.00                        241.00                      -                            
CVEDD Contract -                     -                           
Medical Funds (to cover rounding) -                     2.58                         (0.20)                  1.28                      -                        0.23                     0.53                       -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    4.42                         4.93                            751.00                      741.65                      
TOTAL CFDA 20.509 2,240.00            75,197.58                19,073.80          11,332.28             -                        910.23                 1,747.53                -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    110,260.42              360,479.00                 1,174,874.92            703,888.65               

American Rescue Plan  Act 2021
SEPT OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG   TOTAL Request BUDGET Variance

Grant U02  Request
FTA TX-2021-073-00 ARP FED  
Operations 30.09.08 -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           -                              738,938.00               738,938.00               
Medical Funds (to cover rounding) -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           -                              -                            -                            
TOTAL CFDA 20.507 -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        -                      -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    -                           -                              738,938.00               738,938.00               

 

Rural 5311 Grant R02  
5311-2021-CVTD-00079 ARP SAF  
Operations 30.09.08 -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        11,925.00            48,655.00              -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    60,580.00                -                              73,190.00                 12,610.00                 
Medical Funds (to cover rounding) -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        0.84                     -                        -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    0.84                         -                              -                            (0.84)                         
TOTAL CFDA 20.509 -                     -                           -                     -                        -                        11,925.84            48,655.00              -                     -                   -                        -                    -                    60,580.84                -                              73,190.00                 12,609.16                 

Grant Award started Sept 2021

Period: 10/29/21 thru 12/31/2022

Period: 02/17/21 thru 12/31/2022

Grant Award started June 2020



 

 
 
Memo  
 
To: CVTD Board of Directors 
 
From: CVTD Admin 
 
Date: 05/11/2022  
 
Re: CONSIDERATION & APPROVAL ± ITEM 7 
 
 
ITEM 7 
 
CONSIDERATION & APPROVAL for the Executive Director to 
purchase fixed route and demand response vehicles for CVTD fleet in an 
amount not to exceed $1,975,000. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
____________________________ ___________________________ 
Chairman ± Judge Steve Floyd   Vice-chairman - Councilman Harry Thomas 
 

Approved at the CVTD Board Meeting on this 11th day of May, 2022.  

 
 

 



Memo 
To: CVTD Board of Directors 

From: CVTD Admin 

Date: 05/11/2022  

Re: CONSIDERATION & APPROVAL ± ITEM 8 

ITEM �

CONSIDERATION & APPROVAL for the Executive Director to 
purchase a UTV in an amount not to exceed $30,000. 

______________________________ ___________________________ 
Chairman ± Judge Steve Floyd Vice-chairman - Councilman Harry Thomas 

Approved at the CVTD Board Meeting on this 11th day of May, 2022 



 

 
 
Memo  
 
To: CVTD Board of Directors 
 
From: CVTD Admin 
 
Date: 05/11/2022  
 
Re: REVIEW & APPROVAL ± ITEM 9 
 
 
ITEM 9 
 
REVIEW & APPROVAL of the 2021 Concho Valley Regional 
Coordination Transportation Plan. 
 
 
 
 
______________________________ ___________________________ 
Chairman ± Judge Steve Floyd   Vice-chairman - Councilman Harry Thomas 
 

Approved at the CVTD Board Meeting on this 11th day of May, 2022 
 



The 2021 Concho Valley  

Regional Coordination Transportation Plan 

December 10, 2021 

 A plan for closing gaps in public transportation services for  
Coke, Concho, Crockett, Irion, Kimble, Mason, McCulloch, Menard, Reagan, 

Schleicher, Sterling, Sutton, and Tom Green counties. 

Prepared by: Dick Apronti, Ph.D.��$VVLVWDQW�3URIHVVRU��Angelo State 
University 

Linda Abernathy, Research Assistant� Angelo State University 

Daniela Munoz, Research Assistant� Angelo State University 

Ryan Jansa, Regional Services Coordinator� Concho Valley 
Transit District 

-D\ORQ�6HDOHV��5HJLRQDO�&RRUGLQDWRU���*UDQW�$GPLQLVWUDWRU��
&RQFKR�9DOOH\�7UDQVLW�'LVWULFW�



 

i 
 

Acknowledgements 

Concho Valley Transit District would like to acknowledge the Regional Coordination Planning 
Committee (RCPC) for all of their hard work and effort that was put in to make this plan come together. 
With our knowledgeable and compassionate representatives, Concho Valley Transit District is able to 
better understand the specific and individual needs of our very special community. This information will 
allow CVTD to provide the best service to all those who you care so dearly for. RCPC, we thank you for 
everything you do! 

 

 



 

ii 
 

Contents 
Acknowledgements ........................................................................................................................................ i 

Executive Summary ..................................................................................................................................... iv 

I. INTRODUCTION ................................................................................................................................ 1 

The Regional Coordination Process .............................................................................................................. 2 

II. TRANSPORTATION RESOURCES IN THE REGION ..................................................................... 5 

Types of Transportation Resources: ............................................................................................................. 5 

Public Transportation Providers.................................................................................................................... 5 

Medical Transportation ................................................................................................................................. 5 

Private Transport Providers .......................................................................................................................... 6 

Providers and Vehicle Resource Inventory ................................................................................................... 6 

Client-Focused Services ........................................................................................................................ 9 

III. &2035(+(16,9(�$66(660(17�2)�7+(�38%/,&¶6�810(7�75$163257$7,21�
NEEDS, ASSESSMENT OF OVERLAPS AND GAPS IN THE DELIVERY OF TRANSPORTATION 
SERVICES & GAP ANALYSIS ................................................................................................................ 13 

Geographical Data ...................................................................................................................................... 13 

Transit Dependent Groups .......................................................................................................................... 14 

The Transit Gap Index (TGI) ...................................................................................................................... 16 

Identification of Urban and Rural Public Transit Needs ............................................................................. 18 

Survey of Public Transportation Service Drivers and Transit Passengers .................................................. 19 

Prioritization of Needs ................................................................................................................................ 21 

Gap Analysis of Unmet Transportation Needs ........................................................................................... 23 

Tom Green County ............................................................................................................................. 26 

Comparing Transit Dependent Groups ............................................................................................... 26 

Summary of Findings from the Transit Gap Study ............................................................................. 27 

IV. PLANNING FOR COMPREHENSIVE SERVICES ..................................................................... 28 

V. INTEGRATED PLANNING PROCESSES ....................................................................................... 29 

VI. VISION, MISSION, GOALS, AND OBJECTIVES ...................................................................... 32 

Project Development ................................................................................................................................... 32 

VII. SUSTAINABLE PLANNING & IMPLEMENTATION PLAN .................................................... 37 

VIII. PERFORMANCE MEASURES TO EVALUATE EFFECTIVENESS ........................................ 39 

Local Performance Metrics ................................................................................................................. 39 

Statewide Performance Metrics .......................................................................................................... 39 

IX. References ....................................................................................................................................... 40 

X. Acronyms ............................................................................................................................................ 41 



 

iii 
 

XI. Appendix ......................................................................................................................................... 42 

Appendix A: Planning Project Instruments - Survey for Drivers ............................................................... 43 

Appendix B: Planning Project Instruments ± Results from Driver Survey................................................. 44 

Appendix C: Planning Project Instruments ± Survey for Passengers ......................................................... 45 

Appendix D: Planning Project Instruments ± Result from Passenger Survey ............................................ 46 

Appendix E: Planning Project Instruments ± Prioritization of Needs Survey ............................................ 47 

Appendix F: Stakeholder Signature Approval and Plan Adoption ............................................................. 48 

 

 



 

iv 
 

Executive Summary 

The Concho Valley stretches over 16,000 square miles and encompasses 13 sprawling counties. 
These counties house nearly 160,000 residents with a vast array of transportation needs. The 
Concho Valley populaces are constantly moving from travel to work, doctors¶ appointments, or 
simply to the grocery store. These are a few reasons that Concho Valley Transit District (CVTD) 
has made regional coordination a top priority. CVTD strives to be able to provide satisfactory 
service in these very rural areas. Information gathered from the Regional Coordination Plan 
Committee (RCPC), CVTD drivers, and previous census data was used to conduct multiple 
analyses of the current transportation needs for these vulnerable populations. The analyses were 
used to: highlight populations in need of transportation, measure the extent of their needs and 
understand where current services are meeting these needs, as well as where they are not meeting 
the needs. This plan serves as a document to identify gaps in services and, more importantly, 
how the community can fill these gaps and provide transportation to those groups and/or areas 
under service. 

The Transit Gap Index (TGI) analysis identified counties and transit dependent groups that were 
underserviced in the county. These results will allow CVTD to target the specific areas and 
populaces that are underserviced to fill gaps and provide the best possible transportation services 
for the residents of the Concho Valley. 



 

1 
 

I. INTRODUCTION 

The 78th Legislature¶s HB 3588, Article 13, established Regional Coordination to create 
opportunities and incentives for improving coordination of public transportation throughout the 
state. The statute changed the definition of public transportation to include service providers 
receiving federal, state, or local public funds for transit services to their clients. The authorizing 
legislation encourages coordination among agencies and programs to improve the delivery of 
regional transportation services and requires the development of region-wide service plans. 

A coordinated transit plan for the Concho Valley region was developed in 2016 through a 
partnership project between Concho Valley Transit District (CVTD), the Concho Valley 
Regional Coordination Planning Committee (RCPC), the Concho Valley Council of 
Governments (CVCOG), and Angelo State University (ASU). The plan requires an update every 
five years, and this report presents the update of the 2016 Concho Valley Regional Coordination 
Transportation Plan. 

CVTD is serving as the lead agency for this project to update the Regional Coordination 
Transportation Plan for the Concho Valley region. CVTD was initially authorized in 1986 under 
Texas Transportation Code, Chapter 458, to receive state funds for transit services as a rural 
transit district. Today, the public transportation system covers 12 central and western Texas 
counties, including Coke, Concho, Crockett, Irion, Kimble, McCulloch, Menard, Reagan, 
Schleicher, Sterling, Sutton, and Tom Green Counties (Figure 1). Though Mason County is part 
of Region 10, it is not included in the CVTD transit system because Hill Country Transit District 
provides its public transportation services. 

 



 

2 
 

The Regional Coordination Process 

The Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals with Disabilities (Section 5310) program 
requires that projects it funds are included in the locally developed, coordinated public transit-
human services transportation plan. The plan needs to be developed and approved through a 
process that includes participation by seniors, individuals with disabilities, representatives of 
public, private, and nonprofit transportation and human services providers, and other members of 
the public that use the transportation services. The requirements were met by involving the 
RCPC throughout the plan¶s development and current updates. The RCPC included public, 
private, and nonprofit transportation and human services providers. Viewpoints of seniors, 
individuals with disabilities, and members of the public that use the transportation services were 
collected in targeted qualitative surveys. 

The update to the Coordination Plan involved collaborations with the RCPC. On February 25, 
2021, ASU met with the RCPC steering committee to present the process for the study for 
discussion. A second meeting was held on June 30, 2021, to collect the RCPC members¶ 
viewpoints about the transit system¶s needs. After that, additional views were collected from 
other stakeholders, including transit drivers, transit passengers, and general residents of San 
Angelo. The information was summarized and presented to the RCPC on July 30, 2021. Table 1 
depicts the membership of the RCPC that participated in meetings and discussions to update the 
coordination plan. 

The RCPC shared their viewpoints on priorities for allocating limited transit resources based on 
their ³local wisdom´ about the community and its vulnerable populations. Members initially 
advocated priorities for transit service improvement to meet the needs of veterans, low-income 
individuals, seniors, and disabled persons. Members determined that a lack of awareness about 
the services offered by the CVTD was critical in addressing the priorities for transit service 
improvement. 

Table 1                                                                                                                                                                                           
Regional Coordination Planning Committee (RCPC), 2021 

Name Organizational Affiliation  Email 
Jeff York Concho Valley Transit District Jeff.york@cvcog.org  

Jaylon Seales Concho Valley Transit District jaylon.seales@cvcog.org  

Audrey Aguirre Concho Valley Transit District Audrey.aguirre@cvcog.org  

Mark Bethune CV Community Action Agency mbethune@cvcaa.org  

Albert Rodriguez CV Economic Development Albert.rodriguez@cvcog.org 

Dusty McCoy West Texas Counseling and Guidance dustym@wtcg.us  

Betty Teston Texas Hunger Initiative Betty_teston@baylor.edu 

Major Hofheins Metropolitan Planning Organization major.hofheins@cosatx.us 

Pete Madrid Metropolitan Planning Organization pete.madrid@cosatx.us 

Jennifer Juarez Metropolitan Planning Organization Jennifer.juarez@cosatx.us 

mailto:Jeff.york@cvcog.org
mailto:jaylon.seales@cvcog.org
mailto:Audrey.aguirre@cvcog.org
mailto:mbethune@cvcaa.org
mailto:Albert.rodriguez@cvcog.org
mailto:dustym@wtcg.us
mailto:Betty_teston@baylor.edu
mailto:major.hofheins@cosatx.us
mailto:pete.madrid@cosatx.us
mailto:Jennifer.juarez@cosatx.us


 

3 
 

Lisette Alverio Workforce Solutions lalverioperez@afsc.com 

Matt Groth Children's Advocacy Center of Tom Green County mgroth@cactomgreen.org 

Teresa Covey West Texas RSVP teresa.covey@cvcog.org 

Toni Roberts Area Agency on Aging toni.roberts@cvcog.org 

Duane Edmonson DuCar LLC b.b.galyon@suddenlink.net 

Richard Porter Citizen rl_porter@msn.com 

Annette Hernandez MHMR ahernandez@mhmrcv.org 

Armie Sanchez City of Sonora srcenter@sonora-texas.com 

Delma Childress TxDOT Delma.Childress@txdot.gov 

Erin Hernandez Economic Development Erin.hernandez@cvcog.org 

 

Collaboration between the Regional Services Coordinator and ASU produced two planning 
process elements during May, June, July, and August 2021. The first element was a qualitative 
survey. The second element was analyzing demographic data to produce a Transit Gap Index 
(TGI) designed to measure potential demand for public transit services across the 12 county 
service regions based on their proportionate size of transit-dependent populations. Dependent 
populations included in the TGI were workers, households with low vehicle access, medically 
underinsured groups, low-income residents, seniors, and disabled individuals. 

The TGI established a key demography-based pillar for the gap analysis and assessment of 
unmet transportation needs that inform this Coordination Transportation Plan. Using the 
combined results of the qualitative survey and the TGI, ASU proceeded to formulate a summary 
list of need statements. The process generated summary need statements on scheduling, 
awareness, accessibility, seniors, capacity, appointments, low vehicle access, veterans, 
uninsured, low income, disabilities, worker utilization, and Medicaid service. 

The following resources were used to develop the gap analysis and assessment: 

x Transit Gap Index (TGI) results based on regional demographic data. 
x Results of the survey of drivers. 
x Results of the survey of urban and rural transit passengers. 
x Results of a city-wide survey of residents. 
x Results of the ASU review of previous planning projects and transportation assessments. 
x Results of the prioritization of summary needs by the Steering Committee and RCPC. 
x Information provided by CVTD on the distribution of budget and resource allocations 

across the rural counties. 
x Information supplied by CVTD on rural ridership. 

This report presents the findings and recommendations of a transportation gaps analysis study for 
the Concho Valley Transit District. The study identified gaps between the personal mobility 
needs of residents and existing services to recommend actions to close the gaps. The study 
includes two meetings with the Regional Coordination Planning Committee (RCPC), surveys of 
transit riders, a city-wide survey, transit bus drivers, and a survey of the members of the RCPC. 
The surveys and the first meeting with the RCPC aimed to identify the respondents¶ needs or 

mailto:lalverioperez@afsc.com
mailto:mgroth@cactomgreen.org
mailto:teresa.covey@cvcog.org
mailto:toni.roberts@cvcog.org
mailto:b.b.galyon@suddenlink.net
mailto:rl_porter@msn.com
mailto:ahernandez@mhmrcv.org
mailto:srcenter@sonora-texas.com
mailto:Delma.Childress@txdot.gov
mailto:Erin.hernandez@cvcog.org


 

4 
 

issues of concern. During the second RCPC meeting, results of the various surveys were 
discussed to develop some recommendations for addressing the most prevalent needs from the 
survey. Information gathered during the meeting with RCPC was crucial to the preparation of 
this report.



 

5 
 

II. TRANSPORTATION RESOURCES IN THE REGION 

Types of Transportation Resources: 

Public Transportation Providers: receive funds through Federal grants provided by the Federal 
Transit Administration. The Texas Department of Transportation oversees these programs 
administered at the local level. 

Medical Transportation Providers offer non-emergency medical transportation by 
subcontracting with brokers that contract with Health and Human Services to provide 
transportation for Medicaid recipients. These providers can be Public Transportation providers or 
private entities and must follow all guidance provided by the broker regarding training for 
drivers, compliance with vehicle standards, and reimbursement. 

Client Based Providers offer transportation for their residents or recipients of their service. 

Private for Hire Providers are for-profit transportation providers such as taxi companies, 
OLPRXVLQH�VHUYLFHV��µ8EHU�¶ and intra-city providers. 

Public Transportation Providers 

The Concho Valley Transit is the primary public transportation provider for the regional 
planning area that includes 12 counties - Coke, Concho, Crockett, Irion, Kimble, McCulloch, 
Menard, Reagan, Schleicher, Sterling, Sutton, and Tom Green counties. The CVT provides urban 
services in the City of San Angelo and rural services to the outlying counties of the region and 
rural Tom Green County. The CVTD also operates charter services within the Concho Valley. 
Mason County receives public transportation services through Hill Country Transit District. 

The urban services offered in San Angelo include fixed-route services and ADA paratransit and 
demand response. The fixed-route service has six main routes, two routes that provide services to 
the Angelo State University community and one route for the Goodfellow Air Force Base. On 
weekdays, the general hours of operation are from 6:30 am to 7:30 pm. On Saturdays, transit 
services begin from 7:30 am to 6:30 pm. On Sundays, all CVTD services are closed. Each of the 
routes runs hourly. 

The CVTD deploys a fleet of wheelchair-accessible vehicles to service the rural areas of Tom 
Green County and the 11 additional member counties. Rural service is provided on a demand-
response basis. Patrons are required to book planned trips 24 ± 48 hours in advance and before 
3:00 pm the day before to assure proper area coverage. The services are operated on weekdays 
from 7::30 am to 5:30 pm. Service on Saturdays vary. The demand-response services are based 
on a rideshare system, so the initial pickup and return time in the rural areas will vary based on 
the number of clients from each county and the combined schedules for that day. 

Medical Transportation 

Medical care is limited in rural communities, so most rural areas in the district depend on the 
CVTD rural demand-response service as the main public transportation. The patrons schedule 
their appointments 24 to 48 hours in advance to be transported to health care facilities in San 



 

6 
 

Angelo. The CVTD also provides paratransit services for those persons whose severity of 
disability prevents them from using the Urban Fixed Route system. The paratransit is D�³FXUE-to-
curb,´�VKDred ride system comparable to regular fixed-route services. Users must fill out a form 
to confirm their eligibility to utilize the service. The forms are available on cvtd.org or mailed to 
addresses upon request. Other client-based transportation service providers such as the Bronte 
Health and Rehab, Christians in Action, and various senior centers also provide transportation 
services to the health centers. 

Private Transport Providers 

Intercity bus service is limited in the Concho Valley region. Currently, Greyhound Lines provide 
private intercity bus service in CVTD¶s service area, and CVTD provides connections to these 
services at its multimodal terminal facility located in San Angelo. In addition, some health and 
human services organizations have transportation for clients.  

Taxi service companies have increased slightly and operate in the region and provide service on 
a 24-hour, 7-day basis. However, these services are based in San Angelo, providing limited 
access to rural residents. Compounding the limitation is the general inability of taxis to provide 
paratransit services. 

Providers and Vehicle Resource Inventory 

ASU created a listing of transportation service providers from internet searches and interviews 
either by phone or in-person of some transportation service providers in the region. Not all 
providers responded to the request for an interview. The listing is not intended to be a 
comprehensive provider inventory. Instead, the providers represent potential partners for 
coordination with CVTD based on their target service population, fleet availability, service 
schedules, rates and fees, and willingness to share services. The following presents a summary of 
the findings of the transportation service providers. 

Red Ball Taxi and Shuttle Service 

1302 S Oakes St. 

San Angelo, TX 

Phone: 325 942 8899 

Services provided: a taxi and shuttle service (no wheelchair accessibility provided). 

Rates: $4 per mile or $20 flat rate anywhere in town 

Fleet Size: Several 11 passenger vehicles utilized 

Concho Valley Errand Services, LLC 

San Angelo, TX 

Phone: 325 315 4275 



 

7 
 

Services provided: errand running such as dry-cleaning drop-off and pickup, grocery shopping, 
package pickup, etc.; elderly services such as welfare checks or assistance with shopping; also a 
Medicaid transportation provider must request Concho Valley Errand Service when arranging 
transportation with Medicaid 

Rates:   -       Within Tom Green County: $18 per hour 

- Outside of Tom Green County: $1.50 per mile 

Fleet size: 2 company vehicles 

Concho Concierge 

1908 W Concho Ave 

Grape Creek, TX 

Phone: 325 450 5534 

Services Provided: hospitality service, errand running service, transportation service exclusively 
for their private members 

Rates: Private membership for special errand demands; prices vary depending on errand and 
distance. The basic rate within the county is $10. Call for quotes. 

Fleet size: Personal vehicles of employee  

Hill Country Transit District 

Hours of Operation: 8 am ± 4 pm 

Fixed Route: Fleet Size- 9 city buses (9 routes) 

Fee rate: Base rate- $1.00 

                  60+, Medicare, 12 years and younger, the disabled, students - $0.50 

     Under two years ± free 

                  Monthly pass - $20.00    

ADA Paratransit: Operates within ¾ mile of each fixed route 

  Fleet size: dependent on the number of runs (1 vehicle per run) 

                               Fee rate: $2.00 for each one-way trip 

Rural: Hours of Operation- 8:00 am ± 4:00 pm, call to schedule trip 

           Counties served - Coryell, Hamilton, Lampasas, Milam, Mills, Mason, Llano, Rural Bell 
County, and San Saba. 

           Fee rate: varies accordingly to distance traveled. 



 

8 
 

Checker Cab 

1302 S Oakes St. 

San Angelo, TX 

325 655 3105 

Services Provided: 24-hour transportation service for the public, inside and outside of Tom 
Green county 

Rates: $30 per hour in town, $4 per mile out of town (Tom Green) 

Fleet size: Cabs utilized are five seaters and are wheelchair accessible  

Concho Valley Transit District 

Fixed Route: General hours of operation- 6:30 am- 7:30 pm, M-F and  

          7:30 -7:30 on Saturdays, closed on Sundays 

                       Fare: $1.00 for adults, free for children under 6, daily pass is $2.00, 

         Monthly pass is $30.00 

                       Fleet Size: 14 buses 

 Rural: Plan 24-48 hours in advance and before 3 pm the day before 

             Hours of operation: Mon-Fri 7:30 am- 5:30 pm, varies on Saturdays  

             Fleet size: 17 buses 

Rideshare system, Counties: Coke, Concho, Crocket, Irion, Kimble, Menard, McCulloch, 
Reagan, Schleicher, Sterling, Sutton, and Tom Green Rural 

        Fee Rate: One way- $2.00, Round trip- $4.00 (within city limits) 

        Free Fare for all previously listed counties   

Paratransit: Wheelchair accessible, demand response, same hours of operation as fixed route  

         Fee Rate: One way- $2.00, Round trip- $4.00 (within city limits) 

                    Fleet Size: 18 buses 

Dustbowl Transportation and Recovery Service 

261 N Oxford Dr. 

San Angelo, TX 

Phone: 325 812 4320 

Services Provided: Towing and transporting heavy cargo for the public 



 

9 
 

Rates: Call for a quote, depending on the load being transported  

Roadrunner Pedicab 

4112 W 306 Loop #412 

San Angelo, TX 

Phone: 325 655 5170 

 

Client-Focused Services 

House of Faith 

321 Montecito Dr. 

San Angelo, TX 

Phone: 325 486 8637 

Services provided: Picking up and dropping off students after church-related events for House of 
Faith 

Fleet Size: 12-13 vans, 4-5 buses 

West Texas RSVP 

618 S Chadbourne St. 

San Angelo, TX 

Phone: 325 944 9669 

Services Provided: medical appointments for the frail elderly exclusively. RSVP conducts client 
intake to ensure the client has no other means of transportation. 

Fleet size: volunteer vehicle 

Rio Concho Manor: 

401 Rio Concho Dr. 

San Angelo, TX 

Phone: 325 653 3351 

Services Provided: Transportation for residents only 

Rio Concho West 

6359 Appaloosa Trail 

San Angelo, TX 



 

10 
 

Phone: 325 944 9564 

Services Provided: Transportation for residents only 

Stonebridge Training Residence 

79 Gillis St. 

San Angelo, TX 

Phone: 325 655 3884 

Services provided: 24-hour transportation services for appointments and errands for residents 
only (due to Covid-19, this decreased to once a week). 

Fleet Size: One- 13 passenger van, one- 7 passenger van 

Baptist Retirement Community 

902-903 Main Street 

San Angelo, TX 

Phone:  800 608 8820 

Services provided: Transportation for residents only, five days a week for appointments and 
errands. 

Christians in Action 

1505 S Chadbourne St. 

San Angelo, TX 

Phone: 325 655 5127 

Services Provided: This agency provides Concho Valley Transit District bus passes for those 
seeking transportation as part of their services 

Rates: call organization for more information 

MHMR of the Concho Valley 

1501 W. Beauregard 

San Angelo, TX 

Phone: 325 658 7750 

Services provided: transportation for daily activities for their live-in clients; transportation for 
their vocational services and employment assistance/supported employment program clients   

Rates: MHMR can only provide transit services for their clients 

Bronte Health and Rehab 



 

11 
 

900 S State St. 

Bronte, TX 

Phone: 325 473 3621 

Service provided: residents are transported to various activities and medical appointments 

Rates: free for residents, CVTD fares for the public 

Bronte Senior Center 

613 E Oliver Ave. 

Bronte, TX 

Phone: 325 473 6471 

Service provided: driving meals to homebound seniors 

Rates: provided as part of nutrition program 

Robert Lee Senior Center 

307 W. 8th Street 

Robert Lee, TX 

Phone: 325 453 2511 

Service provided: driving meals to homebound seniors 

Sutton County Senior Center 

102 S Wilson St. 

Sonora, TX 

Phone: 325 387 5657 

Service provided: driving meals to homebound seniors 

Rates: provided as part of nutrition program 

Rideshare Companies (Uber and Lyft)  

Rideshare companies such as Uber and Lyft operate in San Angelo. 

Services provided: On-demand transportation for the public  

Fleet size: private vehicles are used by drivers who sign up to provide rideshare services 

Rates:  fee rate is based on mileage traveled by the rider  

Irion ISD 



 

12 
 

302 N. 3rd Street  

Mertzon, TX  

Phone: 325-835-6111 

Service provided: vehicles exclusively for school-related activities 

Schleicher ISD 

205 Fields Ave 

Eldorado, TX  

Phone: 325-853-2514 

Service provided: vehicles exclusively for school-related activities 

Brady ISD 

1003 West 11th Street 

Brady, TX 

Phone: 325 597 2301 

Services Provided: vehicles exclusively for school-related activities 

Reagan ISD 

1111 12th Street 

Big Lake, TX 

Phone: 325-884-3705 

Service provided: vehicles exclusively for school-related activities 

San Angelo ISD 

1621 University Ave. 

San Angelo, TX  

Phone: 325-947-3700 

Service provided: vehicles exclusively for school-related activities 

 



 

13 
 

III. &2035(+(16,9(�$66(660(17�2)�7+(�38%/,&¶6�810(7�
TRANSPORTATION NEEDS, ASSESSMENT OF OVERLAPS AND GAPS IN 
THE DELIVERY OF TRANSPORTATION SERVICES & GAP ANALYSIS 

Geographical Data 

Table 2 depicts the basic demographic features of Concho Valley Transit¶s service area. The 
population of the area is 156,012 people. Approximately three of every four residents live in 
Tom Green County. The populations in the remaining rural counties range from 1,231 to 8,057 
people. The proportion of elderly residents in the CVTD service region is significantly higher 
than the statewide ratio. More than 25,000 people age 65 and over live in the area. They 
comprise slightly more than 16 percent of the population. This compares to approximately 13 
percent for the statewide population. 

Table 2 Concho Valley Transit District Demography 
Population by County  

County Number of People Percent 
Coke 3303 2.1% 
Concho 3266 2.1% 
Crockett 3484 2.2% 
Irion 1620 1.0% 
Kimble 4373 2.8% 
McCulloch 8057 5.2% 
Menard 2119 1.4% 
Reagan 3766 2.4% 
Schleicher 2983 1.9% 
Sterling 1231 0.8% 
Sutton 3824 2.5% 
Tom Green 117986 75.6% 
Service Area Total 156012 100% 

Age Distribution 
Age Groups Number of People Percent 
Under age 18 36961 23.7% 
18 to 64 93420 59.9% 
65 and older 25631 16.4% 
Service Area Total 156012 100% 

Race and Ethnicity 
Race Number of People Percent 

White, non-Hispanic 83256 53.4% 
Black, non-Hispanic 5052 3.2% 
Hispanic 57940 37.1% 
Other 9764 6.3% 
Service Area Total 156012 100% 



 

14 
 

 

 

White, non-Hispanic residents form a majority of the regional population. Hispanics comprise 
the largest minority population group and the most rapidly growing ethnic segment. Indeed, the 
Hispanic population is changing the ethnic composition of the region. Hispanics account for 
most of the population growth in this slow-growing region of Texas. 

Transit Dependent Groups 

Table 3 depicts the region¶s transit-dependent population groups, including employed workers; 
seniors; children; disabled persons; individuals with low vehicle access; people living on a low 
income; and limited English-speaking groups. 

The number of employed workers using public transportation to commute to work is relatively 
small in the CVTD region. The 2015-2019 American Community Survey estimates about 152 
workers in the region utilize public transit. This amounts to 0.21 percent of the region¶s 73,266 
employed workers. The estimate for employed workers statewide that use public transit is 1.3 
percent. 

The same American Community Survey dataset indicates about 3,289 of almost 57,000 
households in the region have no vehicle access. Another 4,191 are identified as low access 
households because they have three or more occupants with access to only one vehicle. About 
13.2 percent of all households in the region have low or no access to vehicles. 

The Census Bureau used an income of $24,257 for a household of four as the threshold for 
statistical identification of people in poverty in 2015. More than 23,000 residents of the CVTD 
region live below the poverty threshold. More than 9,000 of these individuals have incomes 
below half the threshold. Nearly 38 percent of the regional population lives on incomes less than 
twice the poverty threshold. 

Transit dependent groups in the CVTD region include people with certain health insurance 
statuses. Approximately 30,220 people, or 19.7 percent of the regional population, have no 
health insurance. An additional 21,389 people (13.9%) have Medicaid coverage, and those with 
health service from the Veterans Administration (V.A.) number approximately 656 (0.4% of the 
population).  

Seniors aged 65 and older comprise about 25631 residents or 16.4 percent of the regional 
population. Individuals with a disability (including seniors) make up 14.1 percent (21,571 
persons) of the population. Children under age 18 number 35,944 or 23.4 percent.  

A household without members over the age of 13 able to speak English well is defined as 
Limited English Proficient (LEP) by the Census Bureau. Approximately 2,238 of the region¶s 
56,932 households are LEP residences. About 11,333 or 7.9 percent of the population age five 
and over live in these predominantly Spanish-speaking households. Similarly, according to 
American Community Survey estimates, about 7.3 percent (5,126) of the region¶s 69,906 
workers are LEP.

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey 
2010-2019: ACS 10-Year Estimates Data Profiles 



 

15 
 

 

Table 3 
Transit Dependent Populations in the Concho Valley 

Worker Utilization 
Workers Number Percent 
Workers using public transit 152 0.21% 
Employed Workers 73266 100% 

Household Vehicle Access 
Households with no vehicle 3270 5.7% 
Low access households 3724 6.4% 
Total Households 57875 100% 

Low Income 
Poverty Status Number Percent 
Below twice poverty level 49822 31.9% 
Below poverty level 20658 13.2% 
Under 50% poverty level 8601 5.5% 
Total Population 156012 100% 

Health Coverage 
Health Insurance Status Number  Percent 
Medicaid 28257 18.1% 
Veterans Administration 4644 3.0% 
No Health Insurance 22656 14.5% 
Total Population 156012 100% 

Seniors 
Seniors Number Percent 
Age 65 and Older 25631 16.4% 
Total Population 156012 100% 

Disabled 
Disability Status Number Percent 
People with a Disability 20961 13.4% 
Total Population 156012 100% 

Children 
Children Number Percent 
Under age 18 36961 23.7% 
Total Population 156012 100% 

Limited English Proficiency Households (LEP) 
Proficiency Status Households Percent 
Limited English Proficient 2290 4.0% 
Total Households 57875 100% 
Source: U.S. Census Bureau, America Community Survey 2015-2019, 5-
Year sample estimates  
  

 



 

16 
 

The Transit Gap Index (TGI) 

ASU developed the Transit Gap Index (TGI) to integrate measured estimates of demand for rural 
public transit into the gap analysis and assessment of unmet transportation needs. The TGI 
includes separate estimates for workers, veterans, households with low vehicle access, Medicaid 
enrollees, the medically uninsured, low-income residents, seniors, and disabled individuals.  

Although the American Community Survey interviews about 3.5 million households each year, it 
turns out the annual samples from cities or counties with fewer than 65,000 residents are too 
small to compute estimates with acceptable margins of error. Consequently, the Bureau 
combines interviews conducted over five years to yield small populations (under 65,000). Thus, 
the 5-Year samples depict populations, and population trends, over five-year periods.  

Still, samples representing small populations remain subject to higher degrees of error, even 
using the Bureau¶s 5-Year sample files. This is why trend data for an area like Sterling County 
often show wider swings up and down over time than Tom Green County. 

After acquiring the datasets, ASU computed the percentages of workers using public transit; 
households with low vehicle access; persons with Medicaid coverage; veterans with V.A. health 
services; individuals with no health insurance; residents with low income under twice the 
poverty level; senior population; and disabled persons. Then, average proportions for Texas and 
each of the 12 CVTD counties were calculated across the available datasets. Table 4 reports the 
results. 

Table 4 
Percentage of Transit Dependent Groups in the Population of Texas and the CVTD Counties 

County Worker 
Utilization 

Low 
Vehicle 
Access 

Medicaid Veterans No Health 
Insurance 

Under 
Twice 

Poverty 

Seniors Disability 

Coke 0.00% 13.18% 7.45% 7.62% 14.82% 35.23% 28.49% 16.86% 
Concho 0.00% 10.64% 6.65% 7.51% 12.71% 33.85% 19.96% 9.40% 
Crockett 0.00% 6.94% 9.07% 6.25% 20.98% 30.34% 14.95% 7.49% 
Irion 1.03% 4.25% 8.98% 8.23% 14.71% 29.88% 16.85% 12.10% 
Kimble 0.55% 12.96% 7.38% 12.26% 18.32% 43.70% 28.97% 20.03% 
McCulloch 0.08% 9.00% 6.36% 8.86% 20.64% 41.78% 21.83% 19.46% 
Menard 0.00% 9.57% 6.65% 11.71% 30.95% 39.39% 31.43% 27.56% 
Reagan 0.00% 12.64% 3.56% 4.54% 22.11% 29.48% 8.18% 7.81% 
Schleicher 0.90% 6.42% 7.35% 3.19% 21.61% 29.50% 18.77% 11.16% 
Sterling 0.00% 5.68% 3.69% 4.71% 22.95% 36.35% 12.67% 11.86% 
Sutton 0.00% 14.73% 7.48% 10.16% 17.80% 31.21% 18.07% 10.02% 
Tom Green 0.21% 12.17% 4.50% 10.71% 13.67% 32.89% 15.12% 13.10% 
Texas 1.33% 12.58% 17.22% 5.01% 16.52% 31.85% 12.89% 11.30% 

Source: U.S. Census Bureau, American Community Survey, 5 Year sample estimates, 2015-2019 

 



 

17 
 

After computing the average proportions across all the years, ASU developed a series of Transit 
Gap Index (TGI) scores to rate potential demand for transit services in the various counties. The 
rating method used the percentages for Texas (the bottom row in Table 4) as benchmarks to 
derive the TGI scores depicted in Table 5. 

Table 5 
Transit Gap Index (TGI) 

County Worker 
Utilization 

Low 
Vehicle 
Access 

Medicaid Veterans No Health 
Insurance 

Under 
Twice 

Poverty 

Seniors Disability 

Coke 5 4 1 5 3 4 5 5 
Concho 5 3 1 5 3 4 5 3 
Crockett 5 2 2 4 5 3 4 2 
Irion 1 1 2 5 3 3 5 4 
Kimble 3 4 1 5 4 5 5 5 
McCulloch 5 2 1 5 4 5 5 5 
Menard 5 3 1 5 5 4 5 5 
Reagan 5 4 1 3 5 3 2 2 
Schleicher 2 2 1 2 5 3 5 3 
Sterling 5 1 1 3 5 4 3 4 
Sutton 5 4 1 5 4 3 5 3 
Tom Green 4 3 1 5 3 4 4 4 

 

 

Table 5 scores are based on comparisons between the percentages of transit-dependent groups in 
the county populations and the proportions for Texas (Table 4). However, scoring on utilization 
of the public transit by workers required a somewhat different approach to scoring than the other 
seven groups in Table 3. The following rubrics describe the scoring process: 

1) The process assigns each CVTD county a score ranging from ³Low Need = 1´ to ³High 
Need = 5.´ the scoring method assumes counties with higher percentages of households 
with low vehicle access, individuals on Medicaid and Veterans Health services, 
medically uninsured, individuals with low income, seniors, and persons with disabilities 
have more need for public transit service than counties with lower percentages. Texas 
statewide population percentages for these transit-dependent groups served as 
comparison benchmarks as follows: 

a. ³Low Need´ scores of 1 indicate counties with group proportions that are more 
than 50 percent below the corresponding statewide benchmark. 

b. Scores of 2 specify counties with group proportions that are more than 25 through 
50 percent below the statewide benchmark. 

c. Scores of 3 depict counties with group proportions 25 to 1 percent less than the 
statewide benchmark. 

d. Scores of 4 designate counties with group proportions from 0 to 25 percent more 
than the statewide benchmark. 



 

18 
 

e. ³High Need´ scores of 5 indicate counties with group proportions that are more 
than 25 percent above the corresponding statewide benchmark. 

2) Scoring for workers using public transportation for the journey to work presents a unique 
situation. First, the method is the opposite of the other transit-dependent groups in Table 
5, the scoring method assumes that counties with lower percentages of transit workers 
have more need for service. The available American Community Survey data indicates 
that virtually no workers (0%) in eight counties use transit, and the proportions for the 
other four counties are much lower (at least 80% below) than the statewide benchmark of 
1.6 percent. In addition, the fact that few Texas workers, and still fewer Concho Valley 
workers, use public transportation presents a special circumstance for scoring. 
Consequently, the following describes the scoring rubric for worker utilization of transit: 

a. ³High Need´ scores of 5 indicate counties where more than 90 percent of workers 
below the statewide benchmark do not use public transit for the journey to work. 

b. Scores of 4 depict counties where more than 75 through 90 percent of workers 
below the statewide benchmark do not use public transit for the journey to work. 

c. Scores of 3 depict counties where more than 50 through 75 percent of workers 
below the statewide benchmark do not use public transit for the journey to work. 

d. Scores of 2 depict counties where more than 25 through 50 percent of workers 
below the statewide benchmark do not use public transit for the journey to work. 

e. Scores of 1 depict counties where 25 percent or less of workers below the 
statewide benchmark do not use public transit for the journey to work. 

Identification of Urban and Rural Public Transit Needs 

The 2016 Concho Valley Regional Coordination Transportation Plan identified 13 needs 
statements as listed below. These needs statements were reviewed and included in the 2021 
Coordination Plan¶s assessment of needs. 

1. Scheduling: More frequent and convenient stops and destinations with consistent run 
times. Historically, the demand-response system serving the rural Region 10 areas has 
had scheduling inefficiencies, and there are no regularly scheduled stops and destinations. 

2. Awareness: Increase public information and awareness of transit services. 
3. Accessibility: More accessibility for transit-dependent populations not being served. 
4. Seniors: improve awareness and access to transit services for the senior population in the 

region. 
5. Capacity: Increase vehicles and services in rural areas; enable more intra-county and 

intra-city service. 
6. Appointments: Improve appointment procedures and scheduling in demand-response 

services; resolve issues over scheduling Medicaid and other priority riders. 
7. Low Vehicle Access: Improve awareness and access to transit services by regional 

residents lacking access to vehicles. 
8. Veterans: Improve awareness and access to transit services by veterans, active-duty 

service personnel, and their families, especially for medical and workforce purposes. 



 

19 
 

9. Uninsured: Improve awareness and access to transit services for medical purposes by 
medically uninsured residents in the region. 

10. Low Income: Improve awareness and access to transit services for low-income residents 
of the region. 

11. Disabilities: Improve awareness and access to transit services for the disabled residents 
of the region. 

12. Worker Utilization: Increase utilization of transit services for the trip to/from work. 
13. Medicaid Service: Improve services for Medicaid patients in rural areas. 

These 13 needs were identified by reviewing 11 prior planning projects and transportation 
assessments completed in the CVTD service region between 2005 and 2014. The reviewed 
documents were: 

x San Angelo Area Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan, 2005 
x CVCOG Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy, 2011 
x Assessing the Transit Needs of Concho Valley Residents, 2012 
x Assessing the Transit Need of ASU Students, 2013 
x CVTD Concho Valley Regional Coordination Transportation Plan, 2013 
x SA-MPO Survey of Pedestrian and Bicycle Project Priorities, 2013 
x CVCOG Area Agency on Aging, Area Plan, 2014 
x SA-MPO Public Participation Plan, 2014 
x SA-MPO Transportation Improvement Program (TIP), 2014 
x SA-MPO Transportation Needs Assessment Survey, 2014 
x SA-MPO Voyage 2040 Long-Range Transportation Plan, 2014 

Survey of Public Transportation Service Drivers and Transit Passengers 

ASU assisted the Regional Coordinator at CVOG in conducting a qualitative survey of the rural 
and urban vehicle drivers and a sample of passengers on urban and rural transit buses. The two 
surveys are presented in Appendix B. 

The Coordinator asked all the rural and urban drivers to voluntarily complete a survey to rank the 
needs identified in the 2016 Concho Valley Regional Coordination Transportation Plan. The 
respondents rated each need on a scale from 0 to 4 with the following representations - 0 for no 
opinion; 1 for no impact; 2 for slight impact; 3 for medium-impact; 4 for high impact; and 5 for 
severe impact. Table 6 presents a summary of the ratings obtained from the transit passengers. 
Table 7 identifies the most popular and average rating (overall rating) from the passenger 
surveys. 

The transit SDVVHQJHUV¶ ratings indicated that ³more bus routes and stops and more areas served´ 
was the most popular need, followed by ³more frequent service´ and then ³safer environment at 
stops and shelters.´ These issues had approximately 50% or more of the respondents identifying 
them as ³very important´ issues. 

The transit bus riders were interviewed face-to-face by student researchers on the transit buses. 
The students interviewed the passengers over two weeks. Additionally, internet URL links to the 



 

20 
 

survey were posted on the buses for six weeks. Fifty-three bus riders responded to the survey and 
ranked the transit needs, as shown in Table 6. 

Table 6 
Summary of ratings from the transit passengers 

Question Very 
Important 

Slightly 
Important 

Neutral Fairly 
Important 

Not 
Important 

No 
Opinion 

Total 

More bus routes 
and stops and more 
areas served 

60.38% 32 13.21% 7 15.09% 8 1.89% 1 5.66% 3 3.77% 2 53 

More frequent 
service 

55.77% 29 17.31% 9 17.31% 9 1.92% 1 7.69% 4 0.00% 0 52 

Better on-time 
performance 

9.62% 5 21.15% 11 51.92% 27 1.92% 1 15.38% 8 0.00% 0 52 

More parking 
availability at 
stops 

17.31% 9 5.77% 3 32.69% 17 5.77% 3 32.69% 17 5.77% 3 52 

Safer environment 
at stops and 
shelters 

46.15% 24 11.54% 6 25.00% 13 7.69% 4 3.85% 2 5.77% 3 52 

Cleaner 
environment in 
buses and at bus 
stops 

34.62% 18 15.38% 8 34.62% 18 5.77% 3 7.69% 4 1.92% 1 52 

Better 
pedestrian/bicycle 
access to/from 
stops 

36.54% 19 17.31% 9 28.85% 15 0.00% 0 13.46% 7 3.85% 2 52 

 

The drivers were also surveyed to collect any additional needs or challenges related to transit 
services. The transit driver survey yielded 33 responses, summarized in Table 7. The driver 
responses included some open comments. Those comments are presented below. 

³In the small towns, people still do not know how to use the transit system. or that they even 
can.´ 

³People still do not know about transit, or if they do, they don¶t know how to access it.´ 

³More people would use transit if there were more small runs out of town.´ 

³Many surface streets in urban area are in severe need of resurfacing and impact the comfort of 
ride for passengers and drivers and impact maintenance of equipment.´ 

³Clients strapped onto wheelchairs sometimes complain about potholes and rough roads.´ 

³Since we have several different busses, some are better or easier for elderly and disabled 
people. Each bus has its challenges and can slow down hook-up time of wheelchairs.´ 



 

21 
 

³A lot of people from rural areas do not know of our services. we need to have so sort of public 
announcement.´ 

Table 7 
Summary of ratings from the transit driver survey 

Need  Rating 
[A] 

Percent providing 
majority rating [B] 

Combined Priority 
rating [AxB] 

Quality of ride 4 43.48% 1.7392 

Awareness 3 47.83% 1.4349 

Capacity 3 43.48% 1.3044 

Appointments 3 39.13% 1.1739 

Disabilities 3 39.13% 1.1739 

Medicaid Service 3 39.13% 1.1739 

Scheduling 3 34.78% 1.0434 

Accessibility 3 34.78% 1.0434 

Seniors 3 34.78% 1.0434 

Low Vehicle Access 3 34.78% 1.0434 

Veterans 3 34.78% 1.0434 

Uninsured 3 34.78% 1.0434 

Worker Utilization 3 34.78% 1.0434 

Low income 2.5 31.82% 0.7955 

Pricing 1 30.43% 0.3043 

 

Among the drivers interviewed, Improvement in the Quality of Ride received the highest rating, 
followed by Awareness, Capacity, Appointments, Disabilities, and Medicaid Services. The needs 
mentioned above received a rating of 3 or more from approximately 40% of the respondents. The 
remaining issues ± Scheduling, Accessibility, Seniors, Low Vehicle Access, Veterans, 
Uninsured, and worker utilization ± had less than 35% of respondents assigning a rating of at 
least 3. Low-income and Pricing had low ratings of 2.5 and 1, respectively. 

Prioritization of Needs 

The Regional Services Coordinator and ASU guided the RCPC to prioritize the summary list of 
needs working together. Appendix C includes a copy of the prioritization instrument developed 
by ASU to facilitate the process. The instrument requested the Steering Committee and RCPC 
members to rate each of the 13 identified summary needs on two criteria: 



 

22 
 

x Impact: Thinking about how severely the lives of the affected members of transit-
dependent populations are impacted, rate each need item on a 1-5 point scale where: 
1 = Minimum or minor severity of impact, and 5 = Major or maximum severity of 
impact. 

x Consequence: Thinking about the viability of social and economic life in the local 
community, rate the consequences of not taking action to solve each need using a 1-5 
point scale where: 1= Minor or insignificant consequence, and 5 = Highly significant or 
major consequence. 

On June 29, 2021, ASU met with the RCPC steering committee to discuss the transit system¶s 
identified needs and asked their inputs to rate each need through a survey instrument. The survey 
instrument is presented in Appendix D. Figure 2 summarizes the average ratings of impact and 
the respondents¶ community consequence. 

 

The three highest priorities based on the average ratings of the Steering and RCPC members are 
the need to improve access to transit services for the disabled, seniors, and low-income, 
respectively. Improving awareness about the services offered by the public transit system was 
ranked fourth. The lowest priority assigned by the Steering and RCPC members was the need to 
increase the utilization of transit services for the journey to work. 



 

23 
 

The RCPC provided comments about each of the needs identified that helped put Figure 2 in 
perspective. The comments and discussions with the RCPC indicated that the issues with the top 
three highly ranked priorities mainly were associated with a lack of awareness about the services 
provided for those groups.  

ASU used the priority rating scores represented in Figure 2 to apply weights for the various 
transit needs of the dependent groups in the TGI. Table 8 reports weighted priority results from 
the TGI. The values are weighted by multiplying the TGI results in Table 5 by the priority scores 
assigned to the needs of the various transit-dependent groups in Figure 2. 

Table 8 
Priority Weighting of Transit Needs in Rural Region 10 

TGI Weighted by Prioritization Rating Scores 
County Worker 

Utilization 
Vehicle 
Access 

Medicaid Veterans No 
Health 
Insurance 

Under 
Twice 
Poverty 

Seniors Disability 

Weight 3.22 3.58 3.72 3.53 3.8 4.2 4.23 4.4 
Coke 16 14 4 18 11 17 21 22 
Concho 16 11 4 18 11 17 21 13 
Crockett 16 7 7 14 19 13 17 9 
Irion 3 4 7 18 11 13 21 18 
Kimble 10 14 4 18 15 21 21 22 
McCulloch 16 7 4 18 15 21 21 22 
Menard 16 11 4 18 19 17 21 22 
Reagan 16 14 4 11 19 13 8 9 
Schleicher 6 7 4 7 19 13 21 13 
Sterling 16 4 4 11 19 17 13 18 
Sutton 16 14 4 18 15 13 21 13 
Tom Green 13 11 4 18 11 17 17 18 

 

Reading down the Vehicle Access column teaches that Kimble and McCulloch counties had a 
notably high proportion of their populations: seniors, people with disabilities, and under twice 
the poverty level. The Steering and RCPC member feedback rated these as relatively high 
priority needs for the transit service. Crockett County recorded relatively lower scores for the 
same groups indicating that transit service needs in the Kimble and McCulloch counties are more 
acute compared to Crockett County. 

Gap Analysis of Unmet Transportation Needs 

The 2016 Concho Valley Regional Coordination Transportation Plan project developed a 
systematic gap analysis of unmet transportation needs. The aim was to craft an analysis focused 
on transit-dependent groups in the CVTD¶s rural counties and rooted in measuring resources and 
unmet needs. The analysis was designed to: 

x Serve as a model to enable replication, updating, and refinement of future gap analyses 
and need assessments of the CVTD system. 



 

24 
 

x Lay a foundation to formulate and seek funding and other resources for proposals and 
projects to progress toward closing service gaps in CVTD services. 

x Serve as a platform for developing and refining integrated, measurable indicators for 
tracking and measuring progress toward closing service gaps. 

This 2021 Concho Valley Regional Coordination Transportation Plan updates the gap analysis 
from 2016 by replicating the previous methodology with a few modifications. The priority 
weighted TGI represents useful measures of transportation need. The TGI measures pools of 
potential demand for public transit service reflected by transit-dependent groups in the rural 
counties. To complete the gap analysis, ASU requested and obtained the following data items 
from CVTD to gauge the distribution and deployment of transit resources across the 12 counties. 

1. Current annualized operating costs by county. 
2. Runs by county. 
3. Revenue miles by county. 
4. Revenue hours by county. 
5. Total riders by county. 

Table 7 profiles the available operating costs and deployment data used as resource measures for 
the gap analysis. The data was collected from March 1, 2021, through June 30, 2021. 

The gap analysis compared the distribution and deployment of transit system resources (Table 9) 
with the priority demands for services represented by the weighted prioritization scores for the 
transit-dependent groups (Table 8). The process required ASU researchers to assess each 
county¶s prioritization scores for each transit-dependent group in Table 8 with the transit system 
resource measures in Table 9.  

Table 9 Distribution of Operating Costs and Deployment of Resources 

Geography Percent 
Operating Costs 

Runs Revenue 
Miles 

Revenue 
Hours 

Total 
Riders 

Total Riders - 
Medicaid 

Riders 
Per Run 

Coke 7.7% 134 14045 608.7 521 67 3.89 
Concho 10.1% 81 18412 892.0 597 116 7.37 
Crockett 5.7% 139 10426.9 611.9 495 0 3.56 
Irion 1.1% 42 1904 88.0 131 0 3.12 
Kimble 0.6% 37 1116 77.6 142 15 3.84 
McCulloch 11.4% 266 20757 1287.9 2023 111 7.61 
Menard 1.0% 42 1897 71.2 63 7 1.50 
Reagan 2.4% 80 9708 419.3 350 0 4.38 
Schleicher 4.8% 62 8656 457.1 374 47 6.03 
Sterling 3.0% 69 5412.7 284.6 140 0 2.03 
Sutton 3.9% 153 7008 332.5 235 0 1.54 
Tom 
Green 

45.3% 167 82419 4594.6 1206 80 7.22 

 



 

25 
 

Users of the rural and urban 5310 service include riders who are 65 or older and persons with 
disabilities. From January to December, 2021, the number of 5310 riders for the urban and rural 
service were 1005, and 81, respectively.  

Researchers applied the following rubrics for the analytical purpose of identifying under-service 
gaps in the rural counties. Counties that were not underserved had resources allocated by the 
CVTD that exceeded the average resource allocation. The gap index was below the average for 
all those rural counties or both. 

1) The UNDER-SERVICE rural county rubric: A county with a weighted TGI score for a 
transit-dependent group greater than the average TGI score for all other counties (Table 
8) and a resource measure that is less than the average for all counties (Table 9) is 
UNDERSERVED. In Menard County, for instance, workers are somewhat underserved 
on operating costs because the county uses a low 1.04 percent of costs (Table 9). In 
contrast, its weighted TGI score for worker utilization, vehicle access, Medicaid, 
residents with no health insurance, people under twice poverty, seniors, and disability 
were all higher than the average for all the counties (Table 8). Thus, all the transit-
dependent groups mentioned above dependent groups in Menard County were classified 
as under-service with the letter: 8´�LQ�7DEOH��0. 

Table 10 Severity of Gaps by Transit Dependent Group 
County Worker 

Utilization 
Vehicle 
Access 

Medicaid Veterans No 
Health 

Insurance 

Under 
Twice 

Poverty 

Seniors Disability 

Coke         
 

      
Concho         

 
    

 

Crockett   U         
  

Irion     U U     U U 
Kimble   U       U U U 
McCulloch   

 
    

 
      

Menard U U U   U U U U 
Reagan U U     U       
Schleicher 

 
    

 
  

 
  O 

Sterling U       U U   U 
Sutton U   U       U   
Tom 
Green 

                

 

Following the prescribed rubric, the researchers counted 28 transit-dependent groups that are 
under-service. Table 11 shows the number of underserved transit-dependent groups for each 
county. Menard County recorded the highest number of under-service transit-dependent groups 
with seven groups. Irion, Kimble, and Sterling counties recorded the second-highest number of 
under-serviced transit-dependent groups, all with four groups, followed by Reagan and Sutton 
counties with three underserviced groups. McCulloch and Crocket followed with two and one 



 

26 
 

groups, respectively. Coke, Concho, and Schleicher had no under-serviced transit-dependent 
groups. 

Table 11 Number of Under Serviced Transit Dependent Groups 
County No. of under serviced transit dependent group 
Coke 0 
Concho 0 
Crockett 1 
Irion 4 
Kimble 4 
McCulloch 2 
Menard 7 
Reagan 3 
Schleicher 0 
Sterling 4 
Sutton 3 

 

Tom Green County 

The gap analysis for Tom Green County was separated from the other counties because Tom 
Green County has approximately 76% of the population in the district and so receives a more 
significant VKDUH�RI�WKH�&97'¶V�UHVRXUFHV��7KHUHIRUH��7RP�*UHHQ�&RXQW\�LV�QRt compared to the 
rural counties to determine underserviced groups. Instead, the transit-dependent groups within 
Tom Green are compared to identify vulnerable groups. 

Table 8 indicates that veterans and people with disabilities have the highest priority weighting of 
18, followed by seniors and people under twice the poverty threshold with weights of 17, and 
then workers. People with low vehicle access and no health insurance were tied at 11 and 
Medicaid at 4.   

Comparing Transit Dependent Groups 

Tables 12 compares the transit-dependent groups. Workers, people with low vehicle access, and 
seniors recorded the highest number of under-service counts at four each. Medicaid, uninsured, 
low-income, and disabled were tied at three each. Veterans were under serviced in only one 
county. 

Table 12 Comparing Transit Dependent Group 
Transit Dependent Group Number of underserved counties 

Worker utilization 4 
Vehicle access 4 
Medicaid 3 
Veterans 1 
Uninsured 3 



 

27 
 

Low income 3 
Seniors 4 
Disability 3 

 

Summary of Findings from the Transit Gap Study 

In summary, rural transit service to the 12 counties had the following under service counties and 
groups. 

1. Menard County was the most under-serviced county with seven underserviced transit-
dependent groups. 

2. Households with low vehicle access were under serviced in Crockett, Kimble, Menard, 
and Reagan counties. 

3. Seniors were under-serviced in Irion, Kimble, Menard, and Sutton counties. 
4. Persons using Medicaid were underserviced in Irion, Menard, and Sutton counties. 
5. The medically uninsured populations were underserviced in Menard, Reagan, and 

Sterling counties. 
6. Persons living on low income were underserviced in Kimble, Menard, and Sterling 

counties. 
7. Persons with disabilities in Irion, Kimble, Menard, and Sterling counties. 
8. Veterans in Irion County. 
9. Persons with disabilities in Kimble County. 

Worker utilization was identified as under-serviced in Menard, Reagan, Sterling, and Sutton 
counties. This transit gap indicates the need for a transit service that operates within those four 
counties to meet the transit needs of workers. 

A review of the Tom Green County demography indicated that veterans, people with disabilities, 
seniors, low-income persons should be prioritized in resource allocation. The most urban county 
with approximately 76 percent of the population, Tom Green received almost 46 percent of the 
resource allocations. The remaining groups arranged in by their priority ratings are Workers, 
people with low vehicle access, medically uninsured persons, and persons relying on Medicaid.



 

28 
 

IV. PLANNING FOR COMPREHENSIVE SERVICES 

The Concho Valley Transit District forms partnerships through Regional Coordination with 
various agencies that apply and receive various grant funding opportunities such as the 5310 
(Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals and Individuals with Disabilities) formula grant. 
This program supports the planning, design, and implementation of transportation services to 
meet the unique transportation needs of seniors and individuals with disabilities. The program 
aims to improve mobility for seniors and individuals with disabilities by removing barriers to 
transportation services and expanding transportation mobility options.  

By allocating the funding and dispersing equal amounts monthly, and closely regulating the 
amount to each client, the CVTD is better positioned to serve the needs of all those who qualify 
for the 5310 grant. The CVTD also collaborates with multiple brokers who receive Health and 
Human Services funding. Through this collaboration, CVTD can provide medical transportation 
for individuals approved through Medicaid. CVTD also partners with numerous local agencies 
and organizations such as; Senior Companions/ Foster Grandparents, Area on Aging, Boys and 
Girls Club, Workforce Solutions, Disability Connections, and others to provide transportation to 
their clients and consumers. 

   



 

29 
 

V. INTEGRATED PLANNING PROCESSES 

Planning and the integration of plans amongst local agencies are a critical part of ensuring that regional 
goals and objectives are met. The Concho Valley has been fortunate enough to benefit from sustained, 
active participation from health and human service organizations, especially those with an interest in 
client transportation for older adults, persons with disabilities, persons with low incomes, veterans, and 
other transit dependent populations. Below are some of the organizations in the area that require plan 
integration, coordination, and collaboration: 

Concho Valley Transit District 

CVTD continues to provide both rural and urban services for the Concho Valley. Serving as the only 
public transportation provider in the region and the lead agency, Concho Valley Transit District 
coordinates closely with key stakeholder groups from the City of San Angelo, surrounding counties, and 
TxDOT to prioritize the integration of planning. Some of these stakeholder groups include the San 
Angelo Metropolitan Planning Organization, Area Agency on Aging, Concho Valley Economic 
Development and more. 

Region 10 Regional Coordination Planning Committee 

Representatives of transit dependent groups, workforce agencies, health and human service agencies, and 
other members of the public are key members of the Regional Coordination Planning Committee (RCPC) 
and each brings valuable insight and perspectives to help ensure that local strategic plans are integrated. 

Coordination with the Concho Valley Council of Governments 

The Concho Valley Council of Governments (CVCOG) is a voluntary organization of local governments 
to foster a cooperative effort in resolving problems, policies, and plans that are common and regional. 
Serving as one of the many organizations within the CVCOG, Concho Valley Transit District has formed 
close relationships and camaraderie with other organizations within the CVCOG especially those serving 
seniors and low-income populations including the Area Agency on Aging and the Concho Valley 
Economic Development District. Many of these organizations have their own long-range plans and 
CVTD works closely with these entities to ensure that transportation needs are factored into their plans. 

Agencies within the CVCOG: 

x 2-1-1 Texas 
x Area Agency on Aging of the Concho Valley 
x Concho Valley Aging and Disability Resource Center 
x Concho Valley Testing & Training Center 
x Concho Valley Regional Law Enforcement Academy 
x Foster Grandparents 
x Head Start 
x Homeland Security 
x Regional 9-1-1 
x Concho Valley Economic Development District 
x Senior Companions 
x Concho Valley Transit District 

 



 

30 
 

Coordination with San Angelo Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) 

On April 12, 2018, the San Angelo Metropolitan Planning Organization Transportation Policy Board 
adopted Concho Valley Transit DistrLFW¶V�SHUIRUPDQFH�PHDVXUHPHQW�WDUJHWV��7KH�7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ�3ROLF\�
Board has committed to supporting, planning and programming projects that contribute to the 
accomplishments of said targets. The targets are for four transit asset management performance measures 
that include: 

1. Equipment State of Good Repair: rehab or replace equipment based on the Concho Valley Transit 
District Board of Trustees approved capital plan to maintain an overall state of good repair of all 
vehicles and facilities. 

2. Rolling Stock State of Good Repair: by 2022, replace 4 fixed route buses with an age of 5 years 
or greater and replace 6 demand response busses with an age of 5 years or greater. 

3. Infrastructure State of Good Repair: zero, no passenger rail infrastructure. 
4. Facilities State of Good Repair: rehab facilities based on the Concho Valley Transit District 

Board of Trustees approved capital plan to maintain an overall state of good repair. This to 
include Multi-Modal facilities and bus stop and shelter (operational) facilities as well. 

Numerous transit projects adopted in the FY 2021-2024 Transportation Improvement Program support 
achieving the targets established for transit state of good repair, including: the purchase of revenue 
vehicles; the purchase of replacement revenue vehicles; new and upgrades to existing passenger facilities; 
and upgrades to the operational facilities. 

The San Angelo Metropolitan Planning Organization also has a Metropolitan Transportation Plan (MTP) 
titled Moving People and Things Through and Within San Angelo 2045.  

³This plan was adopted on March 24, 2020 and covers fiscal years 2020 to 2045. The plan 
identifies long-range transportation needs, prioritizes programs and projects, provides a means for 
regional brainstorming on transportation aspects and serves as the basis for the planning needs 
and decision-making guidelines for the MPO Board. This is accomplished through identifying 
present and future transportation corridors, forecasting transportation needs and growth patterns, 
providing estimated costs for implementation of those needs and including other innovative 
approaches to transportation.´ 

CVTD maintains a close working relationship with the San Angelo Metropolitan Planning Organization 
DQG�&97'¶V�JRDOV�DQG�REMHFWLYHV�DUH�DOUHDG\�LQFOXGHG�LQ�WKH�6$032¶V�ORQJ�UDQJH�SODQV��$OVR�LQFOXGHG�
in this plan are an overview of CVTD, History of Transit, and Transit Services offered by CVTD. 

The SDQ�$QJHOR�0HWURSROLWDQ�2UJDQL]DWLRQ�KDV�&97'¶V�7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ�*RDOV�DQG�2EMHFWLYHV�OLVWHG�DV�
follows: 

³The goals and objectives of the Concho Valley Transit District for the foreseeable future are to: 

x Steadily increase service, both Urban and Rural by growing inventory and staff slowly to 
provide quality service that is appropriate and feasible based on client and region needs. 

x Comply with the requirements imposed by state and federal government and in accordance 
with organizational policies and procedures. 

x Maintain and grown provided transportation services to clients in and around the Concho 
Valley through innovative efficiencies and innovative direction of assets and customer base. 

x Ensure that all eligible clients have safe and timely access to transportation services 
throughout the region. 



 

31 
 

x Reduce the cost of service and maintain the upkeep of capital assets through a newly 
developed Asset Management Plan. 

x Increase services within the Concho Valley by gradually increasing the size of the 
transportation fleet through sensible and cost-effective purchases. 

x Increase the budget through increased local contributions and sales while exploring new 
opportunities utilizing uncommon government collaborations.´ 

These plans can be found at www.sanangelompo.org.  

Coordination with Concho Valley Community Action Agency 

The Concho Valley Community Action Agency (CVCAA) is an organization that provides a variety of 
services including housing and utility assistance, weatherization, and other community resources for the 
low-income population in the area. This organization provides a valuable service to the Concho Valley. 
The CVCAA has a Community Needs Assessment that list the services provided by CVTD and some of 
the challenges of public transportation for individuals living in the Concho Valley.  

CVCAA lists one of the biggest opportunities for the transportation of their clients as being the need for 
expanded service hours and shorter bus route times. 

CVCAA is one of the key members of the RCPC and over the years, CVTD has build a good relationship 
with CVCAA and both continue to work together on integrating plans to improve services for mutual 
stakeholders. CVTD often joins CVCAA at their rural outreach events to help spread information about 
services offered. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.sanangelompo.org/


 

32 
 

VI. VISION, MISSION, GOALS, AND OBJECTIVES 

In a meeting with the RCPC on July 30, the RCPC discussed and approved the vision statement, mission, 
goals, and objectives for the CVTD. The goals and objectives from the 2016 Regional Coordinate Plan 
were maintained with the addition of improving awareness about the services provided by the CVTD. 

Vision Statement 

The mission of the Concho Valley Transit District is to provide safe and efficient transportation services 
to the Concho Valley while positively contributing to the economy and community. 

Mission 

The goal of the Concho Valley RCPC is to develop coordinated transportation plans and 
recommendations that facilitate improved capacity and delivery of services, enhance satisfaction with 
public transit services within regional communities and among transit-dependent groups and encourage 
cooperation to meet the transportation needs of the region. 

The RCPC is a diverse group comprised of representatives from local agencies and organizations who 
voluntarily come together to identify, discuss and plan for the various transportation needs of the Concho 
Valley. 

Goals and Objectives 

Safety: Ensure that safety is of the utmost priority for our employees, passengers, and general citizens of 
the Concho Valley and surrounding areas. 

Reliability: Deliver quality services resulting in consistent mobility for our rural and urban passengers. 

Friendliness: Create a comfortable and welcoming atmosphere for Concho Valley citizens and transit 
passengers. 

Awareness: Increase public information and awareness of transit services. 

Project Development 

The gap analysis and assessment revealed unmet needs in providing rural transportation services 
to workers, households with low vehicle access, medically uninsured persons, low-income 
individuals and families, Medicaid patients, seniors, and persons with disabilities. The 
assessment also documents variations in the severity of these needs in the different rural 
counties. 

CVTD invites community-based organizations to develop joint or coordinated project funding 
proposals for consideration by TxDOT or other public transit funding agencies. To be in 
alignment with the Regional Coordination Transportation Plan, organizations are encouraged to 
develop proposals that will enhance transportation services to their stakeholders by leveraging 
funds and/or building regional capacity to address identified and assessed gaps in needs and 
services. The current project list was created with the help of organizations throughout the region 
including Concho Valley Transit District, Concho Valley Community Action Agency, Concho 
Valley Economic Development, West Texas Counseling and Guidance, Texas Hunger Initiative, 
San Angelo MetropROLWDQ�3ODQQLQJ�2UJDQL]DWLRQ��:RUNIRUFH�6ROXWLRQV��&KLOGUHQ¶V�$GYRFDF\�



 

33 
 

Center of Tom Green County, Area Agency on Aging/2-11, MHMR Services for the Concho 
Valley, and more. Community-based organizations interested in developing joint or coordinated 
project proposals should consult with CVTD¶s Regional Coordinator/Grant Writer. 

In addition, CVTD and CVCOG will employ the leadership of the Regional Coordinator/Grant 
Writer to implement the specific projects listed below as key elements of a regional strategy to 
close the gaps. Some key projects will benefit both the urban fixed-route and rural demand-
response systems operated by CVTD (e.g., In-House Maintenance and State of Good Repair). 
Other projects focus on the fixed-route system to realize improvements that will enhance 
integration between the urban and rural systems (e.g., Centralized Dispatch) or facilitate 
connectivity between the systems (e.g., Transportation Connection Points). Additional projects 
open opportunities for local public, nonprofit, and private agencies and organizations to support 
public transit by participating in CVTD advertising, branding, and marketing projects. 

Table 13 Key Planned or Ongoing Projects 
 
Project Name Status Description Priority 
Pilot New Fixed 
Routes: 

Ongoing CVTD sees increased demand for Airport service and 
Downtown San Angelo Lunch service in the urban areas. 
CVTD added a new route in 2020 and will continue to add as 
needed. CVTD will pilot a city-wide Demand Response service 
starting in 2021. 
Funding: Funding options for new pilot routes are 5309 or 
Coordinated Call. Also, public agencies, health and human 
service organizations, or private employers interested in joint 
or collaborative projects for new fixed routes to better serve 
stakeholders should consult with the CVTD Regional 
Coordinator/Grant Writer. 
Abetted Gaps/Populations: CVTD fixed routes serve many 
passenger populations, including low poverty and workers. 
Piloting new routes can allow public transportation to reach 
more residential and industrial areas of the urbanized areas.  
 

High priority 
± 60 percent 
of urban and 
rural 
passengers 
indicated 
³0RUH�EXV�
routes and 
stops and 
more areas 
VHUYHG´�DV�
very 
important in 
the survey. 

Intercity Bus 
Service: 

Proposed Enhance rural transit services by adding bus routes to and from 
rural counties to the urban San Angelo area. CVTD provides 
rural rides to San Angelo, allowing access to the Greyhound. A 
Feasibility Study on service from Del Rio to San Angelo to 
Midland to Abilene is currently being performed by TxDOT. 
Funding: A funding option for this enhancement is 5311 or 
Intercity Bus Program Funding. In addition, public agencies, 
organizations, or private employers interested in joint or 
collaborative projects for new fixed routes to better serve 
stakeholders should consult with the CVTD Regional 
Coordinator/Grant Writer. 
Abetted Gaps/Populations: ICB brings seniors, persons with 
disabilities, and workers to the urbanized area and beyond to 
build economic growth and attend appointments for necessary 
health and human services. 
 

High priority 
± 60 percent 
of urban and 
rural 
passengers 
indicated 
³0RUH�EXV�
routes and 
stops and 
more areas 
VHUYHG´�DV�
very 
important in 
the survey. 

Passenger 
Amenities 

Proposed Create sheltered bus stops with curb cuts, lighting, and trash 
cans in the UTD fixed-route system. Ensure equal amenities at 
rural pickup points. These amenities will increase ridership in 

High priority 
± 46 percent 
of urban and 



 

34 
 

the urban and rural systems. They improve safety for 
passengers in both systems, as well as for those who transfer 
between systems. Amenities provide improved access for 
seniors, individuals with disabilities, and other transit-
dependent groups. They also provide areas for posting 
information for branding and increasing awareness of CVTD 
services and opportunities for local businesses, public agencies, 
and health and human services organizations to support the 
transit system through advertising. This is currently in the 
implementation phase as six shelters have been purchased and 
concrete pads poured. Additionally, 13 benches are in the 
procurement phase. 
Funding: With increased rural passenger transfers to urban 
services, funding options may include 5339 (b), 5317, and 
5307. Helping the system provide passenger amenities is also a 
valued way for private businesses, public agencies, and 
regional service organizations to collaborate and support the 
transit system. 
Abetted Gaps/Populations: All transit-dependent groups are 
aided through the construction and/or installation of new transit 
amenities, including benches, shelters, trashcans, and lighting. 
 

rural 
passengers 
indicated 
³6DIHU�
environment 
at stops and 
VKHOWHUV´�DV�
very 
important in 
the survey. 

Branding and 
Marketing 

Ongoing The Regional Coordinator/Grant Writer collaborated to 
develop a branding and marketing strategy to work with a 
newly established RPO and community stakeholders. This plan 
will increase the public awareness, knowledge, and 
understanding of the current and evolving capacities and 
services of CVTD. The branding and marketing strategy aims 
to increase ridership and provide the essential public 
understanding and awareness needed as the system gains 
capacity to close the service gaps among transit-dependent 
groups and underserved counties. Branding was changed from 
CVTD, TRANS, and Thunderbird to CVT on 11/14/2018.  
Funding: FTA and TxDOT funds.  
Abetted Gaps/Populations:  All transit-dependent groups will 
have the ability to better identify CVTD vehicles, specifically 
for seniors and persons with disabilities who may have 
difficulties recognizing CVTD vehicles 

High Priority 
± the RCPC 
identified 
awareness as 
a priority 
necessary for 
increasing the 
patronage of 
the CVTD 
services. 

Advertising Ongoing Advertise transit system information and services at bus stops 
and onboard buses can augment the Branding and Marketing 
strategy while creating opportunities for local funding through 
advertising revenues from local businesses, public agencies, 
and health and human services organizations. Advertising 
revenue generates local funding to partially support joint or 
coordinated projects of interest to CVTD and/or various 
community-based organizations. Organizations interested in 
participating in the CVTD advertising project should contact 
the Regional Coordinator/Grant Writer. 
Funding: Project-based grants like Coordinated Call for 
Projects or Regionally Coordinated Pilot projects are available 
to aid in exploring new advertising avenues. 
Abetted Gaps/Populations: Workers in business areas and 
seniors, Medicaid users, and persons with disabilities who 
IUHTXHQW�GRFWRUV¶�RIILFHV�DUH subject to viewing new 
advertising ventures. 

High Priority 
± the RCPC 
identified 
awareness as 
a priority 
necessary for 
increasing the 
patronage of 
the CVTD 
services. 



 

35 
 

Comprehensive 
System-Wide 
Transportation 
Study 

Proposed Collaborate with SA-MPO and TxDOT to conduct a long-
range planning study to assess community transportation 
partnerships, enabling a multi-provider call center and 
integrating multi-provider transportation compatible 
scheduling software into CVTD services. The project holds 
potential for significant integration and coordination of public 
and privately-operated transportation services across CVTD 
urban and rural areas. 
Funding: The funding for this project is the Transit Technical 
Services Program (TTSP) which was applied for on 
08/05/2021. This program provides focused technical 
assistance to Rural Transit Districts in Financial management 
and analysis, Capital project development, and Operational and 
service analysis. 
Abetted Gaps/Populations: This study will aid all 
transportation-dependent groups to better coordinate 
transportation services within the urban and rural areas, 
especially for persons with disabilities and seniors who may be 
lifts/ramps or extra help boarding alighting vehicles or those 
with low vehicle access. 
 

High Priority 
± the RCPC 
identified 
scheduling as 
a priority 
necessary for 
improving the 
services of 
the CVTD. 

Ride Quality  Proposed Create partnerships with TxDOT and City Engineer to utilize 
transit drivers to help identify routes with poor pavement 
quality that severely impacts rides. 
 

High priority 
± transit 
drivers 
identified ride 
quality from 
pavement 
deteriorations 
as very 
important in 
the survey 

Quality 
Assurance Plan 

Ongoing CVTD management will continue developing and 
implementing a Quality Assurance Plan to train employees to 
record information and data to meet the FTA Triennial Review 
and Audit compliance requirements. This project reinforces the 
driver to achieve operational efficiencies and effectiveness in 
the transit system. It also ensures the accuracy of essential data 
and information required for useful performance measures to 
evaluate and document future progress toward meeting unmet 
needs and closing service gaps. Automated ridership data 
collection met the unmet needs and provided instant feedback 
using passenger counters. 
CVTD Triennial Review is scheduled for 2021. CVTD will 
continue to train employees to meet FTA compliance 
requirements. They have also begun incorporating a Transit 
Operator Development Course that helps comply with Federal 
and State regulations, develops our trainees into professional 
operators, and instills the safest practices.  
Funding: Coordinated Call is a funding option for this project. 
Passenger counters were funded with 5307. 
Abetted Gaps/Populations: The creation of a quality assurance 
plan can aid all transit-dependent populations. Compliance 
with funding sources allows CVTD to maintain services for the 
citizens of the Concho Valley. 
 

High priority 



 

36 
 

Centralized 
Dispatch 

Ongoing CVTD began the process of centralizing its dispatch system in 
2016. This project was completed and is currently being used. 
Adopting a bus tracking phone app and an automated fare 
system has increased the conveniences, efficiencies, and 
connectivity options for rural and urban patrons. The integrated 
dispatch system serves both the urban fixed route services and 
the rural demand response services of CVTD, increasing the 
convenience and efficiency of scheduling, creating more 
flexible and efficient deployment of fleet resources, and 
opening new opportunities for connectivity between the rural 
areas and urban system services. 
Funding: No funding is currently needed to continue this 
project. Local funds will be required to implement the system 
software to integrate rural and urban services, the bus tracking 
phone app, and the automated fare system. 
Abetted Gaps/Populations: Centralized dispatching helps low 
SES individuals (2x below the poverty level, those with no 
insurance or Medicaid) with the addition of a toll-free number. 
Making a trip has been easier for seniors and individuals with 
disabilities who may have many appointments or have 
difficulties. 
 

High Priority 
± the RCPC 
identified 
scheduling as 
a priority 
necessary for 
improving the 
services of 
the CVTD. 

In-house 
Maintenance 

Planning 
phase 

The construction of an in-house maintenance facility for the 
CVTD fleet is an essential capacity-building project to close 
the unmet need gaps in rural transportation services. CVTD 
will collaborate with Howard College ±San Angelo to increase 
community connectivity to train mechanics and provide 
internships and jobs for local students.  
Funding: CVTD will apply for funding to construct the 
maintenance facility in 2022.  
Abetted Gaps/Populations: All transit-dependent groups are 
supported through the addition of an in-house maintenance 
facility, especially seniors and persons with disabilities who 
will benefit from well-PDLQWDLQHG�OLIWV�DQG�UDPSV�RQ�&97'¶V�
accessible vehicles. 
 

High priority 

State of Good 
Repair 

Ongoing The in-house maintenance project will DXJPHQW�&97'¶V�
initiative to establish a State of Good Repair management 
framework to LPSURYH�WKH�V\VWHP¶V�DVVHW�SURFXUHPHQW�DQG�
salvaging process to maximize passenger safety and minimize 
operations costs. The engineering and design bid is out now. 
Transit Asset Management has also been created to assist with 
the State of Good Repair. 
Funding: A funding option for instituting the State of Good 
Repair framework is 5337. 
Abetted Gaps/Populations: Similar to in-house maintenance, 
this program will aid all transit clientele with safer and more 
reliable vehicles. 
 

High priority 



 

37 
 

VII. SUSTAINABLE PLANNING & IMPLEMENTATION PLAN 

CVTD Organizational Infrastructure and Staff Capacity 

Serving as the lead agency for the Regionally Coordinated Transportation Plan, CVTD strives to 
meaningfully engage regional stakeholders by fostering involvement and collaboration with all 
of its team members. CVTD is overseen by a Director of Transit, Assistant Director of Transit, 
Operations and Safety Managers, a Finance Manager, and their respective teams. CVTD is also a 
program of the Concho Valley Council of Governments who has their own Management Team, 
Finance Team, and Human Resources Team.  

CVTD has consistently maintained the position of a Regional Services Coordinator who serves 
as a core staff member responsible for developing and implementing strategies to identify and 
meet the transportation needs of individuals with disabilities, individuals 65 and older, 
individuals with low income, veterans, advocates for children, and other members of the public. 
One of the key components of this job is rural outreach to help spread awareness of services 
RIIHUHG�LQWR�XQGHUVHUYHG�FRPPXQLWLHV�ZLWKLQ�&97'¶V�VHrvice area.  

The Regional Services Coordinator will implement, update, and sustain the plan by leading 
continuous efforts within the service area to secure funding and formulate collaborative 
strategies to work with regional stakeholders. This will include regular monitoring of the plan to 
ensure that projects are on track for completion. 

Leverage Resources to Pay 

CVTD plans to implement this plan and achieve goals within the plan by applying for funding 
through a variety of programs provided by TxDOT and FTA. Some of these programs include 
7['27¶V�&RRUGLQDWHG�&DOO�IRU�3URMHFWV��)7$¶V������*UDQW�IRU�%XV�DQG�%XV�)DFLOLWLHV��DQG�RWKHU�
funding opportunities that come available. Other than funding through TxDOT and FTA, the 
only other source of funding planned to be utilized for these projects is local revenue. CVTD 
seeks coordination and input from stakeholders to identify alternate funding sources to further 
improve the transportation system in the region. 

Plans for Engaging Regional Stakeholders  

The Regional Services Coordinator and various members of CVTD staff will continue to travel 
to rural events with other service organizations including the Concho Valley Community Action 
Agency, West Texas Counseling & Guidance, and more as a group effort to help regional 
stakeholders living in outlying communities. CVTD also plans to continue building partnerships 
with other organizations within its service area to provide the best possible transportation 
services for regional stakeholders. 

CVTD will also host Regional Coordination Planning meetings every quarter to provide 
transportation updates and foster cooperation and coordination amongst stakeholder groups 
within the region. CVTD also will provide transportation updates via social media when 
applicable. 



 

38 
 

CVTD is undergoing two different studies including an Intercity Bus (ICB) survey and an 
Operational study. The ICB study examines the feasibility of CVTD having an Intercity Bus 
which could potentially have connection points with other cities such as Midland/Odessa, 
$ELOHQH��'HO�5LR��DQG�PRUH��7KH�2SHUDWLRQDO�VWXG\�H[DPLQHV�DOO�DVSHFWV�RI�&97'¶V�RSHUDWLRQV�
WR�GHWHUPLQH�ZKDW�XSGDWHV�PLJKW�QHHG�WR�WDNH�SODFH�WR�EHWWHU�VHUYH�ULGHUV�LQ�&97'¶V�VHUYLFH�DUHD� 

CVTD will continue to work on creating contracts with organizations such as nursing homes, 
medical providers, and other service organizations to provide transportation for their clients. 

 



 

39 
 

VIII. PERFORMANCE MEASURES TO EVALUATE EFFECTIVENESS 

Local Performance Metrics 

The Lead Agency will collaborate with representatives participating in an established RPO and 
other stakeholders to refine and elaborate the performance measurement and evaluation 
framework provided by the gap analysis and assessment of unmet needs at the core of this plan. 
The Lead Agency will contribute to this collaborative effort by producing: 

1) Annual Updates of a regional TGI, or successor instrument, to reflect demand for transit 
services as reflected in the demographic representation of transit-dependent populations 
within the rural counties. 

2) Annual canvassing interviews or surveys of unmet transit needs to be reported by key 
informant representatives of regional health and human service organizations and 
residents using the services of the rural transportation system. 

3) Annual updates of rural transportation statistical data reflecting the distribution and 
deployment of rural county resources and utilization of the system by members of the 
various transit-dependent groups. 

In turn, representatives participating in an RPO will assess CVTD¶s progress toward closing gaps 
and establish annual updates on unmet need priorities. The Regional Coordinator/Grant Writer 
will report the yearly performance measurement and evaluation produced by the Lead Agency 
and the RPO to TxDOT and the public. 

Statewide Performance Metrics  

The annual performance measures and evaluation reports for TxDOT will provide data and 
documentation of statewide performance measures, including: 

x Data and information on community collaboration: number of formalized active 
community partnerships, and number of persons engaged in transportation planning and 
education activities within the region. 

x Identification and data collection on gaps and inefficiencies: number of gaps and 
inefficiencies identified in the coordinated plan and its updated evaluations, including 
those concerning priority transit dependent population groups. 

x Recommended actions in the coordinated plan and its updated evaluations for resolving 
gaps and inefficiencies. 
 
  

 

 

 

 



 

40 
 

IX. References 

Area Plan, Area Agency on Aging of the Concho Valley. Concho Valley Council of 
Governments. 2015-2016.  

Assessing the transit needs of ASU Students. Kayla Hullum, Jacqueline Coty, and L.F. Jones. 
2013.  

Assessing the transit needs of Concho Valley residents. Makayla Cisneros, Susan McLane, L.F. 
Jones and Kenneth L. Stewart. 2012.  

Assessing the transit needs of Concho Valley Residents. Laurence F. Jones, Jacqueline Coty, 
Kayla Hullum and Feleseya Joshua. 2013.  

Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy, Concho Valley Economic Development 
District. 2011.  

Concho Valley Regional Coordination Transportation Plan. Jessica Pena, Regional Coordinator, 
Concho Valley Transit District, Lead Agency and Concho Valley Regional Coordination 
Planning Committee. 2012.  

Mobility Management in Texas, Texas Department of Transportation FTP server, October, 2016: 
https://ftp.dot.state.tx.us/pub/txdot-info/ptn/mobility_management.pdf.  

Public Participation Plan. San Angelo Metropolitan Planning Organization. 2014.  

Regional Rural Transportation Planning: State Models for Local Consultation, Regional 
Coordination, and Regional Transportation Planning Organizations, National Association of 
Development Organizations, July, 2016: https://www.nado.org/17573-2/.  

Review of Texas¶ Regionally Coordinated Transportation Plans, Texas Transportation Institute, 
Texas A&M University, 2012.  

San Angelo Area Bicycle and Pedestrian Plan. Wilbur Smith Associates. 2005.  

Strategies to Increase Coordination of Transportation Services for the Transportation 
Disadvantaged, Transit Cooperative Research Program, Transportation Research Board, TCRP 
REPORT 105 (Washington, D.C.: The National Academies Press, 2004).  

Survey of Pedestrian and Bicycle Project Priorities, Kenneth L. Stewart, 2013.  

Transportation Improvement Program (TIP), San Angelo Metropolitan Planning Organization, 
2014.  

Transportation Needs Assessment Survey. Kenneth L. Stewart and Susan McLane. 2014.  

United States Census Bureau, American Community Survey, 5 Year sample estimates, 2006-
2010, 2007-2011, 2008-2012, 2009-2013, and 2010-2014.  

VOYAGE 2040 Long-Range Transportation Plan, San Angelo Metropolitan Planning 
Organization, 2014. 



 

41 
 

X. Acronyms 

ASU   Angelo State University  

CVCOG  Concho Valley Council of Governments  

CVTD   Concho Valley Transit District  

FTA   Federal Transit Administration  

LEP   Limited English Proficiency  

NADO  National Association of Development Organizations  

RCPC   Concho Valley Regional Coordination Planning Committee  

RPO   Rural Planning Organization  

SA-MPO  San Angelo Metropolitan Planning Organization  

TGI   Transit Gap Index  

TIP   Transportation Improvement Program  

TxDOT  Texas Department of Transportation  

UZA   Urbanized Area  

VA   Veterans Administration 

 

 

 



 

42 
 

XI. Appendix



 

43 
 

Appendix A: Planning Project Instruments - Survey for Drivers 

 

 

 



���������������30 4XDOWULFV�6XUYH\�6RIWZDUH

KWWSV���DQJHOR�D]��TXDOWULFV�FRP�4�(GLW6HFWLRQ�%ORFNV�$MD[�*HW6XUYH\3ULQW3UHYLHZ"&RQWH[W6XUYH\,' 69B�<93�8U4��%$:Q<	&RQWH[W/LEUDU\,' « ����

%ORFN��

$QJHOR�6WDWH�8QLYHUVLW\
,QVWLWXWLRQDO�5HYLHZ�%RDUG��,5%�

&RQVHQW�WR�3DUWLFLSDWH�LQ�DQ�,5%�$SSURYHG�5HVHDUFK�(YHQW

}
3URMHFW�7LWOH��7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ�1HHGV�$VVHVVPHQW�6WXG\�

�,QYHVWLJDWRU�1DPH�'HSDUWPHQW��/LQGD�$EHUQDWK\��'DQLHOD�0XQR]�XQGHU�WKH�VXSHUYLVLRQ�RI�'LFN�$SURQWL��3K�'��'HSDUWPHQW�RI

(QJLQHHULQJ
�,QYHVWLJDWRU�3KRQH��������������

}
<RX�DUH�EHLQJ�DVNHG�WR�SDUWLFLSDWH�LQ�D�UHVHDUFK�HYHQW�FRQGXFWHG�ZLWK�WKH�DSSURYDO�RI�WKH�$QJHOR�6WDWH�8QLYHUVLW\�,QVWLWXWLRQDO�5HYLHZ

%RDUG��,Q�RUGHU�WR�SDUWLFLSDWH��\RX�DUH�UHTXLUHG�WR�JLYH�\RXU�FRQVHQW�DIWHU�UHDGLQJ�WKLV�GRFXPHQW�
�$Q�H[SODQDWLRQ�RI�WKH�SURMHFW�LV�ZULWWHQ�EHORZ��ZKLFK�LQFOXGHV�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DERXW�WKH�SXUSRVH�RI�WKH�SURMHFW��WKH�SURFHGXUHV�WR�EH�XVHG�

DQG�WKH�SRWHQWLDO�EHQHILWV�DQG�SRVVLEOH�ULVNV�RI�SDUWLFLSDWLRQ��3OHDVH�UHDG�DQG��VKRXOG�\RX�GHFLGH�WR�SDUWLFLSDWH��LQGLFDWH�\RXU

DJUHHPHQW�RQ�WKLV�IRUP��8SRQ�UHTXHVW��\RX�ZLOO�EH�JLYHQ�DQ�XQVLJQHG�FRS\�RI�WKLV�IRUP�IRU�\RXU�UHFRUGV�
�5HIXVDO�WR�SDUWLFLSDWH�LQ�WKLV�VWXG\�ZLOO�QRW�DIIHFW�DQ\�IXWXUH�VHUYLFHV�\RX�PD\�EH�HQWLWOHG�WR�IURP�WKH�8QLYHUVLW\��$Q\RQH�ZKR�DJUHHV�WR

SDUWLFLSDWH�LQ�WKLV�VWXG\�LV�IUHH�WR�ZLWKGUDZ�IURP�WKH�VWXG\�DW�DQ\�WLPH�ZLWKRXW�SHQDOW\��,�DOVR�XQGHUVWDQG�WKDW�LW�LV�QRW�SRVVLEOH�WR
LGHQWLI\�DOO�SRWHQWLDO�ULVNV�LQ�D�VWXG\��DQG�,�EHOLHYH�WKDW�UHDVRQDEOH�VDIHJXDUGV�KDYH�EHHQ�WDNHQ�WR�PLQLPL]H�ERWK�WKH�NQRZQ�DQG

SRWHQWLDO�EXW�XQNQRZQ�ULVNV�
�<RX�PXVW�EH����\HDUV�RI�DJH�RU�ROGHU�WR�SDUWLFLSDWH�

����1DWXUH�DQG�3XUSRVH�RI�WKH�3URMHFW
�<RX�DUH�EHLQJ�DVNHG�WR�SDUWLFLSDWH�LQ�D�UHVHDUFK�VWXG\�IRU�WKH�&RQFKR�9DOOH\�7UDQVLW�'LVWULFW��&97'��VHUYLFH�DQG�WKH�6DQ�$QJHOR

0HWURSROLWDQ�3ODQQLQJ�2UJDQL]DWLRQ�ZLWK�WKH�VXSHUYLVLRQ�RI�'U��'LFN�$SURQWL�DW�$QJHOR�6WDWH�8QLYHUVLW\��7KLV�VWXG\�DLPV�WR�GHWHUPLQH

WKH�WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ�QHHGV�IRU�WKH�&RQFKR�9DOOH\�7UDQVLW�'LVWULFW��&97'��DQG�WKH�6DQ�$QJHOR�0HWURSROLWDQ�3ODQQLQJ�2UJDQL]DWLRQ

�6$032���7KH�VWXG\�UHVXOWV�ZLOO�EH�XVHG�WR�XSGDWH�WKH���\HDU�UHJLRQDO�KXPDQ�VHUYLFHV���SXEOLF�WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ�FRRUGLQDWLRQ�SODQ��<RX

DUH�RQO\�SHUPLWWHG�WR�SDUWLFLSDWH�RQFH�LQ�WKH�FXUUHQW�VWXG\�
����([SODQDWLRQ�RI�3URFHGXUHV�

�7KH�VWXG\�FRQVLVWV�RI�SDUWLFLSDQWV�FRPSOHWLQJ��RQOLQH�TXHVWLRQQDLUHV��7KH�TXHVWLRQQDLUHV�ZLOO�VXUYH\�\RXU�H[SHULHQFHV�ZLWK�XVLQJ�WKH

WUDQVLW�VHUYLFHV�DQG�\RXU�YLHZV�DERXW�WKH�WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ�V\VWHPV�DQG�LQIUDVWUXFWXUH�ZLWKLQ�WKH�&LW\�RI�6DQ�$QJHOR��&RPSOHWLQJ�WKH

VWXG\�ZLOO�WDNH�DSSUR[LPDWHO\����PLQXWHV��7KH�UHVXOWV�RI�WKH�VWXG\�ZLOO�EH�SXEOLVKHG�DQG�PDGH�SXEOLFO\�DYDLODEOH�E\�WKH�&RQFKR�9DOOH\

7UDQVLW�'LVWULFW�DQG�WKH�6DQ�$QJHOR�0HWURSROLWDQ�3ODQQLQJ�2UJDQL]DWLRQ�
�

3DUWLFLSDQWV�FDQ�DFFHVV�WKH�SXEOLFDWLRQ�IRU�IUHH�E\�YLVLWLQJ�WKHLU�ZHEVLWHV��7KHUH�ZLOO�EH�QR�FRPSHQVDWLRQ�IRU�FRPSOHWLQJ�WKH�VXUYH\�
����'LVFRPIRUW�DQG�5LVNV�

�7KH�ULVNV�RI�SDUWLFLSDWLQJ�LQ�WKLV�VWXG\�DUH�PLQLPDO�DQG�QRW�H[SHFWHG�WR�EH�JUHDWHU�WKDQ�WKRVH�H[SHULHQFHG�LQ�GDLO\�OLIH��6RPH�RI�WKH

TXHVWLRQV�PD\�FDXVH�VRPH�LQGLYLGXDOV�WR�IHHO�XQFRPIRUWDEOH��DQG�HYHU\RQH�KDV�WKH�ULJKW�WR�RPLW�DQVZHUV�WR�DQ\�TXHVWLRQV�ZLWKRXW

SHQDOW\�
����%HQHILWV�

�7KH�ILQGLQJV�IURP�WKLV�VWXG\�FDQ�DGG�WR�WKH�H[LVWLQJ�NQRZOHGJH�UHODWHG�WR�WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ�QHHGV�DVVHVVPHQWV��7KH�UHVXOWV�ZLOO�EH�XVHG

WR�XSGDWH�WKH�5HJLRQDO�&RRUGLQDWLRQ�7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ�3ODQ�
����&RQILGHQWLDOLW\�

�



���������������30 4XDOWULFV�6XUYH\�6RIWZDUH

KWWSV���DQJHOR�D]��TXDOWULFV�FRP�4�(GLW6HFWLRQ�%ORFNV�$MD[�*HW6XUYH\3ULQW3UHYLHZ"&RQWH[W6XUYH\,' 69B�<93�8U4��%$:Q<	&RQWH[W/LEUDU\,' « ����

<RXU�FRQILGHQWLDOLW\�LV�LPSRUWDQW��'DWD�ZLOO�EH�DFFHVVLEOH�RQO\�WR�WKH�UHVHDUFKHUV�WKURXJK�D�VHFXUH�SDVVZRUG�SURWHFWHG�RQOLQH�FORXG

VWRUDJH��*RRJOH�'ULYH��DQG�RQ�WKH�GDWDEDVH�RI�WKH�V\VWHP�XWLOL]HG�IRU�WKH�VXUYH\��4XDOWULFV��'DWD�ZLOO�EH�VWRUHG�IRU�D�SHULRG�RI���\HDUV

DIWHU�FRPSOHWLRQ�RI�WKH�VWXG\�DIWHU�ZKLFK�DOO�GDWD�ZLOO�EH�GHOHWHG��$OO�GDWD�ZLOO�EH�UHSRUWHG�DW�WKH�JURXS�OHYHO��DQG�\RXU�QDPH��RU�DQ\
RWKHU�LGHQWLI\LQJ�LQIRUPDWLRQ��ZLOO�QHYHU�EH�OLQNHG�WR�\RXU�LQGLYLGXDO�UHVSRQVHV��<RX�PD\�ULVN�D�ORVV�RI�FRQILGHQWLDOLW\�LI�\RX�FKRRVH�WR

HPDLO�WKH�UHVHDUFKHUV�WR�DVN�IRU�WKH�UHVXOWV�RI�WKH�VWXG\��,I�\RX�FKRRVH�WR�HPDLO�WKH�UHVHDUFKHUV��WKHQ�WKH�UHVHDUFKHUV�ZLOO�LPPHGLDWHO\

GHOHWH�VXFK�HPDLOV�DIWHU�UHVSRQGLQJ�WR�WKHP��7KHUH�LV�D�SRWHQWLDO�ULVN�RI�ORVV�RI�FRQILGHQWLDOLW\�LQ�DOO�HPDLO��GRZQORDGLQJ��DQG�LQWHUQHW

WUDQVDFWLRQV��$JUHHPHQW��%\�FOLFNLQJ�RQ�WKH�FRQWLQXH�EXWWRQ�EHORZ�\RX�DUH�LQGLFDWLQJ�WKDW�\RX�KDYH�UHDG�WKH�DERYH�SURFHGXUHV�DQG

WKDW�\RX�DUH�FRQVHQWLQJ�WR�YROXQWDULO\�SDUWLFLSDWH�LQ�WKLV�VWXG\�
7KLV�SURMHFW�KDV�EHHQ�UHYLHZHG�DQG�DSSURYHG�E\�WKH�$QJHOR�6WDWH�8QLYHUVLW\�,QVWLWXWLRQDO�5HYLHZ�%RDUG��,5%��IRU�WKH�SURWHFWLRQ�RI

KXPDQ�VXEMHFWV�LQ�UHVHDUFK�DQG�UHVHDUFK�UHODWHG�DFWLYLWLHV��,5%��$35��������t�$SULO����������

$Q\�TXHVWLRQV�UHJDUGLQJ�WKH�FRQGXFW�RI�WKH�SURMHFW��TXHVWLRQV�SHUWDLQLQJ�WR�\RXU�ULJKWV�DV�D�UHVHDUFK�VXEMHFW��RU�UHVHDUFK�UHODWHG�LQMXU\

VKRXOG�EH�EURXJKW�WR�WKH�DWWHQWLRQ�RI�WKH�,5%�DGPLQLVWUDWRU��'U��7D\�+DFN��WD\#DQJHOR�HGX��7(/������������������H[W��������$Q\�TXHVWLRQ

DERXW�WKLV�VSHFLILF�UHVHDUFK�SURMHFW�VKRXOG�EH�EURXJKW�WR�WKH�DWWHQWLRQ�RI�WKH�LQYHVWLJDWRU�OLVWHG�DW�WKH�WRS�RI�WKLV�IRUP�

&OLFN�FRQWLQXH�21/<�LI�\RX�DJUHH�WR�SDUWLFLSDWH�

(YHQW�)HHGEDFN

6XUYH\�RI�7UDQVLW�%XV�'ULYHUV��7UDQVLW�&KDOOHQJHV

7DNLQJ�LQWR�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�WKH�WUDQVLW�VHUYLFHV�SURYLGHG��UDWH�WKH�IROORZLQJ�LVVXHV�EDVHG�RQ
WKHLU�LPSDFWV�WR�WKH�WUDQVLW�XVHUV�}

6FKHGXOLQJ��1HHG�IRU�PRUH�IUHTXHQW�DQG�FRQYHQLHQW�VWRSV�DQG�GHVWLQDWLRQV�ZLWK
FRQVLVWHQW�UXQ�WLPHV�

&RQWLQXH

([LW�ZLWKRXW�GRLQJ�WKH�VXUYH\

1R�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�XVHUV

6OLJKW�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�XVHUV

0RGHUDWH�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�XVHUV

+LJK�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�XVHUV

6HYHUH�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�XVHUV

1R�2SLQLRQ



���������������30 4XDOWULFV�6XUYH\�6RIWZDUH

KWWSV���DQJHOR�D]��TXDOWULFV�FRP�4�(GLW6HFWLRQ�%ORFNV�$MD[�*HW6XUYH\3ULQW3UHYLHZ"&RQWH[W6XUYH\,' 69B�<93�8U4��%$:Q<	&RQWH[W/LEUDU\,' « ����

&RPPHQWV�

6XUYH\�RI�7UDQVLW�%XV�'ULYHUV��7UDQVLW�&KDOOHQJHV
}
7DNLQJ�LQWR�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�WKH�WUDQVLW�VHUYLFHV�SURYLGHG��UDWH�WKH�IROORZLQJ�LVVXHV�EDVHG�RQ

WKHLU�LPSDFWV�WR�WKH�WUDQVLW�XVHUV�}

$ZDUHQHVV��1HHG�IRU�DQ�LQFUHDVH�LQ�SXEOLF�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DQG�DZDUHQHVV�RI�WUDQVLW�VHUYLFHV�

&RPPHQWV�

6XUYH\�RI�7UDQVLW�%XV�'ULYHUV��7UDQVLW�&KDOOHQJHV
}

7DNLQJ�LQWR�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�WKH�WUDQVLW�VHUYLFHV�SURYLGHG��UDWH�WKH�IROORZLQJ�LVVXHV�EDVHG�RQ
WKHLU�LPSDFWV�WR�WKH�WUDQVLW�XVHUV�}

$FFHVVLELOLW\��1HHG�IRU�PRUH�DFFHVVLELOLW\�IRU�WUDQVLW�GHSHQGHQW�SRSXODWLRQV�QRW�EHLQJ
VHUYHG�

1R�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�XVHUV

6OLJKW�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�XVHUV

0RGHUDWH�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�XVHUV

+LJK�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�XVHUV

6HYHUH�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�XVHUV

1R�2SLQLRQ



���������������30 4XDOWULFV�6XUYH\�6RIWZDUH

KWWSV���DQJHOR�D]��TXDOWULFV�FRP�4�(GLW6HFWLRQ�%ORFNV�$MD[�*HW6XUYH\3ULQW3UHYLHZ"&RQWH[W6XUYH\,' 69B�<93�8U4��%$:Q<	&RQWH[W/LEUDU\,' « ����

&RPPHQWV�

6XUYH\�RI�7UDQVLW�%XV�'ULYHUV��7UDQVLW�&KDOOHQJHV
}

7DNLQJ�LQWR�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�WKH�WUDQVLW�VHUYLFHV�SURYLGHG��UDWH�WKH�IROORZLQJ�LVVXHV�EDVHG�RQ
WKHLU�LPSDFWV�WR�WKH�WUDQVLW�XVHUV�}

6HQLRUV��1HHG�WR�LPSURYH�DZDUHQHVV�DQG�DFFHVV�WR�WUDQVLW�VHUYLFHV�IRU�WKH�VHQLRU
SRSXODWLRQ�LQ�WKH�UHJLRQ�

&RPPHQWV�

1R�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�XVHUV

6OLJKW�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�XVHUV

0RGHUDWH�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�XVHUV

+LJK�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�XVHUV

6HYHUH�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�XVHUV

1R�2SLQLRQ

1R�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�XVHUV

6OLJKW�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�XVHUV

0RGHUDWH�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�XVHUV

+LJK�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�XVHUV

6HYHUH�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�XVHUV

1R�2SLQLRQ



���������������30 4XDOWULFV�6XUYH\�6RIWZDUH

KWWSV���DQJHOR�D]��TXDOWULFV�FRP�4�(GLW6HFWLRQ�%ORFNV�$MD[�*HW6XUYH\3ULQW3UHYLHZ"&RQWH[W6XUYH\,' 69B�<93�8U4��%$:Q<	&RQWH[W/LEUDU\,' « ����

6XUYH\�RI�7UDQVLW�%XV�'ULYHUV��7UDQVLW�&KDOOHQJHV

7DNLQJ�LQWR�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�WKH�WUDQVLW�VHUYLFHV�SURYLGHG��UDWH�WKH�IROORZLQJ�LVVXHV�EDVHG�RQ
WKHLU�LPSDFWV�WR�WKH�WUDQVLW�XVHUV�}

&DSDFLW\��1HHG�WR�LQFUHDVH�YHKLFOHV�DQG�VHUYLFHV�LQ�UXUDO�DUHDV��HQDEOH�PRUH�LQWUD�FRXQW\
DQG�LQWUD�FLW\�VHUYLFH�

&RPPHQWV�

6XUYH\�RI�7UDQVLW�%XV�'ULYHUV��7UDQVLW�&KDOOHQJHV
}

7DNLQJ�LQWR�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�WKH�WUDQVLW�VHUYLFHV�SURYLGHG��UDWH�WKH�IROORZLQJ�LVVXHV�EDVHG�RQ
WKHLU�LPSDFWV�WR�WKH�WUDQVLW�XVHUV�}

$SSRLQWPHQWV��1HHG�WR�LPSURYH�DSSRLQWPHQW�SURFHGXUHV�DQG�VFKHGXOLQJ�LQ�GHPDQG�
UHVSRQVH�VHUYLFHV��UHVROYH�LVVXHV�RYHU�VFKHGXOLQJ�0HGLFDLG�DQG�RWKHU�SULRULW\�ULGHUV�

0RGHUDWH�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�XVHUV

1R�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�XVHUV

6OLJKW�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�XVHUV

+LJK�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�XVHUV

6HYHUH�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�XVHUV

1R�2SLQLRQ

1R�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�XVHUV

6OLJKW�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�XVHUV

0RGHUDWH�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�XVHUV

+LJK�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�XVHUV



���������������30 4XDOWULFV�6XUYH\�6RIWZDUH

KWWSV���DQJHOR�D]��TXDOWULFV�FRP�4�(GLW6HFWLRQ�%ORFNV�$MD[�*HW6XUYH\3ULQW3UHYLHZ"&RQWH[W6XUYH\,' 69B�<93�8U4��%$:Q<	&RQWH[W/LEUDU\,' « ����

&RPPHQWV�

6XUYH\�RI�7UDQVLW�%XV�'ULYHUV��7UDQVLW�&KDOOHQJHV
}

7DNLQJ�LQWR�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�WKH�WUDQVLW�VHUYLFHV�SURYLGHG��UDWH�WKH�IROORZLQJ�LVVXHV�EDVHG�RQ
WKHLU�LPSDFWV�WR�WKH�WUDQVLW�XVHUV�}

/RZ�9HKLFOH�$FFHVV��1HHG�WR�LPSURYH�DZDUHQHVV�DQG�DFFHVV�WR�WUDQVLW�VHUYLFHV�E\�UHJLRQDO
UHVLGHQWV�ODFNLQJ�DFFHVV�WR�YHKLFOHV�

&RPPHQWV�

6XUYH\�RI�7UDQVLW�%XV�'ULYHUV��7UDQVLW�&KDOOHQJHV
}

6HYHUH�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW

1R�2SLQLRQ

1R�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�XVHUV

6OLJKW�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�XVHUV

0RGHUDWH�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�XVHUV

+LJK�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�XVHUV

6HYHUH�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�XVHUV

1R�2SLQLRQ



���������������30 4XDOWULFV�6XUYH\�6RIWZDUH

KWWSV���DQJHOR�D]��TXDOWULFV�FRP�4�(GLW6HFWLRQ�%ORFNV�$MD[�*HW6XUYH\3ULQW3UHYLHZ"&RQWH[W6XUYH\,' 69B�<93�8U4��%$:Q<	&RQWH[W/LEUDU\,' « ����

7DNLQJ�LQWR�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�WKH�WUDQVLW�VHUYLFHV�SURYLGHG��UDWH�WKH�IROORZLQJ�LVVXHV�EDVHG�RQ
WKHLU�LPSDFWV�WR�WKH�WUDQVLW�XVHUV�

9HWHUDQV��1HHG�WR�LPSURYH�DZDUHQHVV�DQG�DFFHVV�WR�WUDQVLW�VHUYLFHV�E\�YHWHUDQV��DFWLYH
GXW\�VHUYLFH�SHUVRQQHO�DQG�WKHLU�IDPLOLHV��HVSHFLDOO\�IRU�PHGLFDO�DQG�ZRUNIRUFH�SXUSRVHV�

&RPPHQWV�

6XUYH\�RI�7UDQVLW�%XV�'ULYHUV��7UDQVLW�&KDOOHQJHV
}

7DNLQJ�LQWR�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�WKH�WUDQVLW�VHUYLFHV�SURYLGHG��UDWH�WKH�IROORZLQJ�LVVXHV�EDVHG�RQ
WKHLU�LPSDFWV�WR�WKH�WUDQVLW�XVHUV�

8QLQVXUHG��1HHG�WR�LPSURYH�DZDUHQHVV�DQG�DFFHVV�WR�WUDQVLW�VHUYLFHV�IRU�PHGLFDO
SXUSRVHV�E\�PHGLFDOO\�XQLQVXUHG�UHVLGHQWV�LQ�WKH�UHJLRQ�

1R�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�XVHUV

6OLJKW�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�XVHUV

0RGHUDWH�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�XVHUV

+LJK�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�XVHUV

6HYHUH�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�XVHUV

1R�2SLQLRQ

1R�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�XVHUV

6OLJKW�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�XVHUV

0RGHUDWH�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�XVHUV

+LJK�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�XVHUV

6HYHUH�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�XVHUV

1R�2SLQLRQ



���������������30 4XDOWULFV�6XUYH\�6RIWZDUH

KWWSV���DQJHOR�D]��TXDOWULFV�FRP�4�(GLW6HFWLRQ�%ORFNV�$MD[�*HW6XUYH\3ULQW3UHYLHZ"&RQWH[W6XUYH\,' 69B�<93�8U4��%$:Q<	&RQWH[W/LEUDU\,' « ����

&RPPHQWV�

6XUYH\�RI�7UDQVLW�%XV�'ULYHUV��7UDQVLW�&KDOOHQJHV

7DNLQJ�LQWR�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�WKH�WUDQVLW�VHUYLFHV�SURYLGHG��UDWH�WKH�IROORZLQJ�LVVXHV�EDVHG�RQ
WKHLU�LPSDFWV�WR�WKH�WUDQVLW�XVHUV�

/RZ�LQFRPH��1HHG�WR�LPSURYH�DZDUHQHVV�DQG�DFFHVV�WR�WUDQVLW�VHUYLFHV�IRU�ORZ�LQFRPH
UHVLGHQWV�RI�WKH�UHJLRQ�

&RPPHQWV�

6XUYH\�RI�7UDQVLW�%XV�'ULYHUV��7UDQVLW�&KDOOHQJHV

7KLQNLQJ�DERXW�KRZ�IUHTXHQWO\�DQG�VHYHUHO\�WKH�OLYHV�RI�WKH�PHPEHUV�RI�WUDQVLW�GHSHQGHQW
SRSXODWLRQV�DUH�LPSDFWHG��KRZ�FULWLFDO�GR�\RX�ILQG�WKH�IROORZLQJ�FKDOOHQJHV�RI�WKH�FXUUHQW

WUDQVLW�VHUYLFH�

1R�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�GULYHUV

6OLJKW�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�GULYHUV

0RGHUDWH�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�GULYHUV

+LJK�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�GULYHUV

6HYHUH�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�GULYHUV

1R�2SLQLRQ



���������������30 4XDOWULFV�6XUYH\�6RIWZDUH

KWWSV���DQJHOR�D]��TXDOWULFV�FRP�4�(GLW6HFWLRQ�%ORFNV�$MD[�*HW6XUYH\3ULQW3UHYLHZ"&RQWH[W6XUYH\,' 69B�<93�8U4��%$:Q<	&RQWH[W/LEUDU\,' « ����

'LVDELOLWLHV��1HHG�WR�LPSURYH�DZDUHQHVV�DQG�DFFHVV�WR�WUDQVLW�VHUYLFHV�IRU�WKH�GLVDEOHG
UHVLGHQWV�RI�WKH�UHJLRQ�

&RPPHQWV�

6XUYH\�RI�7UDQVLW�%XV�'ULYHUV��7UDQVLW�&KDOOHQJHV
}

7DNLQJ�LQWR�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�WKH�WUDQVLW�VHUYLFHV�SURYLGHG��UDWH�WKH�IROORZLQJ�LVVXHV�EDVHG�RQ
WKHLU�LPSDFWV�WR�WKH�WUDQVLW�XVHUV�

:RUNHU�8WLOL]DWLRQ��1HHG�WR�LQFUHDVH�XWLOL]DWLRQ�RI�WUDQVLW�VHUYLFHV�IRU�WKH�WULS�WR�IURP�ZRUN�

&RPPHQWV�

1R�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�GULYHUV

6OLJKW�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�GULYHUV

0RGHUDWH�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�GULYHUV

+LJK�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�GULYHUV

6HYHUH�LPSDFW�WUDQVLW�GULYHUV

1R�2SLQLRQ

1R�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�GULYHUV

6OLJKW�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�GULYHUV

0RGHUDWH�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�GULYHUV

+LJK�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�GULYHUV

6HYHUH�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�GULYHUV

1R�2SLQLRQ



���������������30 4XDOWULFV�6XUYH\�6RIWZDUH

KWWSV���DQJHOR�D]��TXDOWULFV�FRP�4�(GLW6HFWLRQ�%ORFNV�$MD[�*HW6XUYH\3ULQW3UHYLHZ"&RQWH[W6XUYH\,' 69B�<93�8U4��%$:Q<	&RQWH[W/LEUDU\,' « �����

6XUYH\�RI�7UDQVLW�%XV�'ULYHUV��7UDQVLW�&KDOOHQJHV

7DNLQJ�LQWR�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�WKH�WUDQVLW�VHUYLFHV�SURYLGHG��UDWH�WKH�IROORZLQJ�LVVXHV�EDVHG�RQ
WKHLU�LPSDFWV�WR�WKH�WUDQVLW�XVHUV�

0HGLFDLG�6HUYLFH��1HHG�WR�LPSURYH�VHUYLFHV�IRU�0HGLFDLG�SDWLHQWV�LQ�UXUDO�DUHDV�

&RPPHQWV�

6XUYH\�RI�7UDQVLW�%XV�'ULYHUV��7UDQVLW�&KDOOHQJHV

7DNLQJ�LQWR�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�WKH�WUDQVLW�VHUYLFHV�SURYLGHG��UDWH�WKH�IROORZLQJ�LVVXHV�EDVHG�RQ
WKHLU�LPSDFWV�WR�WKH�WUDQVLW�XVHUV�

4XDOLW\�RI�ULGH��1HHG�WR�LPSURYH�SDYHPHQW�FRQGLWLRQV�IRU�D�PRUH�FRPIRUWDEOH�RU�VPRRWKHU
ULGH�

1R�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�GULYHUV

6OLJKW�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�GULYHUV

0RGHUDWH�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�GULYHUV

+LJK�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�GULYHUV

6HYHUH�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�GULYHUV

1R�2SLQLRQ

1R�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�GULYHUV

6OLJKW�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�GULYHUV



���������������30 4XDOWULFV�6XUYH\�6RIWZDUH

KWWSV���DQJHOR�D]��TXDOWULFV�FRP�4�(GLW6HFWLRQ�%ORFNV�$MD[�*HW6XUYH\3ULQW3UHYLHZ"&RQWH[W6XUYH\,' 69B�<93�8U4��%$:Q<	&RQWH[W/LEUDU\,' « �����

&RPPHQWV�

6XUYH\�RI�7UDQVLW�%XV�'ULYHUV��7UDQVLW�&KDOOHQJHV

7DNLQJ�LQWR�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ�WKH�WUDQVLW�VHUYLFHV�SURYLGHG��UDWH�WKH�IROORZLQJ�LVVXHV�EDVHG�RQ
WKHLU�LPSDFWV�WR�WKH�WUDQVLW�XVHUV�

3ULFLQJ��1HHG�WR�ILQG�IXQGV�WR�DLG�ULGHUV�ZKR�FDQQRW�DIIRUG�WR�SD\�IRU�WKH�VHUYLFH�

&RPPHQWV�

2WKHU�&KDOOHQJHV

0RGHUDWH�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�GULYHUV

+LJK�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�GULYHUV

6HYHUH�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�GULYHUV

1R�2SLQLRQ

1R�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�GULYHUV

6OLJKW�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�GULYHUV

0RGHUDWH�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�GULYHUV

+LJK�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�GULYHUV

6HYHUH�LPSDFW�RQ�WUDQVLW�GULYHUV

1R�2SLQLRQ



���������������30 4XDOWULFV�6XUYH\�6RIWZDUH

KWWSV���DQJHOR�D]��TXDOWULFV�FRP�4�(GLW6HFWLRQ�%ORFNV�$MD[�*HW6XUYH\3ULQW3UHYLHZ"&RQWH[W6XUYH\,' 69B�<93�8U4��%$:Q<	&RQWH[W/LEUDU\,' « �����

3RZHUHG�E\�4XDOWULFV

:KDW�RWKHU�FKDOOHQJLQJ�WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ�UHODWHG�LVVXHV�GR�\RX�VHH�ZKHQ�VHUYLQJ�FOLHQWV�WKDW
ZHUH�QRW�LQGLFDWHG�DERYH"

http://www.qualtrics.com/


 

44 
 

Appendix B: Planning Project Instruments ± Results from Driver Survey 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



'HIDXOW�5HSRUW
6XUYH\�RI�&97'�7UDQVLW�%XV�'ULYHUV
'HFHPEHU���������������30�067

4�����2QOLQH�6WXG\$QJHOR�6WDWH�8QLYHUVLW\�,QVWLWXWLRQDO�5HYLHZ�%RDUG��,5%��&RQVHQW�WR

3DUWLFLSDWH�LQ�DQ�,5%�$SSURYHG�5HVHDUFK�(YHQW�3URMHFW�7LWOH��7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ�1HHGV

$VVHVVPHQW�6WXG\�,QYHVWLJDWRU�1DPH�'HSDUWPHQW��/LQGD�$EHUQDWK\��'DQLHOD�0XQR]

XQGHU�WKH�VXSHUYLVLRQ�RI�'LFN�$SURQWL��3K�'��'HSDUWPHQW�RI�(QJLQHHULQJ�,QYHVWLJDWRU

3KRQH���������������<RX�DUH�EHLQJ�DVNHG�WR�SDUWLFLSDWH�LQ�D�UHVHDUFK�HYHQW�FRQGXFWHG

ZLWK�WKH�DSSURYDO�RI�WKH�$QJHOR�6WDWH�8QLYHUVLW\�,QVWLWXWLRQDO�5HYLHZ�%RDUG��,Q�RUGHU�WR

SDUWLFLSDWH��\RX�DUH�UHTXLUHG�WR�JLYH�\RXU�FRQVHQW�DIWHU�UHDGLQJ�WKLV�GRFXPHQW��$Q

H[SODQDWLRQ�RI�WKH�SURMHFW�LV�ZULWWHQ�EHORZ��ZKLFK�LQFOXGHV�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DERXW�WKH�SXUSRVH�RI

WKH�SURMHFW��WKH�SURFHGXUHV�WR�EH�XVHG��DQG�WKH�SRWHQWLDO�EHQHILWV�DQG�SRVVLEOH�ULVNV�RI

SDUWLFLSDWLRQ��3OHDVH�UHDG�DQG��VKRXOG�\RX�GHFLGH�WR�SDUWLFLSDWH��LQGLFDWH�\RXU�DJUHHPHQW

RQ�WKLV�IRUP��8SRQ�UHTXHVW��\RX�ZLOO�EH�JLYHQ�DQ�XQVLJQHG�FRS\�RI�WKLV�IRUP�IRU�\RXU

UHFRUGV��5HIXVDO�WR�SDUWLFLSDWH�LQ�WKLV�VWXG\�ZLOO�QRW�DIIHFW�DQ\�IXWXUH�VHUYLFHV�\RX�PD\�EH

HQWLWOHG�WR�IURP�WKH�8QLYHUVLW\��$Q\RQH�ZKR�DJUHHV�WR�SDUWLFLSDWH�LQ�WKLV�VWXG\�LV�IUHH�WR

ZLWKGUDZ�IURP�WKH�VWXG\�DW�DQ\�WLPH�ZLWKRXW�SHQDOW\��,�DOVR�XQGHUVWDQG�WKDW�LW�LV�QRW

SRVVLEOH�WR�LGHQWLI\�DOO�SRWHQWLDO�ULVNV�LQ�D�VWXG\��DQG�,�EHOLHYH�WKDW�UHDVRQDEOH�VDIHJXDUGV

KDYH�EHHQ�WDNHQ�WR�PLQLPL]H�ERWK�WKH�NQRZQ�DQG�SRWHQWLDO�EXW�XQNQRZQ�ULVNV��<RX�PXVW



EH����\HDUV�RI�DJH�RU�ROGHU�WR�SDUWLFLSDWH�����1DWXUH�DQG�3XUSRVH�RI�WKH�3URMHFW�<RX�DUH

EHLQJ�DVNHG�WR�SDUWLFLSDWH�LQ�D�UHVHDUFK�VWXG\�IRU�WKH�&RQFKR�9DOOH\�7UDQVLW�'LVWULFW

�&97'��VHUYLFH�DQG�WKH�6DQ�$QJHOR�0HWURSROLWDQ�3ODQQLQJ�2UJDQL]DWLRQ�ZLWK�WKH

VXSHUYLVLRQ�RI�'U��'LFN�$SURQWL�DW�$QJHOR�6WDWH�8QLYHUVLW\��7KLV�VWXG\�DLPV�WR�GHWHUPLQH

WKH�WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ�QHHGV�IRU�WKH�&RQFKR�9DOOH\�7UDQVLW�'LVWULFW��&97'��DQG�WKH�6DQ�$QJHOR

0HWURSROLWDQ�3ODQQLQJ�2UJDQL]DWLRQ��6$032���7KH�VWXG\�UHVXOWV�ZLOO�EH�XVHG�WR�XSGDWH�WKH

��\HDU�UHJLRQDO�KXPDQ�VHUYLFHV���SXEOLF�WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ�FRRUGLQDWLRQ�SODQ��<RX�DUH�RQO\

SHUPLWWHG�WR�SDUWLFLSDWH�RQFH�LQ�WKH�FXUUHQW�VWXG\�����([SODQDWLRQ�RI�3URFHGXUHV��7KH�VWXG\

FRQVLVWV�RI�SDUWLFLSDQWV�FRPSOHWLQJ��RQOLQH�TXHVWLRQQDLUHV��7KH�TXHVWLRQQDLUHV�ZLOO�VXUYH\

\RXU�H[SHULHQFHV�ZLWK�XVLQJ�WKH�WUDQVLW�VHUYLFHV�DQG�\RXU�YLHZV�DERXW�WKH�WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ

V\VWHPV�DQG�LQIUDVWUXFWXUH�ZLWKLQ�WKH�&LW\�RI�6DQ�$QJHOR��&RPSOHWLQJ�WKH�VWXG\�ZLOO�WDNH

DSSUR[LPDWHO\����PLQXWHV��7KH�UHVXOWV�RI�WKH�VWXG\�ZLOO�EH�SXEOLVKHG�DQG�PDGH�SXEOLFO\

DYDLODEOH�E\�WKH�&RQFKR�9DOOH\�7UDQVLW�'LVWULFW�DQG�WKH�6DQ�$QJHOR�0HWURSROLWDQ�3ODQQLQJ

2UJDQL]DWLRQ��3DUWLFLSDQWV�FDQ�DFFHVV�WKH�SXEOLFDWLRQ�IRU�IUHH�E\�YLVLWLQJ�WKHLU�ZHEVLWHV�

7KHUH�ZLOO�EH�QR�FRPSHQVDWLRQ�IRU�FRPSOHWLQJ�WKH�VXUYH\�����'LVFRPIRUW�DQG�5LVNV��7KH

ULVNV�RI�SDUWLFLSDWLQJ�LQ�WKLV�VWXG\�DUH�PLQLPDO�DQG�QRW�H[SHFWHG�WR�EH�JUHDWHU�WKDQ�WKRVH

H[SHULHQFHG�LQ�GDLO\�OLIH��6RPH�RI�WKH�TXHVWLRQV�PD\�FDXVH�VRPH�LQGLYLGXDOV�WR�IHHO

XQFRPIRUWDEOH��DQG�HYHU\RQH�KDV�WKH�ULJKW�WR�RPLW�DQVZHUV�WR�DQ\�TXHVWLRQV�ZLWKRXW



SHQDOW\�����%HQHILWV��7KH�ILQGLQJV�IURP�WKLV�VWXG\�FDQ�DGG�WR�WKH�H[LVWLQJ�NQRZOHGJH�UHODWHG

WR�WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ�QHHGV�DVVHVVPHQWV��7KH�UHVXOWV�ZLOO�EH�XVHG�WR�XSGDWH�WKH�5HJLRQDO

&RRUGLQDWLRQ�7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ�3ODQ�����&RQILGHQWLDOLW\��<RXU�FRQILGHQWLDOLW\�LV�LPSRUWDQW��'DWD

ZLOO�EH�DFFHVVLEOH�RQO\�WR�WKH�UHVHDUFKHUV�WKURXJK�D�VHFXUH�SDVVZRUG�SURWHFWHG�RQOLQH

FORXG�VWRUDJH��*RRJOH�'ULYH��DQG�RQ�WKH�GDWDEDVH�RI�WKH�V\VWHP�XWLOL]HG�IRU�WKH�VXUYH\�

4XDOWULFV��'DWD�ZLOO�EH�VWRUHG�IRU�D�SHULRG�RI���\HDUV�DIWHU�FRPSOHWLRQ�RI�WKH�VWXG\�DIWHU

ZKLFK�DOO�GDWD�ZLOO�EH�GHOHWHG��$OO�GDWD�ZLOO�EH�UHSRUWHG�DW�WKH�JURXS�OHYHO��DQG�\RXU�QDPH

�RU�DQ\�RWKHU�LGHQWLI\LQJ�LQIRUPDWLRQ��ZLOO�QHYHU�EH�OLQNHG�WR�\RXU�LQGLYLGXDO�UHVSRQVHV��<RX

PD\�ULVN�D�ORVV�RI�FRQILGHQWLDOLW\�LI�\RX�FKRRVH�WR�HPDLO�WKH�UHVHDUFKHUV�WR�DVN�IRU�WKH

UHVXOWV�RI�WKH�VWXG\��,I�\RX�FKRRVH�WR�HPDLO�WKH�UHVHDUFKHUV��WKHQ�WKH�UHVHDUFKHUV�ZLOO

LPPHGLDWHO\�GHOHWH�VXFK�HPDLOV�DIWHU�UHVSRQGLQJ�WR�WKHP��7KHUH�LV�D�SRWHQWLDO�ULVN�RI�ORVV

RI�FRQILGHQWLDOLW\�LQ�DOO�HPDLO��GRZQORDGLQJ��DQG�LQWHUQHW�WUDQVDFWLRQV��$JUHHPHQW��%\

FOLFNLQJ�RQ�WKH�FRQWLQXH�EXWWRQ�EHORZ�\RX�DUH�LQGLFDWLQJ�WKDW�\RX�KDYH�UHDG�WKH�DERYH

SURFHGXUHV�DQG�WKDW�\RX�DUH�FRQVHQWLQJ�WR�YROXQWDULO\�SDUWLFLSDWH�LQ�WKLV�VWXG\��7KLV�SURMHFW

KDV�EHHQ�UHYLHZHG�DQG�DSSURYHG�E\�WKH�$QJHOR�6WDWH�8QLYHUVLW\�,QVWLWXWLRQDO�5HYLHZ

%RDUG��,5%��IRU�WKH�SURWHFWLRQ�RI�KXPDQ�VXEMHFWV�LQ�UHVHDUFK�DQG�UHVHDUFK�UHODWHG

DFWLYLWLHV��,5%��$35ߟ���������$SULO�����������$Q\�TXHVWLRQV�UHJDUGLQJ�WKH�FRQGXFW�RI�WKH

SURMHFW��TXHVWLRQV�SHUWDLQLQJ�WR�\RXU�ULJKWV�DV�D�UHVHDUFK�VXEMHFW��RU�UHVHDUFK�UHODWHG



LQMXU\�VKRXOG�EH�EURXJKW�WR�WKH�DWWHQWLRQ�RI�WKH�,5%�DGPLQLVWUDWRU��'U��7D\�+DFN

�WD\#DQJHOR�HGX��7(/������������������H[W��������$Q\�TXHVWLRQ�DERXW�WKLV�VSHFLILF

UHVHDUFK�SURMHFW�VKRXOG�EH�EURXJKW�WR�WKH�DWWHQWLRQ�RI�WKH�LQYHVWLJDWRU�OLVWHG�DW�WKH�WRS�RI

WKLV�IRUP��&OLFN�FRQWLQXH�21/<�LI�\RX�DJUHH�WR�SDUWLFLSDWH�

�ÐÉë°Éð�

�ā°ë�ü°ëÐðë��Ð°É¨
ë��ãðßû�Ă

ƺ Ƽ ƾ ǀ ǂ ƻƺ ƻƼ ƻƾ ƻǀ ƻǂ Ƽƺ ƼƼ Ƽƾ Ƽǀ Ƽǂ

ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É
^ë�

��û°�ë°ÐÉ
u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

ƻ KÉÂ°É��^ëð�Ă�É¨�ÂÐ�^ë�ë��jÉ°û�ßã°ëĂ�/Éãë°ëðë°ÐÉ�Â�Z�û°�ü��Ð�ß��Ȩ/Z�ȩ
�ÐÉã�Éë�ëÐ�W�ßë°�°Ü�ë��°É��É�/Z�ȭ�ÜÜßÐû���Z�ã��ß���û�Éë�WßÐ¼��ë

e°ëÂ�ȓ�eß�ÉãÜÐßë�ë°ÐÉ�E���ã��ãã�ããÈ�Éë�^ëð�Ă�/Éû�ãë°¨�ëÐß
E�È�ȡ��Ü�ßëÈ�Éëȓ�>°É������ßÉ�ëĂȔ���É°�Â��DðÉÐć�ðÉ��ß�ë�
ãðÜ�ßû°ã°ÐÉ�Ð§��°�¿��ÜßÐÉë°Ȕ�Wț�țȡ��Ü�ßëÈ�Éë�Ð§��É¨°É��ß°É¨

/Éû�ãë°¨�ëÐß�WÐÉ�ȓ�ƽƼƿȭƾǂƿȭƿƿƻƼ�|Ðð��ß����°É¨��ã¿���ëÐ�Ü�ßë°�°Ü�ë�
°É���ß�ã��ß���û�Éë��ÐÉ�ð�ë���ü°ë�ë���ÜÜßÐû�Â�Ð§�ë���É¨�ÂÐ�^ë�ë�
jÉ°û�ßã°ëĂ�/Éãë°ëðë°ÐÉ�Â�Z�û°�ü��Ð�ß�ț�/É�Ðß��ß�ëÐ�Ü�ßë°�°Ü�ë�Ȕ�ĂÐð��ß�

ß�Þð°ß���ëÐ�¨°û��ĂÐðß��ÐÉã�Éë��§ë�ß�ß���°É¨�ë°ã��Ð�ðÈ�Éëț��É
�āÜÂ�É�ë°ÐÉ�Ð§�ë��ÜßÐ¼��ë�°ã�üß°ëë�É���ÂÐüȔ�ü°��°É�Âð��ã�°É§ÐßÈ�ë°ÐÉ
��Ððë�ë��ÜðßÜÐã��Ð§�ë��ÜßÐ¼��ëȔ�ë��ÜßÐ���ðß�ã�ëÐ����ðã��Ȕ��É��ë�
ÜÐë�Éë°�Â���É�Ďëã��É��ÜÐãã°�Â��ß°ã¿ã�Ð§�Ü�ßë°�°Ü�ë°ÐÉț�WÂ��ã��ß�����É�Ȕ
ãÐðÂ��ĂÐð����°���ëÐ�Ü�ßë°�°Ü�ë�Ȕ�°É�°��ë��ĂÐðß��¨ß��È�Éë�ÐÉ�ë°ã

§ÐßÈț�jÜÐÉ�ß�Þð�ãëȔ�ĂÐð�ü°ÂÂ����¨°û�É��É�ðÉã°¨É����ÐÜĂ�Ð§�ë°ã�§ÐßÈ
§Ðß�ĂÐðß�ß��Ðß�ãț�Z�§ðã�Â�ëÐ�Ü�ßë°�°Ü�ë��°É�ë°ã�ãëð�Ă�ü°ÂÂ�ÉÐë��ċ��ë��ÉĂ
§ðëðß��ã�ßû°��ã�ĂÐð�È�Ă�����Éë°ëÂ���ëÐ�§ßÐÈ�ë��jÉ°û�ßã°ëĂț��ÉĂÐÉ�
üÐ��¨ß��ã�ëÐ�Ü�ßë°�°Ü�ë��°É�ë°ã�ãëð�Ă�°ã�§ß���ëÐ�ü°ë�ß�ü�§ßÐÈ�ë�
ãëð�Ă��ë��ÉĂ�ë°È��ü°ëÐðë�Ü�É�ÂëĂț�/��ÂãÐ�ðÉ��ßãë�É��ë�ë�°ë�°ã�ÉÐë
ÜÐãã°�Â��ëÐ�°��Éë°§Ă��ÂÂ�ÜÐë�Éë°�Â�ß°ã¿ã�°É���ãëð�ĂȔ��É��/���Â°�û��ë�ë

ß��ãÐÉ��Â��ã�§�¨ð�ß�ã��û�����É�ë�¿�É�ëÐ�È°É°È°ć���Ðë�ë��¿ÉÐüÉ
�É��ÜÐë�Éë°�Â��ðë�ðÉ¿ÉÐüÉ�ß°ã¿ãț�|Ðð�Èðãë����ƻǂ�Ă��ßã�Ð§��¨��Ðß
ÐÂ��ß�ëÐ�Ü�ßë°�°Ü�ë�ț�ƻț�E�ëðß���É��WðßÜÐã��Ð§�ë��WßÐ¼��ë�|Ðð��ß�

��°É¨��ã¿���ëÐ�Ü�ßë°�°Ü�ë��°É���ß�ã��ß��ãëð�Ă�§Ðß�ë���ÐÉ�Ð�u�ÂÂ�Ă
eß�Éã°ë��°ãëß°�ë�Ȩ�ue�ȩ�ã�ßû°����É��ë��^�É��É¨�ÂÐ�D�ëßÐÜÐÂ°ë�É
WÂ�ÉÉ°É¨�Kß¨�É°ć�ë°ÐÉ�ü°ë�ë��ãðÜ�ßû°ã°ÐÉ�Ð§��ßț��°�¿��ÜßÐÉë°��ë

�É¨�ÂÐ�^ë�ë��jÉ°û�ßã°ëĂț�e°ã�ãëð�Ă��°Èã�ëÐ���ë�ßÈ°É��ë�
ëß�ÉãÜÐßë�ë°ÐÉ�É���ã�§Ðß�ë���ÐÉ�Ð�u�ÂÂ�Ă�eß�Éã°ë��°ãëß°�ë�Ȩ�ue�ȩ��É�
ë��^�É��É¨�ÂÐ�D�ëßÐÜÐÂ°ë�É�WÂ�ÉÉ°É¨�Kß¨�É°ć�ë°ÐÉ�Ȩ^�DWKȩț�e�
ãëð�Ă�ß�ãðÂëã�ü°ÂÂ����ðã���ëÐ�ðÜ��ë��ë��ƿȭĂ��ß�ß�¨°ÐÉ�Â�ðÈ�É
ã�ßû°��ã�ȭ�Üð�Â°��ëß�ÉãÜÐßë�ë°ÐÉ��ÐÐß�°É�ë°ÐÉ�ÜÂ�Éț�|Ðð��ß��ÐÉÂĂ

Ü�ßÈ°ëë���ëÐ�Ü�ßë°�°Ü�ë��ÐÉ���°É�ë���ðßß�Éë�ãëð�Ăț�Ƽț��āÜÂ�É�ë°ÐÉ�Ð§
WßÐ���ðß�ãț�e��ãëð�Ă��ÐÉã°ãëã�Ð§�Ü�ßë°�°Ü�Éëã��ÐÈÜÂ�ë°É¨Ȕ�ÐÉÂ°É�

Þð�ãë°ÐÉÉ�°ß�ãț�e��Þð�ãë°ÐÉÉ�°ß�ã�ü°ÂÂ�ãðßû�Ă�ĂÐðß��āÜ�ß°�É��ã�ü°ë
ðã°É¨�ë��ëß�Éã°ë�ã�ßû°��ã��É��ĂÐðß�û°�üã���Ððë�ë��ëß�ÉãÜÐßë�ë°ÐÉ

ƻțƺƺ Ƽțƺƺ ƻțƻƺ ƺțƽƺ ƺțƺǃ ƽƺ



ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É
^ë�

��û°�ë°ÐÉ
u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

ãĂãë�Èã��É��°É§ß�ãëßð�ëðß��ü°ë°É�ë���°ëĂ�Ð§�^�É��É¨�ÂÐț��ÐÈÜÂ�ë°É¨
ë��ãëð�Ă�ü°ÂÂ�ë�¿���ÜÜßÐā°È�ë�ÂĂ�ƻƿ�È°Éðë�ãț�e��ß�ãðÂëã�Ð§�ë��ãëð�Ă
ü°ÂÂ����Üð�Â°ã����É��È����Üð�Â°�ÂĂ��û�°Â��Â���Ă�ë���ÐÉ�Ð�u�ÂÂ�Ă

eß�Éã°ë��°ãëß°�ë��É��ë��^�É��É¨�ÂÐ�D�ëßÐÜÐÂ°ë�É�WÂ�ÉÉ°É¨
Kß¨�É°ć�ë°ÐÉț�W�ßë°�°Ü�Éëã���É�����ãã�ë��Üð�Â°��ë°ÐÉ�§Ðß�§ß����Ă

û°ã°ë°É¨�ë�°ß�ü��ã°ë�ãț�e�ß��ü°ÂÂ����ÉÐ��ÐÈÜ�Éã�ë°ÐÉ�§Ðß��ÐÈÜÂ�ë°É¨
ë��ãðßû�Ăț�ƽț��°ã�ÐÈ§Ðßë��É��Z°ã¿ãț�e��ß°ã¿ã�Ð§�Ü�ßë°�°Ü�ë°É¨�°É�ë°ã

ãëð�Ă��ß��È°É°È�Â��É��ÉÐë��āÜ��ë���ëÐ����¨ß��ë�ß�ë�É�ëÐã�
�āÜ�ß°�É����°É���°ÂĂ�Â°§�ț�^ÐÈ��Ð§�ë��Þð�ãë°ÐÉã�È�Ă���ðã��ãÐÈ�

°É�°û°�ð�Âã�ëÐ�§��Â�ðÉ�ÐÈ§Ðßë��Â�Ȕ��É���û�ßĂÐÉ���ã�ë��ß°¨ë�ëÐ�ÐÈ°ë
�Éãü�ßã�ëÐ��ÉĂ�Þð�ãë°ÐÉã�ü°ëÐðë�Ü�É�ÂëĂț�ƾț���É�Ďëãț�e��ĎÉ�°É¨ã

§ßÐÈ�ë°ã�ãëð�Ă���É�����ëÐ�ë���ā°ãë°É¨�¿ÉÐüÂ��¨��ß�Â�ë���ëÐ
ëß�ÉãÜÐßë�ë°ÐÉ�É���ã��ãã�ããÈ�Éëãț�e��ß�ãðÂëã�ü°ÂÂ����ðã���ëÐ�ðÜ��ë�
ë��Z�¨°ÐÉ�Â��ÐÐß�°É�ë°ÐÉ�eß�ÉãÜÐßë�ë°ÐÉ�WÂ�Éț�ƿț��ÐÉĎ��Éë°�Â°ëĂț�|Ððß

�ÐÉĎ��Éë°�Â°ëĂ�°ã�°ÈÜÐßë�Éëț���ë��ü°ÂÂ��������ãã°�Â��ÐÉÂĂ�ëÐ�ë�
ß�ã��ß��ßã�ëßÐð¨���ã��ðß��Ü�ããüÐß�ȭÜßÐë��ë���ÐÉÂ°É���ÂÐð�

ãëÐß�¨�Ȕ�'ÐÐ¨Â���ß°û�Ȕ��É��ÐÉ�ë����ë���ã��Ð§�ë��ãĂãë�È�ðë°Â°ć���§Ðß
ë��ãðßû�ĂȔ�Yð�Âëß°�ãț���ë��ü°ÂÂ����ãëÐß���§Ðß���Ü�ß°Ð��Ð§�ƽ�Ă��ßã��§ë�ß
�ÐÈÜÂ�ë°ÐÉ�Ð§�ë��ãëð�Ă��§ë�ß�ü°���ÂÂ���ë��ü°ÂÂ������Â�ë��ț��ÂÂ���ë�
ü°ÂÂ����ß�ÜÐßë����ë�ë��¨ßÐðÜ�Â�û�ÂȔ��É��ĂÐðß�É�È��ȨÐß��ÉĂ�Ðë�ß
°��Éë°§Ă°É¨�°É§ÐßÈ�ë°ÐÉȩ�ü°ÂÂ�É�û�ß����Â°É¿���ëÐ�ĂÐðß�°É�°û°�ð�Â

ß�ãÜÐÉã�ãț�|Ðð�È�Ă�ß°ã¿���ÂÐãã�Ð§��ÐÉĎ��Éë°�Â°ëĂ�°§�ĂÐð��ÐÐã��ëÐ
�È�°Â�ë��ß�ã��ß��ßã�ëÐ��ã¿�§Ðß�ë��ß�ãðÂëã�Ð§�ë��ãëð�Ăț�/§�ĂÐð
�ÐÐã��ëÐ��È�°Â�ë��ß�ã��ß��ßãȔ�ë�É�ë��ß�ã��ß��ßã�ü°ÂÂ

°ÈÈ��°�ë�ÂĂ���Â�ë��ãð���È�°Âã��§ë�ß�ß�ãÜÐÉ�°É¨�ëÐ�ë�Èț�e�ß��°ã��
ÜÐë�Éë°�Â�ß°ã¿�Ð§�ÂÐãã�Ð§��ÐÉĎ��Éë°�Â°ëĂ�°É��ÂÂ��È�°ÂȔ��ÐüÉÂÐ��°É¨Ȕ��É�
°Éë�ßÉ�ë�ëß�Éã��ë°ÐÉãț��¨ß��È�Éëȓ��Ă��Â°�¿°É¨�ÐÉ�ë���ÐÉë°Éð���ðëëÐÉ
��ÂÐü�ĂÐð��ß��°É�°��ë°É¨�ë�ë�ĂÐð��û��ß����ë����Ðû��ÜßÐ���ðß�ã
�É��ë�ë�ĂÐð��ß���ÐÉã�Éë°É¨�ëÐ�ûÐÂðÉë�ß°ÂĂ�Ü�ßë°�°Ü�ë��°É�ë°ã�ãëð�Ăț
e°ã�ÜßÐ¼��ë��ã����É�ß�û°�ü����É���ÜÜßÐû����Ă�ë���É¨�ÂÐ�^ë�ë�
jÉ°û�ßã°ëĂ�/Éãë°ëðë°ÐÉ�Â�Z�û°�ü��Ð�ß��Ȩ/Z�ȩ�§Ðß�ë��ÜßÐë��ë°ÐÉ�Ð§

ðÈ�É�ãð�¼��ëã�°É�ß�ã��ß���É��ß�ã��ß�ȭß�Â�ë�����ë°û°ë°�ãț�/Z��ș�WZȭ
ƺƾƼǂƼƻ�ȫ��Üß°Â�ƼǂȔ�ƼƺƼƻț��ÉĂ�Þð�ãë°ÐÉã�ß�¨�ß�°É¨�ë���ÐÉ�ð�ë�Ð§�ë�
ÜßÐ¼��ëȔ�Þð�ãë°ÐÉã�Ü�ßë�°É°É¨�ëÐ�ĂÐðß�ß°¨ëã��ã���ß�ã��ß��ãð�¼��ëȔ�Ðß
ß�ã��ß�ȭß�Â�ë���°É¼ðßĂ�ãÐðÂ������ßÐð¨ë�ëÐ�ë���ëë�Éë°ÐÉ�Ð§�ë��/Z�
��È°É°ãëß�ëÐßȔ��ßț�e�Ă�,��¿�Ȩë�Ăɪ�É¨�ÂÐț��ðȩ�e�>ȓ�ȨƽƼƿȩ�ǃƾƼȭƼƺǀǂȔ
�āëț�ǀƻƼƻț��ÉĂ�Þð�ãë°ÐÉ���Ððë�ë°ã�ãÜ��°Ď��ß�ã��ß��ÜßÐ¼��ë�ãÐðÂ����
�ßÐð¨ë�ëÐ�ë���ëë�Éë°ÐÉ�Ð§�ë��°Éû�ãë°¨�ëÐß�Â°ãë����ë�ë��ëÐÜ�Ð§�ë°ã

§ÐßÈț��Â°�¿��ÐÉë°Éð��KE>|�°§�ĂÐð��¨ß���ëÐ�Ü�ßë°�°Ü�ë�ț

^Ðü°É¨�ßÐüã�ƻ�ȭ�ƽ�Ð§�ƽ

ș &°�Â�
�Ð°��
�ÐðÉë

ƻ �ÐÉë°Éð� ǃƺțƺƺɟ Ƽǁ

Ƽ �ā°ë�ü°ëÐðë��Ð°É¨�ë��ãðßû�Ă ƻƺțƺƺɟ ƽ

ƽƺ



4����6FKHGXOLQJ��1HHG�IRU�PRUH�IUHTXHQW�DQG�FRQYHQLHQW�VWRSV�DQG�GHVWLQDWLRQV�ZLWK

FRQVLVWHQW�UXQ�WLPHV�

EÐ�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë
ðã�ßã

^Â°¨ë�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã

DÐ��ß�ë��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã

,°¨�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã

^�û�ß��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã

EÐ�KÜ°É°ÐÉ

ƺ ƻ Ƽ ƽ ƾ ƿ ǀ ǁ ǂ

ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É
^ë�

��û°�ë°ÐÉ
u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

ƻ
^���ðÂ°É¨ȓ�E����§Ðß�ÈÐß��§ß�Þð�Éë��É���ÐÉû�É°�Éë�ãëÐÜã��É�

��ãë°É�ë°ÐÉã�ü°ë��ÐÉã°ãë�Éë�ßðÉ�ë°È�ãț
ƻțƺƺ ǀțƺƺ ƽțƽƿ ƻțƾǀ Ƽțƻƾ Ƽƽ

^Ðü°É¨�ßÐüã�ƻ�ȭ�ǁ�Ð§�ǁ

ș &°�Â�
�Ð°��
�ÐðÉë

ƻ EÐ�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã ƻǁțƽǃɟ ƾ

Ƽ ^Â°¨ë�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã ƾțƽƿɟ ƻ

ƽ DÐ��ß�ë��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã ƽƺțƾƽɟ ǁ

ƾ ,°¨�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã ƽƾțǁǂɟ ǂ

ƿ ^�û�ß��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ǀ EÐ�KÜ°É°ÐÉ ƻƽțƺƾɟ ƽ

Ƽƽ



4�����&RPPHQWV�

�ÐÈÈ�Éëãȓ



4����$ZDUHQHVV��1HHG�IRU�DQ�LQFUHDVH�LQ�SXEOLF�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DQG�DZDUHQHVV�RI�WUDQVLW

VHUYLFHV�

EÐ�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë
ðã�ßã

DÐ��ß�ë��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã

,°¨�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã

^�û�ß��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã

EÐ�KÜ°É°ÐÉ

^Â°¨ë�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã

ƺ ƻ Ƽ ƽ ƾ ƿ ǀ ǁ ǂ ǃ ƻƺ ƻƻ ƻƼ

ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É
^ë�

��û°�ë°ÐÉ
u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

ƻ
�ü�ß�É�ããȓ�E����§Ðß��É�°É�ß��ã��°É�Üð�Â°��°É§ÐßÈ�ë°ÐÉ��É���ü�ß�É�ãã

Ð§�ëß�Éã°ë�ã�ßû°��ãț
ƻțƺƺ ǀțƺƺ ƽțƾƽ ƻțƾǁ Ƽțƻǀ Ƽƽ

^Ðü°É¨�ßÐüã�ƻ�ȭ�ǁ�Ð§�ǁ

ș &°�Â�
�Ð°��
�ÐðÉë

ƻ EÐ�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã ǂțǁƺɟ Ƽ

Ƽ DÐ��ß�ë��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã ƻƽțƺƾɟ ƽ

ƽ ,°¨�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã ƾǁțǂƽɟ ƻƻ

ƿ ^�û�ß��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã ƻǁțƽǃɟ ƾ

ǀ EÐ�KÜ°É°ÐÉ ƻƽțƺƾɟ ƽ

ǁ ^Â°¨ë�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

Ƽƽ



4�����&RPPHQWV�

�ÐÈÈ�Éëãȓ

°É�ë��ãÈ�ÂÂ�ëÐüÉã�Ü�ÐÜÂ��ãë°ÂÂ��Ð�ÉÐë�¿ÉÐü�Ðü�ëÐ�ðã��ë��ëß�Éã°ë�ãĂãë�Èț�Ðß�ë�ë�ë�Ă��û�É���Éț

�ÂÂ��Â°�Éëã��ÐÈÜÂĂ�ü°ë�ÜßÐ���ðß�ã��ãë��Â°ã��



4����$FFHVVLELOLW\��1HHG�IRU�PRUH�DFFHVVLELOLW\�IRU�WUDQVLW�GHSHQGHQW�SRSXODWLRQV�QRW�EHLQJ

VHUYHG�

EÐ�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë
ðã�ßã

^Â°¨ë�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã

DÐ��ß�ë��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã

,°¨�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã

^�û�ß��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã

EÐ�KÜ°É°ÐÉ

ƺ ƻ Ƽ ƽ ƾ ƿ ǀ ǁ ǂ

ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É
^ë�

��û°�ë°ÐÉ
u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

ƻ
����ãã°�°Â°ëĂȓ�E����§Ðß�ÈÐß������ãã°�°Â°ëĂ�§Ðß�ëß�Éã°ë���Ü�É��Éë

ÜÐÜðÂ�ë°ÐÉã�ÉÐë���°É¨�ã�ßû��ț
ƻțƺƺ ǀțƺƺ ƾțƺƺ ƻțƿƺ ƼțƼǀ Ƽƽ

^Ðü°É¨�ßÐüã�ƻ�ȭ�ǁ�Ð§�ǁ

ș &°�Â�
�Ð°��
�ÐðÉë

ƻ EÐ�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã ǂțǁƺɟ Ƽ

Ƽ ^Â°¨ë�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã ƾțƽƿɟ ƻ

ƽ DÐ��ß�ë��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã Ƽƻțǁƾɟ ƿ

ƾ ,°¨�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã ƽƾțǁǂɟ ǂ

ƿ ^�û�ß��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã ƾțƽƿɟ ƻ

ǀ EÐ�KÜ°É°ÐÉ Ƽǀțƺǃɟ ǀ

Ƽƽ



4�����&RPPHQWV�

�ÐÈÈ�Éëãȓ



4����6HQLRUV��1HHG�WR�LPSURYH�DZDUHQHVV�DQG�DFFHVV�WR�WUDQVLW�VHUYLFHV�IRU�WKH�VHQLRU

SRSXODWLRQ�LQ�WKH�UHJLRQ�

EÐ�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë
ðã�ßã

^Â°¨ë�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã

DÐ��ß�ë��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã

,°¨�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã

^�û�ß��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã

EÐ�KÜ°É°ÐÉ

ƺ ƻ Ƽ ƽ ƾ ƿ ǀ ǁ ǂ

ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É
^ë�

��û°�ë°ÐÉ
u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

ƻ
^�É°Ðßãȓ�E����ëÐ�°ÈÜßÐû���ü�ß�É�ãã��É������ãã�ëÐ�ëß�Éã°ë�ã�ßû°��ã�§Ðß

ë��ã�É°Ðß�ÜÐÜðÂ�ë°ÐÉ�°É�ë��ß�¨°ÐÉț
ƻțƺƺ ǀțƺƺ ƽțǃƻ ƻțƽƼ ƻțǁƽ Ƽƽ

^Ðü°É¨�ßÐüã�ƻ�ȭ�ǁ�Ð§�ǁ

ș &°�Â�
�Ð°��
�ÐðÉë

ƻ EÐ�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã ǂțǁƺɟ Ƽ

Ƽ ^Â°¨ë�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƽ DÐ��ß�ë��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã Ƽǀțƺǃɟ ǀ

ƾ ,°¨�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã ƽƾțǁǂɟ ǂ

ƿ ^�û�ß��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã ƻǁțƽǃɟ ƾ

ǀ EÐ�KÜ°É°ÐÉ ƻƽțƺƾɟ ƽ

Ƽƽ



4�����&RPPHQWV�

�ÐÈÈ�Éëãȓ

�¨�°É�Ü�ÐÜÂ��ãë°ÂÂ��Ð�ÉÐë�¿ÉÐü���Ððë�ëß�Éã°ë�Ðß�°§�ë�Ă��Ð�ë�Ă��ÐÉë�¿ÉÐü�Ðü�ëÐ�����ãã�°ë



4����&DSDFLW\��1HHG�WR�LQFUHDVH�YHKLFOHV�DQG�VHUYLFHV�LQ�UXUDO�DUHDV��HQDEOH�PRUH�LQWUD�

FRXQW\�DQG�LQWUD�FLW\�VHUYLFH�

EÐ�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë
ðã�ßã

^Â°¨ë�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã

DÐ��ß�ë��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã

^�û�ß��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã

EÐ�KÜ°É°ÐÉ

,°¨�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã

ƺ ƻ Ƽ ƽ ƾ ƿ ǀ ǁ ǂ ǃ ƻƺ ƻƻ

ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É
^ë�

��û°�ë°ÐÉ
u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

ƻ
��Ü��°ëĂȓ�E����ëÐ�°É�ß��ã��û�°�Â�ã��É��ã�ßû°��ã�°É�ßðß�Â��ß��ãȠ

�É��Â��ÈÐß��°Éëß�ȭ�ÐðÉëĂ��É��°Éëß�ȭ�°ëĂ�ã�ßû°��ț
ƻțƺƺ ǃǃțƺƺ ƾǀțƾǂ ƾǀțƼǀ Ƽƻƾƺțƺǂ Ƽƽ

^Ðü°É¨�ßÐüã�ƻ�ȭ�ǁ�Ð§�ǁ

ș &°�Â�
�Ð°��
�ÐðÉë

ƻ EÐ�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã ǂțǁƺɟ Ƽ

Ƽ ^Â°¨ë�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã ǂțǁƺɟ Ƽ

ƽ DÐ��ß�ë��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã Ƽƻțǁƾɟ ƿ

ƻƾ ^�û�ß��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã ǂțǁƺɟ Ƽ

ƻƿ EÐ�KÜ°É°ÐÉ ǂțǁƺɟ Ƽ

ǃǃ ,°¨�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã ƾƽțƾǂɟ ƻƺ

Ƽƽ



4�����&RPPHQWV�

�ÐÈÈ�Éëãȓ

ÈÐß��Ü�ÐÜÂ��üÐðÂ��ðã��ëß�Éã°ë�Ð§�ë�ß��ü�ß��ÈÐß��ãÈ�ÂÂ�ßðÉã�Ððë�Ð§�ëÐüÉ



4����$SSRLQWPHQWV��1HHG�WR�LPSURYH�DSSRLQWPHQW�SURFHGXUHV�DQG�VFKHGXOLQJ�LQ

GHPDQG�UHVSRQVH�VHUYLFHV��UHVROYH�LVVXHV�RYHU�VFKHGXOLQJ�0HGLFDLG�DQG�RWKHU�SULRULW\

ULGHUV�

EÐ�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë
ðã�ßã

^Â°¨ë�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã

DÐ��ß�ë��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã

,°¨�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã

^�û�ß��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë

EÐ�KÜ°É°ÐÉ

ƺ ƻ Ƽ ƽ ƾ ƿ ǀ ǁ ǂ ǃ

ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É
^ë�

��û°�ë°ÐÉ
u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

ƻ
�ÜÜÐ°ÉëÈ�Éëãȓ�E����ëÐ�°ÈÜßÐû���ÜÜÐ°ÉëÈ�Éë�ÜßÐ���ðß�ã��É�
ã���ðÂ°É¨�°É���È�É�ȭß�ãÜÐÉã��ã�ßû°��ãȠ�ß�ãÐÂû��°ããð�ã�Ðû�ß

ã���ðÂ°É¨�D��°��°���É��Ðë�ß�Üß°Ðß°ëĂ�ß°��ßãț
ƻțƺƺ ǀțƺƺ ƾțƺǃ ƻțƾǁ Ƽțƻǁ Ƽƽ

^Ðü°É¨�ßÐüã�ƻ�ȭ�ǁ�Ð§�ǁ

ș &°�Â�
�Ð°��
�ÐðÉë

ƻ EÐ�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã ƻƽțƺƾɟ ƽ

Ƽ ^Â°¨ë�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã ƾțƽƿɟ ƻ

ƽ DÐ��ß�ë��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƾ ,°¨�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã ƽǃțƻƽɟ ǃ

ƿ ^�û�ß��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë ƽƺțƾƽɟ ǁ

ǀ EÐ�KÜ°É°ÐÉ ƻƽțƺƾɟ ƽ

Ƽƽ



4�����&RPPHQWV�

�ÐÈÈ�Éëãȓ



4����/RZ�9HKLFOH�$FFHVV��1HHG�WR�LPSURYH�DZDUHQHVV�DQG�DFFHVV�WR�WUDQVLW�VHUYLFHV�E\

UHJLRQDO�UHVLGHQWV�ODFNLQJ�DFFHVV�WR�YHKLFOHV�

EÐ�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë
ðã�ßã

^Â°¨ë�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã

DÐ��ß�ë��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã

,°¨�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã

^�û�ß��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã

EÐ�KÜ°É°ÐÉ

ƺ ƻ Ƽ ƽ ƾ ƿ ǀ ǁ ǂ

ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É
^ë�

��û°�ë°ÐÉ
u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

ƻ
>Ðü�u�°�Â������ããȓ�E����ëÐ�°ÈÜßÐû���ü�ß�É�ãã��É������ãã�ëÐ�ëß�Éã°ë

ã�ßû°��ã��Ă�ß�¨°ÐÉ�Â�ß�ã°��Éëã�Â��¿°É¨�����ãã�ëÐ�û�°�Â�ãț
ƻțƺƺ ǀțƺƺ ƽțǁǂ ƻțƾƾ Ƽțƺǂ Ƽƽ

^Ðü°É¨�ßÐüã�ƻ�ȭ�ǁ�Ð§�ǁ

ș &°�Â�
�Ð°��
�ÐðÉë

ƻ EÐ�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã ǂțǁƺɟ Ƽ

Ƽ ^Â°¨ë�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã ƻƽțƺƾɟ ƽ

ƽ DÐ��ß�ë��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã ƻƽțƺƾɟ ƽ

ƾ ,°¨�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã ƽƾțǁǂɟ ǂ

ƿ ^�û�ß��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã ƻǁțƽǃɟ ƾ

ǀ EÐ�KÜ°É°ÐÉ ƻƽțƺƾɟ ƽ

Ƽƽ



4�����&RPPHQWV�

�ÐÈÈ�Éëãȓ



4����9HWHUDQV��1HHG�WR�LPSURYH�DZDUHQHVV�DQG�DFFHVV�WR�WUDQVLW�VHUYLFHV�E\�YHWHUDQV�

DFWLYH�GXW\�VHUYLFH�SHUVRQQHO�DQG�WKHLU�IDPLOLHV��HVSHFLDOO\�IRU�PHGLFDO�DQG�ZRUNIRUFH

SXUSRVHV�

EÐ�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë
ðã�ßã

^Â°¨ë�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã

DÐ��ß�ë��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã

,°¨�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã

^�û�ß��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã

EÐ�KÜ°É°ÐÉ

ƺ ƻ Ƽ ƽ ƾ ƿ ǀ ǁ ǂ

ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É
^ë�

��û°�ë°ÐÉ
u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

ƻ
u�ë�ß�Éãȓ�E����ëÐ�°ÈÜßÐû���ü�ß�É�ãã��É������ãã�ëÐ�ëß�Éã°ë�ã�ßû°��ã

�Ă�û�ë�ß�ÉãȔ���ë°û���ðëĂ�ã�ßû°���Ü�ßãÐÉÉ�Â��É��ë�°ß�§�È°Â°�ãȔ
�ãÜ��°�ÂÂĂ�§Ðß�È��°��Â��É��üÐß¿§Ðß���ÜðßÜÐã�ãț

ƻțƺƺ ǀțƺƺ ƽțǁǂ ƻțƿǀ Ƽțƾƽ Ƽƽ

^Ðü°É¨�ßÐüã�ƻ�ȭ�ǁ�Ð§�ǁ

ș &°�Â�
�Ð°��
�ÐðÉë

ƻ EÐ�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã ƻƽțƺƾɟ ƽ

Ƽ ^Â°¨ë�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã ǂțǁƺɟ Ƽ

ƽ DÐ��ß�ë��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã ƻƽțƺƾɟ ƽ

ƾ ,°¨�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã ƽƾțǁǂɟ ǂ

ƿ ^�û�ß��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã ƻƽțƺƾɟ ƽ

ǀ EÐ�KÜ°É°ÐÉ ƻǁțƽǃɟ ƾ

Ƽƽ



4�����&RPPHQWV�

�ÐÈÈ�Éëãȓ



4����8QLQVXUHG��1HHG�WR�LPSURYH�DZDUHQHVV�DQG�DFFHVV�WR�WUDQVLW�VHUYLFHV�IRU�PHGLFDO

SXUSRVHV�E\�PHGLFDOO\�XQLQVXUHG�UHVLGHQWV�LQ�WKH�UHJLRQ�

EÐ�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë
ðã�ßã

^Â°¨ë�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã

DÐ��ß�ë��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã

,°¨�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã

^�û�ß��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã

EÐ�KÜ°É°ÐÉ

ƺ ƻ Ƽ ƽ ƾ ƿ ǀ ǁ ǂ

ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É
^ë�

��û°�ë°ÐÉ
u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

ƻ
jÉ°Éãðß��ȓ�E����ëÐ�°ÈÜßÐû���ü�ß�É�ãã��É������ãã�ëÐ�ëß�Éã°ë�ã�ßû°��ã
§Ðß�È��°��Â�ÜðßÜÐã�ã��Ă�È��°��ÂÂĂ�ðÉ°Éãðß���ß�ã°��Éëã�°É�ë��ß�¨°ÐÉț

ƻțƺƺ ǀțƺƺ ƽțǀƿ ƻțƾǀ Ƽțƻƾ Ƽƽ

^Ðü°É¨�ßÐüã�ƻ�ȭ�ǁ�Ð§�ǁ

ș &°�Â�
�Ð°��
�ÐðÉë

ƻ EÐ�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã ǂțǁƺɟ Ƽ

Ƽ ^Â°¨ë�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã ƻƽțƺƾɟ ƽ

ƽ DÐ��ß�ë��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã Ƽƻțǁƾɟ ƿ

ƾ ,°¨�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã ƽƾțǁǂɟ ǂ

ƿ ^�û�ß��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�ßã ƾțƽƿɟ ƻ

ǀ EÐ�KÜ°É°ÐÉ ƻǁțƽǃɟ ƾ

Ƽƽ



4�����&RPPHQWV�

�ÐÈÈ�Éëãȓ



4�����/RZ�LQFRPH��1HHG�WR�LPSURYH�DZDUHQHVV�DQG�DFFHVV�WR�WUDQVLW�VHUYLFHV�IRU�ORZ�

LQFRPH�UHVLGHQWV�RI�WKH�UHJLRQ�

EÐ�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë
�ß°û�ßã

^Â°¨ë�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã

DÐ��ß�ë��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã

,°¨�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã

^�û�ß��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã

EÐ�KÜ°É°ÐÉ

ƺ ƻ Ƽ ƽ ƾ ƿ ǀ ǁ

ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É
^ë�

��û°�ë°ÐÉ
u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

ƻ
>Ðü�°É�ÐÈ�ȓ�E����ëÐ�°ÈÜßÐû���ü�ß�É�ãã��É������ãã�ëÐ�ëß�Éã°ë

ã�ßû°��ã�§Ðß�ÂÐüȭ°É�ÐÈ��ß�ã°��Éëã�Ð§�ë��ß�¨°ÐÉț
ƻțƺƺ ǀțƺƺ ƽțǀƾ ƻțƽƺ ƻțǀǃ ƼƼ

^Ðü°É¨�ßÐüã�ƻ�ȭ�ǁ�Ð§�ǁ

ș &°�Â�
�Ð°��
�ÐðÉë

ƻ EÐ�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã ǃțƺǃɟ Ƽ

Ƽ ^Â°¨ë�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã ƾțƿƿɟ ƻ

ƽ DÐ��ß�ë��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã ƽƻțǂƼɟ ǁ

ƾ ,°¨�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã ƽƻțǂƼɟ ǁ

ƿ ^�û�ß��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã ƻƽțǀƾɟ ƽ

ǀ EÐ�KÜ°É°ÐÉ ǃțƺǃɟ Ƽ

ƼƼ



4�����&RPPHQWV�

�ÐÈÈ�Éëãȓ



4�����'LVDELOLWLHV��1HHG�WR�LPSURYH�DZDUHQHVV�DQG�DFFHVV�WR�WUDQVLW�VHUYLFHV�IRU�WKH

GLVDEOHG�UHVLGHQWV�RI�WKH�UHJLRQ�

EÐ�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë
�ß°û�ßã

^Â°¨ë�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã

DÐ��ß�ë��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã

,°¨�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã

^�û�ß��°ÈÜ��ë�ëß�Éã°ë
�ß°û�ßã

EÐ�KÜ°É°ÐÉ

ƺ ƻ Ƽ ƽ ƾ ƿ ǀ ǁ ǂ ǃ

ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É
^ë�

��û°�ë°ÐÉ
u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

ƻ
�°ã��°Â°ë°�ãȓ�E����ëÐ�°ÈÜßÐû���ü�ß�É�ãã��É������ãã�ëÐ�ëß�Éã°ë�ã�ßû°��ã

§Ðß�ë���°ã��Â���ß�ã°��Éëã�Ð§�ë��ß�¨°ÐÉț
ƻțƺƺ ƿțƺƺ ƽțƽƿ ƻțƻƽ ƻțƼǁ Ƽƽ

^Ðü°É¨�ßÐüã�ƻ�ȭ�ǁ�Ð§�ǁ

ș &°�Â�
�Ð°��
�ÐðÉë

ƻ EÐ�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã ǂțǁƺɟ Ƽ

Ƽ ^Â°¨ë�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã ƻƽțƺƾɟ ƽ

ƽ DÐ��ß�ë��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã Ƽǀțƺǃɟ ǀ

ƾ ,°¨�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã ƽǃțƻƽɟ ǃ

ƿ ^�û�ß��°ÈÜ��ë�ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã ƻƽțƺƾɟ ƽ

ǀ EÐ�KÜ°É°ÐÉ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

Ƽƽ



4�����&RPPHQWV�

�ÐÈÈ�Éëãȓ



4�����:RUNHU�8WLOL]DWLRQ��1HHG�WR�LQFUHDVH�XWLOL]DWLRQ�RI�WUDQVLW�VHUYLFHV�IRU�WKH�WULS�WR�IURP

ZRUN�

EÐ�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë
�ß°û�ßã

^Â°¨ë�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã

DÐ��ß�ë��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã

,°¨�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã

^�û�ß��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã

EÐ�KÜ°É°ÐÉ

ƺ ƻ Ƽ ƽ ƾ ƿ ǀ ǁ ǂ

ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É
^ë�

��û°�ë°ÐÉ
u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

ƻ
vÐß¿�ß�jë°Â°ć�ë°ÐÉȓ�E����ëÐ�°É�ß��ã��ðë°Â°ć�ë°ÐÉ�Ð§�ëß�Éã°ë�ã�ßû°��ã�§Ðß

ë��ëß°Ü�ëÐȡ§ßÐÈ�üÐß¿ț
ƻțƺƺ ǀțƺƺ ƽțƼǀ ƻțƽǃ ƻțǃƽ Ƽƽ

^Ðü°É¨�ßÐüã�ƻ�ȭ�ǁ�Ð§�ǁ

ș &°�Â�
�Ð°��
�ÐðÉë

ƻ EÐ�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã ƻƽțƺƾɟ ƽ

Ƽ ^Â°¨ë�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã ƻǁțƽǃɟ ƾ

ƽ DÐ��ß�ë��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã Ƽƻțǁƾɟ ƿ

ƾ ,°¨�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã ƽƾțǁǂɟ ǂ

ƿ ^�û�ß��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã ƾțƽƿɟ ƻ

ǀ EÐ�KÜ°É°ÐÉ ǂțǁƺɟ Ƽ

Ƽƽ



4�����&RPPHQWV�

�ÐÈÈ�Éëãȓ



4�����0HGLFDLG�6HUYLFH��1HHG�WR�LPSURYH�VHUYLFHV�IRU�0HGLFDLG�SDWLHQWV�LQ�UXUDO�DUHDV�

EÐ�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë
�ß°û�ßã

^Â°¨ë�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã

DÐ��ß�ë��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã

,°¨�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã

^�û�ß��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã

EÐ�KÜ°É°ÐÉ

ƺ ƻ Ƽ ƽ ƾ ƿ ǀ ǁ ǂ ǃ

ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É
^ë�

��û°�ë°ÐÉ
u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

ƻ
D��°��°��^�ßû°��ȓ�E����ëÐ�°ÈÜßÐû��ã�ßû°��ã�§Ðß�D��°��°��Ü�ë°�Éëã�°É

ßðß�Â��ß��ãț
ƻțƺƺ ǀțƺƺ ƽțǀƻ ƻțǀƽ Ƽțǀǁ Ƽƽ

^Ðü°É¨�ßÐüã�ƻ�ȭ�ǁ�Ð§�ǁ

ș &°�Â�
�Ð°��
�ÐðÉë

ƻ EÐ�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã ƻƽțƺƾɟ ƽ

Ƽ ^Â°¨ë�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã ƻǁțƽǃɟ ƾ

ƽ DÐ��ß�ë��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã ǂțǁƺɟ Ƽ

ƾ ,°¨�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã ƽǃțƻƽɟ ǃ

ƿ ^�û�ß��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ǀ EÐ�KÜ°É°ÐÉ Ƽƻțǁƾɟ ƿ

Ƽƽ



4�����&RPPHQWV�

�ÐÈÈ�Éëãȓ

����ðã��È��°��°��È�¿�ã�ãðß��ë�°ß�ðã�ßã��ß���ü�ß��Ð§�ëß�Éã°ëȔ�ë�Ă��Âß���Ă�È�¿��ëß°Üã



4�����4XDOLW\�RI�ULGH��1HHG�WR�LPSURYH�SDYHPHQW�FRQGLWLRQV�IRU�D�PRUH�FRPIRUWDEOH�RU

VPRRWKHU�ULGH�

EÐ�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë
�ß°û�ßã

^Â°¨ë�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã

DÐ��ß�ë��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã

,°¨�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã

^�û�ß��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã

EÐ�KÜ°É°ÐÉ

ƺ ƻ Ƽ ƽ ƾ ƿ ǀ ǁ ǂ ǃ ƻƺ ƻƻ

ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É
^ë�

��û°�ë°ÐÉ
u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

ƻ
Yð�Â°ëĂ�Ð§�ß°��ȓ�E����ëÐ�°ÈÜßÐû��Ü�û�È�Éë��ÐÉ�°ë°ÐÉã�§Ðß���ÈÐß�

�ÐÈ§Ðßë��Â��Ðß�ãÈÐÐë�ß�ß°��ț
Ƽțƺƺ ǀțƺƺ ƾțƽƿ ƺțǂǁ ƺțǁƿ Ƽƽ

^Ðü°É¨�ßÐüã�ƻ�ȭ�ǁ�Ð§�ǁ

ș &°�Â�
�Ð°��
�ÐðÉë

ƻ EÐ�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

Ƽ ^Â°¨ë�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã ƾțƽƿɟ ƻ

ƽ DÐ��ß�ë��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã ǂțǁƺɟ Ƽ

ƾ ,°¨�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã ƽǃțƻƽɟ ǃ

ƿ ^�û�ß��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã ƾƽțƾǂɟ ƻƺ

ǀ EÐ�KÜ°É°ÐÉ ƾțƽƿɟ ƻ

Ƽƽ



4�����&RPPHQWV�

�ÐÈÈ�Éëãȓ

È�ÉĂ�ãðß§����ãëß��ëã�°É�ðß��É��ß����ß��°É�ã�û�ß��É����Ð§�ß�ãðß§��°É¨��É��°ÈÜ��ë��ÐÈ§Ðßë�Ð§�ß°���§Ðß�Ü�ãã�É¨�ßã��É���ß°û�ßã��É��°ÈÜ��ë�È�°Éë�É�É��
Ð§��Þð°ÜÈ�Éë

�Â°�Éëã�ãëß�ÜÜ��ÐÉëÐ�ü��Â��°ßã�ãÐÈ�ë°È���ÐÈÜÂ�°É���Ððë�ÜÐë�ÐÂ�ã��É��ßÐð¨�ßÐ��ã



4�����3ULFLQJ��1HHG�WR�ILQG�IXQGV�WR�DLG�ULGHUV�ZKR�FDQQRW�DIIRUG�WR�SD\�IRU�WKH�VHUYLFH�

EÐ�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë
�ß°û�ßã

^Â°¨ë�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã

DÐ��ß�ë��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã

,°¨�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã

^�û�ß��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ
ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã

EÐ�KÜ°É°ÐÉ

ƺ ƻ Ƽ ƽ ƾ ƿ ǀ ǁ

ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É
^ë�

��û°�ë°ÐÉ
u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

ƻ
Wß°�°É¨ȓ�E����ëÐ�ĎÉ��§ðÉ�ã�ëÐ��°��ß°��ßã�üÐ���ÉÉÐë��ċÐß��ëÐ�Ü�Ă�§Ðß

ë��ã�ßû°��ț
ƻțƺƺ ǀțƺƺ ƽțƻǁ ƻțǁǃ ƽțƻǃ Ƽƽ

^Ðü°É¨�ßÐüã�ƻ�ȭ�ǁ�Ð§�ǁ

ș &°�Â�
�Ð°��
�ÐðÉë

ƻ EÐ�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã ƽƺțƾƽɟ ǁ

Ƽ ^Â°¨ë�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã ǂțǁƺɟ Ƽ

ƽ DÐ��ß�ë��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã ƻƽțƺƾɟ ƽ

ƾ ,°¨�°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã Ƽƻțǁƾɟ ƿ

ƿ ^�û�ß��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë��ß°û�ßã ƻƽțƺƾɟ ƽ

ǀ EÐ�KÜ°É°ÐÉ ƻƽțƺƾɟ ƽ

Ƽƽ



4�����&RPPHQWV�

�ÐÈÈ�Éëãȓ



4�����2WKHU�&KDOOHQJHV�:KDW�RWKHU�FKDOOHQJLQJ�WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ�UHODWHG�LVVXHV�GR�\RX�VHH

ZKHQ�VHUYLQJ�FOLHQWV�WKDW�ZHUH�QRW�LQGLFDWHG�DERYH"

�É��Ð§�Z�ÜÐßë

Kë�ß���ÂÂ�É¨�ã�v�ë�Ðë�ß���ÂÂ�É¨°É¨�ëß�ÉãÜÐßë�ë°ÐÉ�ß�Â�ë���°ããð�ã��Ð�ĂÐțțț

ã°É���ü���û��ã�û�ß�Â��°ċ�ß�Éë��ðãã�ãȔ�ãÐÈ���ß����ëë�ß�Ðß���ã°�ß�§Ðß��Â��ßÂĂ��É���°ã��Â���Ü�ÐÜÂ�ț������ðã��ã�°ëã�ÐÉ���ÂÂ�É¨�ã��É����É�ãÂÐü��ÐüÉ
ÐÐ¿�ðÜ�ë°È��Ð§�ãð���ã�ü��Â��°ßã

ÉÐÉ�

ÉÐÉ�

��ÂÐë�Ð§�Ü�ÐÜÂ��§ßÐÈ�ßðß�Â��ß��ã��Ð�ÉÐë�¿ÉÐü�Ð§�Ððß�ã�ßû°��ãț�ü��É����ëÐ��û��ãÐ�ãÐßë�Ð§�Üð�Â°���ÉÉÐðÉ��È�Éë

EÐÉ��ÉÐë��



 

45 
 

Appendix C: Planning Project Instruments ± Survey for Passengers 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



���������������30 4XDOWULFV�6XUYH\�6RIWZDUH

KWWSV���DQJHOR�D]��TXDOWULFV�FRP�4�(GLW6HFWLRQ�%ORFNV�$MD[�*HW6XUYH\3ULQW3UHYLHZ"&RQWH[W6XUYH\,' 69B�0;�$6&::%9$T\L	&RQWH[W/LEUDU\,' 8« ���

%ORFN��

$QJHOR�6WDWH�8QLYHUVLW\

,QVWLWXWLRQDO�5HYLHZ�%RDUG��,5%�

&RQVHQW�WR�3DUWLFLSDWH�LQ�DQ�,5%�$SSURYHG�5HVHDUFK�(YHQW

}

3URMHFW�7LWOH��7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ�1HHGV�$VVHVVPHQW�6WXG\

,QYHVWLJDWRU�1DPH�'HSDUWPHQW��/LQGD�$EHUQDWK\��'DQLHOD�0XQR]�XQGHU�WKH�VXSHUYLVLRQ�RI�'LFN

$SURQWL��3K�'��'HSDUWPHQW�RI�(QJLQHHULQJ

,QYHVWLJDWRU�3KRQH��������������

}

<RX�DUH�EHLQJ�DVNHG�WR�SDUWLFLSDWH�LQ�D�UHVHDUFK�HYHQW�FRQGXFWHG�ZLWK�WKH�DSSURYDO�RI�WKH�$QJHOR

6WDWH�8QLYHUVLW\�,QVWLWXWLRQDO�5HYLHZ�%RDUG��,Q�RUGHU�WR�SDUWLFLSDWH��\RX�DUH�UHTXLUHG�WR�JLYH�\RXU

FRQVHQW�DIWHU�UHDGLQJ�WKLV�GRFXPHQW�

$Q�H[SODQDWLRQ�RI�WKH�SURMHFW�LV�ZULWWHQ�EHORZ��ZKLFK�LQFOXGHV�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DERXW�WKH�SXUSRVH�RI�WKH

SURMHFW��WKH�SURFHGXUHV�WR�EH�XVHG��DQG�WKH�SRWHQWLDO�EHQHILWV�DQG�SRVVLEOH�ULVNV�RI�SDUWLFLSDWLRQ�

3OHDVH�UHDG�DQG��VKRXOG�\RX�GHFLGH�WR�SDUWLFLSDWH��LQGLFDWH�\RXU�DJUHHPHQW�RQ�WKLV�IRUP��8SRQ

UHTXHVW��\RX�ZLOO�EH�JLYHQ�DQ�XQVLJQHG�FRS\�RI�WKLV�IRUP�IRU�\RXU�UHFRUGV�

5HIXVDO�WR�SDUWLFLSDWH�LQ�WKLV�VWXG\�ZLOO�QRW�DIIHFW�DQ\�IXWXUH�VHUYLFHV�\RX�PD\�EH�HQWLWOHG�WR�IURP�WKH

8QLYHUVLW\��$Q\RQH�ZKR�DJUHHV�WR�SDUWLFLSDWH�LQ�WKLV�VWXG\�LV�IUHH�WR�ZLWKGUDZ�IURP�WKH�VWXG\�DW�DQ\

WLPH�ZLWKRXW�SHQDOW\��,�DOVR�XQGHUVWDQG�WKDW�LW�LV�QRW�SRVVLEOH�WR�LGHQWLI\�DOO�SRWHQWLDO�ULVNV�LQ�D�VWXG\�

DQG�,�EHOLHYH�WKDW�UHDVRQDEOH�VDIHJXDUGV�KDYH�EHHQ�WDNHQ�WR�PLQLPL]H�ERWK�WKH�NQRZQ�DQG�SRWHQWLDO

EXW�XQNQRZQ�ULVNV�

<RX�PXVW�EH����\HDUV�RI�DJH�RU�ROGHU�WR�SDUWLFLSDWH�

���1DWXUH�DQG�3XUSRVH�RI�WKH�3URMHFW

<RX�DUH�EHLQJ�DVNHG�WR�SDUWLFLSDWH�LQ�D�UHVHDUFK�VWXG\�IRU�WKH�&RQFKR�9DOOH\�7UDQVLW�'LVWULFW��&97'�

VHUYLFH�DQG�WKH�6DQ�$QJHOR�0HWURSROLWDQ�3ODQQLQJ�2UJDQL]DWLRQ�ZLWK�WKH�VXSHUYLVLRQ�RI�'U��'LFN

$SURQWL�DW�$QJHOR�6WDWH�8QLYHUVLW\��7KLV�VWXG\�DLPV�WR�GHWHUPLQH�WKH�WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ�QHHGV�IRU�WKH

&RQFKR�9DOOH\�7UDQVLW�'LVWULFW��&97'��DQG�WKH�6DQ�$QJHOR�0HWURSROLWDQ�3ODQQLQJ�2UJDQL]DWLRQ

�6$032���7KH�VWXG\�UHVXOWV�ZLOO�EH�XVHG�WR�XSGDWH�WKH���\HDU�UHJLRQDO�KXPDQ�VHUYLFHV���SXEOLF

WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ�FRRUGLQDWLRQ�SODQ��<RX�DUH�RQO\�SHUPLWWHG�WR�SDUWLFLSDWH�RQFH�LQ�WKH�FXUUHQW�VWXG\�

���([SODQDWLRQ�RI�3URFHGXUHV�



���������������30 4XDOWULFV�6XUYH\�6RIWZDUH

KWWSV���DQJHOR�D]��TXDOWULFV�FRP�4�(GLW6HFWLRQ�%ORFNV�$MD[�*HW6XUYH\3ULQW3UHYLHZ"&RQWH[W6XUYH\,' 69B�0;�$6&::%9$T\L	&RQWH[W/LEUDU\,' 8« ���

7KH�VWXG\�FRQVLVWV�RI�SDUWLFLSDQWV�FRPSOHWLQJ��RQOLQH�TXHVWLRQQDLUHV��7KH�TXHVWLRQQDLUHV�ZLOO�VXUYH\

\RXU�H[SHULHQFHV�ZLWK�XVLQJ�WKH�WUDQVLW�VHUYLFHV�DQG�\RXU�YLHZV�DERXW�WKH�WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ�V\VWHPV�DQG

LQIUDVWUXFWXUH�ZLWKLQ�WKH�&LW\�RI�6DQ�$QJHOR��&RPSOHWLQJ�WKH�VWXG\�ZLOO�WDNH�DSSUR[LPDWHO\����PLQXWHV�

7KH�UHVXOWV�RI�WKH�VWXG\�ZLOO�EH�SXEOLVKHG�DQG�PDGH�SXEOLFO\�DYDLODEOH�E\�WKH�&RQFKR�9DOOH\�7UDQVLW

'LVWULFW�DQG�WKH�6DQ�$QJHOR�0HWURSROLWDQ�3ODQQLQJ�2UJDQL]DWLRQ�

3DUWLFLSDQWV�FDQ�DFFHVV�WKH�SXEOLFDWLRQ�IRU�IUHH�E\�YLVLWLQJ�WKHLU�ZHEVLWHV��7KHUH�ZLOO�EH�QR

FRPSHQVDWLRQ�IRU�FRPSOHWLQJ�WKH�VXUYH\�

���'LVFRPIRUW�DQG�5LVNV�

7KH�ULVNV�RI�SDUWLFLSDWLQJ�LQ�WKLV�VWXG\�DUH�PLQLPDO�DQG�QRW�H[SHFWHG�WR�EH�JUHDWHU�WKDQ�WKRVH

H[SHULHQFHG�LQ�GDLO\�OLIH��6RPH�RI�WKH�TXHVWLRQV�PD\�FDXVH�VRPH�LQGLYLGXDOV�WR�IHHO�XQFRPIRUWDEOH�

DQG�HYHU\RQH�KDV�WKH�ULJKW�WR�RPLW�DQVZHUV�WR�DQ\�TXHVWLRQV�ZLWKRXW�SHQDOW\�

���%HQHILWV�

7KH�ILQGLQJV�IURP�WKLV�VWXG\�FDQ�DGG�WR�WKH�H[LVWLQJ�NQRZOHGJH�UHODWHG�WR�WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ�QHHGV

DVVHVVPHQWV��7KH�UHVXOWV�ZLOO�EH�XVHG�WR�XSGDWH�WKH�5HJLRQDO�&RRUGLQDWLRQ�7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ�3ODQ�

���&RQILGHQWLDOLW\�

<RXU�FRQILGHQWLDOLW\�LV�LPSRUWDQW��'DWD�ZLOO�EH�DFFHVVLEOH�RQO\�WR�WKH�UHVHDUFKHUV�WKURXJK�D�VHFXUH

SDVVZRUG�SURWHFWHG�RQOLQH�FORXG�VWRUDJH��*RRJOH�'ULYH��DQG�RQ�WKH�GDWDEDVH�RI�WKH�V\VWHP�XWLOL]HG�IRU

WKH�VXUYH\��4XDOWULFV��'DWD�ZLOO�EH�VWRUHG�IRU�D�SHULRG�RI���\HDUV�DIWHU�FRPSOHWLRQ�RI�WKH�VWXG\�DIWHU

ZKLFK�DOO�GDWD�ZLOO�EH�GHOHWHG��$OO�GDWD�ZLOO�EH�UHSRUWHG�DW�WKH�JURXS�OHYHO��DQG�\RXU�QDPH��RU�DQ\�RWKHU

LGHQWLI\LQJ�LQIRUPDWLRQ��ZLOO�QHYHU�EH�OLQNHG�WR�\RXU�LQGLYLGXDO�UHVSRQVHV��<RX�PD\�ULVN�D�ORVV�RI

FRQILGHQWLDOLW\�LI�\RX�FKRRVH�WR�HPDLO�WKH�UHVHDUFKHUV�WR�DVN�IRU�WKH�UHVXOWV�RI�WKH�VWXG\��,I�\RX�FKRRVH

WR�HPDLO�WKH�UHVHDUFKHUV��WKHQ�WKH�UHVHDUFKHUV�ZLOO�LPPHGLDWHO\�GHOHWH�VXFK�HPDLOV�DIWHU�UHVSRQGLQJ�WR

WKHP��7KHUH�LV�D�SRWHQWLDO�ULVN�RI�ORVV�RI�FRQILGHQWLDOLW\�LQ�DOO�HPDLO��GRZQORDGLQJ��DQG�LQWHUQHW

WUDQVDFWLRQV��$JUHHPHQW��%\�FOLFNLQJ�RQ�WKH�FRQWLQXH�EXWWRQ�EHORZ�\RX�DUH�LQGLFDWLQJ�WKDW�\RX�KDYH

UHDG�WKH�DERYH�SURFHGXUHV�DQG�WKDW�\RX�DUH�FRQVHQWLQJ�WR�YROXQWDULO\�SDUWLFLSDWH�LQ�WKLV�VWXG\�

7KLV�SURMHFW�KDV�EHHQ�UHYLHZHG�DQG�DSSURYHG�E\�WKH�$QJHOR�6WDWH�8QLYHUVLW\�,QVWLWXWLRQDO�5HYLHZ

%RDUG��,5%��IRU�WKH�SURWHFWLRQ�RI�KXPDQ�VXEMHFWV�LQ�UHVHDUFK�DQG�UHVHDUFK�UHODWHG�DFWLYLWLHV��,5%

�$35��������t�$SULO����������

$Q\�TXHVWLRQV�UHJDUGLQJ�WKH�FRQGXFW�RI�WKH�SURMHFW��TXHVWLRQV�SHUWDLQLQJ�WR�\RXU�ULJKWV�DV�D�UHVHDUFK

VXEMHFW��RU�UHVHDUFK�UHODWHG�LQMXU\�VKRXOG�EH�EURXJKW�WR�WKH�DWWHQWLRQ�RI�WKH�,5%�DGPLQLVWUDWRU��'U��7D\

+DFN��WD\#DQJHOR�HGX��7(/������������������H[W��������$Q\�TXHVWLRQ�DERXW�WKLV�VSHFLILF�UHVHDUFK

SURMHFW�VKRXOG�EH�EURXJKW�WR�WKH�DWWHQWLRQ�RI�WKH�LQYHVWLJDWRU�OLVWHG�DW�WKH�WRS�RI�WKLV�IRUP�

&OLFN�FRQWLQXH�21/<�LI�\RX�DJUHH�WR�SDUWLFLSDWH�

&RQWLQXH

([LW�WKH�VXUYH\



���������������30 4XDOWULFV�6XUYH\�6RIWZDUH

KWWSV���DQJHOR�D]��TXDOWULFV�FRP�4�(GLW6HFWLRQ�%ORFNV�$MD[�*HW6XUYH\3ULQW3UHYLHZ"&RQWH[W6XUYH\,' 69B�0;�$6&::%9$T\L	&RQWH[W/LEUDU\,' 8« ���

(YHQW�)HHGEDFN

6XUYH\�RI�7UDQVLW�3DVVHQJHUV

���2Q�DYHUDJH�KRZ�PDQ\�WLPHV�GR�\RX�SDWURQL]H�SXEOLF�VHUYLFH"

���:KDW�LV�DUH�WKH�SXUSRVH�V��RI�PRVW�RI�\RXU�WULSV"��VHOHFW�DOO�WKDW�DSSO\�

���:KDW�LV�WKH�VL]H�RI�\RXU�KRXVHKROG"

� �'DLO\��1XPEHU�RI�WLPHV�SHU�GD\

� �:HHNO\��1XPEHU�RI�WLPHV�SHU�ZHHN

� �0RQWKO\��1XPEHU�RI�WLPH�LQ�D�PRQWK

� �2WKHU��3OHDVH�6SHFLI\��

:RUN

6KRSSLQJ

+RVSLWDO

/HLVXUH��FLQHPD��FLUFXV��FOXE��SXE��HWF��

2WKHU��SOHDVH�VSHFLI\�

�

�

�

�

��RU�PRUH



���������������30 4XDOWULFV�6XUYH\�6RIWZDUH

KWWSV���DQJHOR�D]��TXDOWULFV�FRP�4�(GLW6HFWLRQ�%ORFNV�$MD[�*HW6XUYH\3ULQW3UHYLHZ"&RQWH[W6XUYH\,' 69B�0;�$6&::%9$T\L	&RQWH[W/LEUDU\,' 8« ���

3RZHUHG�E\�4XDOWULFV

���+RZ�PDQ\�YHKLFOHV�DUH�LQ�\RXU�KRXVHKROG"

���:KDW�LV�\RXU�KRXVHKROG�LQFRPH"

���3OHDVH�UDQN�HDFK�RI�WKH�LVVXHV�DERXW�WKH�WUDQVLW�VHUYLFH�EHORZ�RQ�D�VFDOH�PHDVXULQJ
WKHLU�LPSRUWDQFH�WR�\RX�

�

�

�

�

��RU�PRUH

1RW�DSSOLFDEOH

$QQXDO�,QFRPH�OHVV�WKDQ��������

/HVV�WKDQ��������

/HVV�WKDQ��������

/HVV�WKDQ��������

2WKHU��3OHDVH�VSHFLI\�

0RUH�EXV�URXWHV�DQG�VWRSV�DQG�PRUH�DUHDV�VHUYHG } }

0RUH�IUHTXHQW�VHUYLFH } }

%HWWHU�RQ�WLPH�SHUIRUPDQFH } }

0RUH�SDUNLQJ�DYDLODELOLW\�DW�VWRSV } }

6DIHU�HQYLURQPHQW�DW�VWRSV�DQG�VKHOWHUV } }

&OHDQHU�HQYLURQPHQW�LQ�EXVHV�DQG�DW�EXV�VWRSV } }

%HWWHU�SHGHVWULDQ�ELF\FOH�DFFHVV�WR�IURP�VWRSV } }

http://www.qualtrics.com/


���������������30 4XDOWULFV�6XUYH\�6RIWZDUH

KWWSV���DQJHOR�D]��TXDOWULFV�FRP�4�(GLW6HFWLRQ�%ORFNV�$MD[�*HW6XUYH\3ULQW3UHYLHZ"&RQWH[W6XUYH\,' 69B�0;�$6&::%9$T\L	&RQWH[W/LEUDU\,' 8« ���



 

46 
 

Appendix D: Planning Project Instruments ± Result from Passenger Survey 

 

 



'HIDXOW�5HSRUW
7UDQVLW�3DVVHQJHU�6XUYH\
'HFHPEHU���������������30�067

4����$QJHOR�6WDWH�8QLYHUVLW\�,QVWLWXWLRQDO�5HYLHZ�%RDUG��,5%��&RQVHQW�WR�3DUWLFLSDWH�LQ

DQ�,5%�$SSURYHG�5HVHDUFK�(YHQW�3URMHFW�7LWOH��7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ�1HHGV�$VVHVVPHQW�6WXG\

,QYHVWLJDWRU�1DPH�'HSDUWPHQW��/LQGD�$EHUQDWK\��'DQLHOD�0XQR]�XQGHU�WKH�VXSHUYLVLRQ�RI

'LFN�$SURQWL��3K�'��'HSDUWPHQW�RI�(QJLQHHULQJ�,QYHVWLJDWRU�3KRQH���������������<RX�DUH

EHLQJ�DVNHG�WR�SDUWLFLSDWH�LQ�D�UHVHDUFK�HYHQW�FRQGXFWHG�ZLWK�WKH�DSSURYDO�RI�WKH�$QJHOR

6WDWH�8QLYHUVLW\�,QVWLWXWLRQDO�5HYLHZ�%RDUG��,Q�RUGHU�WR�SDUWLFLSDWH��\RX�DUH�UHTXLUHG�WR�JLYH

\RXU�FRQVHQW�DIWHU�UHDGLQJ�WKLV�GRFXPHQW��$Q�H[SODQDWLRQ�RI�WKH�SURMHFW�LV�ZULWWHQ�EHORZ�

ZKLFK�LQFOXGHV�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DERXW�WKH�SXUSRVH�RI�WKH�SURMHFW��WKH�SURFHGXUHV�WR�EH�XVHG�

DQG�WKH�SRWHQWLDO�EHQHILWV�DQG�SRVVLEOH�ULVNV�RI�SDUWLFLSDWLRQ��3OHDVH�UHDG�DQG��VKRXOG�\RX

GHFLGH�WR�SDUWLFLSDWH��LQGLFDWH�\RXU�DJUHHPHQW�RQ�WKLV�IRUP��8SRQ�UHTXHVW��\RX�ZLOO�EH

JLYHQ�DQ�XQVLJQHG�FRS\�RI�WKLV�IRUP�IRU�\RXU�UHFRUGV��5HIXVDO�WR�SDUWLFLSDWH�LQ�WKLV�VWXG\

ZLOO�QRW�DIIHFW�DQ\�IXWXUH�VHUYLFHV�\RX�PD\�EH�HQWLWOHG�WR�IURP�WKH�8QLYHUVLW\��$Q\RQH�ZKR

DJUHHV�WR�SDUWLFLSDWH�LQ�WKLV�VWXG\�LV�IUHH�WR�ZLWKGUDZ�IURP�WKH�VWXG\�DW�DQ\�WLPH�ZLWKRXW

SHQDOW\��,�DOVR�XQGHUVWDQG�WKDW�LW�LV�QRW�SRVVLEOH�WR�LGHQWLI\�DOO�SRWHQWLDO�ULVNV�LQ�D�VWXG\��DQG

,�EHOLHYH�WKDW�UHDVRQDEOH�VDIHJXDUGV�KDYH�EHHQ�WDNHQ�WR�PLQLPL]H�ERWK�WKH�NQRZQ�DQG

SRWHQWLDO�EXW�XQNQRZQ�ULVNV��<RX�PXVW�EH����\HDUV�RI�DJH�RU�ROGHU�WR�SDUWLFLSDWH�����1DWXUH



DQG�3XUSRVH�RI�WKH�3URMHFW�<RX�DUH�EHLQJ�DVNHG�WR�SDUWLFLSDWH�LQ�D�UHVHDUFK�VWXG\�IRU�WKH

&RQFKR�9DOOH\�7UDQVLW�'LVWULFW��&97'��VHUYLFH�DQG�WKH�6DQ�$QJHOR�0HWURSROLWDQ�3ODQQLQJ

2UJDQL]DWLRQ�ZLWK�WKH�VXSHUYLVLRQ�RI�'U��'LFN�$SURQWL�DW�$QJHOR�6WDWH�8QLYHUVLW\��7KLV�VWXG\

DLPV�WR�GHWHUPLQH�WKH�WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ�QHHGV�IRU�WKH�&RQFKR�9DOOH\�7UDQVLW�'LVWULFW��&97'�

DQG�WKH�6DQ�$QJHOR�0HWURSROLWDQ�3ODQQLQJ�2UJDQL]DWLRQ��6$032���7KH�VWXG\�UHVXOWV�ZLOO

EH�XVHG�WR�XSGDWH�WKH���\HDU�UHJLRQDO�KXPDQ�VHUYLFHV���SXEOLF�WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ�FRRUGLQDWLRQ

SODQ��<RX�DUH�RQO\�SHUPLWWHG�WR�SDUWLFLSDWH�RQFH�LQ�WKH�FXUUHQW�VWXG\�����([SODQDWLRQ�RI

3URFHGXUHV��7KH�VWXG\�FRQVLVWV�RI�SDUWLFLSDQWV�FRPSOHWLQJ��RQOLQH�TXHVWLRQQDLUHV��7KH

TXHVWLRQQDLUHV�ZLOO�VXUYH\�\RXU�H[SHULHQFHV�ZLWK�XVLQJ�WKH�WUDQVLW�VHUYLFHV�DQG�\RXU�YLHZV

DERXW�WKH�WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ�V\VWHPV�DQG�LQIUDVWUXFWXUH�ZLWKLQ�WKH�&LW\�RI�6DQ�$QJHOR�

&RPSOHWLQJ�WKH�VWXG\�ZLOO�WDNH�DSSUR[LPDWHO\����PLQXWHV��7KH�UHVXOWV�RI�WKH�VWXG\�ZLOO�EH

SXEOLVKHG�DQG�PDGH�SXEOLFO\�DYDLODEOH�E\�WKH�&RQFKR�9DOOH\�7UDQVLW�'LVWULFW�DQG�WKH�6DQ

$QJHOR�0HWURSROLWDQ�3ODQQLQJ�2UJDQL]DWLRQ��3DUWLFLSDQWV�FDQ�DFFHVV�WKH�SXEOLFDWLRQ�IRU

IUHH�E\�YLVLWLQJ�WKHLU�ZHEVLWHV��7KHUH�ZLOO�EH�QR�FRPSHQVDWLRQ�IRU�FRPSOHWLQJ�WKH�VXUYH\����

'LVFRPIRUW�DQG�5LVNV��7KH�ULVNV�RI�SDUWLFLSDWLQJ�LQ�WKLV�VWXG\�DUH�PLQLPDO�DQG�QRW�H[SHFWHG

WR�EH�JUHDWHU�WKDQ�WKRVH�H[SHULHQFHG�LQ�GDLO\�OLIH��6RPH�RI�WKH�TXHVWLRQV�PD\�FDXVH�VRPH

LQGLYLGXDOV�WR�IHHO�XQFRPIRUWDEOH��DQG�HYHU\RQH�KDV�WKH�ULJKW�WR�RPLW�DQVZHUV�WR�DQ\

TXHVWLRQV�ZLWKRXW�SHQDOW\�����%HQHILWV��7KH�ILQGLQJV�IURP�WKLV�VWXG\�FDQ�DGG�WR�WKH�H[LVWLQJ



NQRZOHGJH�UHODWHG�WR�WUDQVSRUWDWLRQ�QHHGV�DVVHVVPHQWV��7KH�UHVXOWV�ZLOO�EH�XVHG�WR

XSGDWH�WKH�5HJLRQDO�&RRUGLQDWLRQ�7UDQVSRUWDWLRQ�3ODQ�����&RQILGHQWLDOLW\��<RXU

FRQILGHQWLDOLW\�LV�LPSRUWDQW��'DWD�ZLOO�EH�DFFHVVLEOH�RQO\�WR�WKH�UHVHDUFKHUV�WKURXJK�D

VHFXUH�SDVVZRUG�SURWHFWHG�RQOLQH�FORXG�VWRUDJH��*RRJOH�'ULYH��DQG�RQ�WKH�GDWDEDVH�RI

WKH�V\VWHP�XWLOL]HG�IRU�WKH�VXUYH\��4XDOWULFV��'DWD�ZLOO�EH�VWRUHG�IRU�D�SHULRG�RI���\HDUV

DIWHU�FRPSOHWLRQ�RI�WKH�VWXG\�DIWHU�ZKLFK�DOO�GDWD�ZLOO�EH�GHOHWHG��$OO�GDWD�ZLOO�EH�UHSRUWHG�DW

WKH�JURXS�OHYHO��DQG�\RXU�QDPH��RU�DQ\�RWKHU�LGHQWLI\LQJ�LQIRUPDWLRQ��ZLOO�QHYHU�EH�OLQNHG�WR

\RXU�LQGLYLGXDO�UHVSRQVHV��<RX�PD\�ULVN�D�ORVV�RI�FRQILGHQWLDOLW\�LI�\RX�FKRRVH�WR�HPDLO�WKH

UHVHDUFKHUV�WR�DVN�IRU�WKH�UHVXOWV�RI�WKH�VWXG\��,I�\RX�FKRRVH�WR�HPDLO�WKH�UHVHDUFKHUV��WKHQ

WKH�UHVHDUFKHUV�ZLOO�LPPHGLDWHO\�GHOHWH�VXFK�HPDLOV�DIWHU�UHVSRQGLQJ�WR�WKHP��7KHUH�LV�D

SRWHQWLDO�ULVN�RI�ORVV�RI�FRQILGHQWLDOLW\�LQ�DOO�HPDLO��GRZQORDGLQJ��DQG�LQWHUQHW�WUDQVDFWLRQV�

$JUHHPHQW��%\�FOLFNLQJ�RQ�WKH�FRQWLQXH�EXWWRQ�EHORZ�\RX�DUH�LQGLFDWLQJ�WKDW�\RX�KDYH�UHDG

WKH�DERYH�SURFHGXUHV�DQG�WKDW�\RX�DUH�FRQVHQWLQJ�WR�YROXQWDULO\�SDUWLFLSDWH�LQ�WKLV�VWXG\�

7KLV�SURMHFW�KDV�EHHQ�UHYLHZHG�DQG�DSSURYHG�E\�WKH�$QJHOR�6WDWH�8QLYHUVLW\�,QVWLWXWLRQDO

5HYLHZ�%RDUG��,5%��IRU�WKH�SURWHFWLRQ�RI�KXPDQ�VXEMHFWV�LQ�UHVHDUFK�DQG�UHVHDUFK�UHODWHG

DFWLYLWLHV��,5%��$35ߟ���������$SULO�����������$Q\�TXHVWLRQV�UHJDUGLQJ�WKH�FRQGXFW�RI�WKH

SURMHFW��TXHVWLRQV�SHUWDLQLQJ�WR�\RXU�ULJKWV�DV�D�UHVHDUFK�VXEMHFW��RU�UHVHDUFK�UHODWHG

LQMXU\�VKRXOG�EH�EURXJKW�WR�WKH�DWWHQWLRQ�RI�WKH�,5%�DGPLQLVWUDWRU��'U��7D\�+DFN



�WD\#DQJHOR�HGX��7(/������������������H[W��������$Q\�TXHVWLRQ�DERXW�WKLV�VSHFLILF

UHVHDUFK�SURMHFW�VKRXOG�EH�EURXJKW�WR�WKH�DWWHQWLRQ�RI�WKH�LQYHVWLJDWRU�OLVWHG�DW�WKH�WRS�RI

WKLV�IRUP��&OLFN�FRQWLQXH�21/<�LI�\RX�DJUHH�WR�SDUWLFLSDWH�

�ÐÉë°Éð�

�ā°ë�ë��ãðßû�Ă

ƺ ƿ ƻƺ ƻƿ Ƽƺ Ƽƿ ƽƺ ƽƿ ƾƺ ƾƿ ƿƺ ƿƿ ǀƺ

ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É
^ë�

��û°�ë°ÐÉ
u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

ƻ �É¨�ÂÐ�^ë�ë��jÉ°û�ßã°ëĂ�/Éãë°ëðë°ÐÉ�Â�Z�û°�ü��Ð�ß��Ȩ/Z�ȩ��ÐÉã�Éë�ëÐ
W�ßë°�°Ü�ë��°É��É�/Z�ȭ�ÜÜßÐû���Z�ã��ß���û�Éë�WßÐ¼��ë�e°ëÂ�ȓ

eß�ÉãÜÐßë�ë°ÐÉ�E���ã��ãã�ããÈ�Éë�^ëð�Ă�/Éû�ãë°¨�ëÐß
E�È�ȡ��Ü�ßëÈ�Éëȓ�>°É������ßÉ�ëĂȔ���É°�Â��DðÉÐć�ðÉ��ß�ë�
ãðÜ�ßû°ã°ÐÉ�Ð§��°�¿��ÜßÐÉë°Ȕ�Wț�țȡ��Ü�ßëÈ�Éë�Ð§��É¨°É��ß°É¨

/Éû�ãë°¨�ëÐß�WÐÉ�ȓ�ƽƼƿȭƾǂƿȭƿƿƻƼ�|Ðð��ß����°É¨��ã¿���ëÐ�Ü�ßë°�°Ü�ë�
°É���ß�ã��ß���û�Éë��ÐÉ�ð�ë���ü°ë�ë���ÜÜßÐû�Â�Ð§�ë���É¨�ÂÐ�^ë�ë�
jÉ°û�ßã°ëĂ�/Éãë°ëðë°ÐÉ�Â�Z�û°�ü��Ð�ß�ț�/É�Ðß��ß�ëÐ�Ü�ßë°�°Ü�ë�Ȕ�ĂÐð��ß�

ß�Þð°ß���ëÐ�¨°û��ĂÐðß��ÐÉã�Éë��§ë�ß�ß���°É¨�ë°ã��Ð�ðÈ�Éëț��É
�āÜÂ�É�ë°ÐÉ�Ð§�ë��ÜßÐ¼��ë�°ã�üß°ëë�É���ÂÐüȔ�ü°��°É�Âð��ã�°É§ÐßÈ�ë°ÐÉ
��Ððë�ë��ÜðßÜÐã��Ð§�ë��ÜßÐ¼��ëȔ�ë��ÜßÐ���ðß�ã�ëÐ����ðã��Ȕ��É��ë�
ÜÐë�Éë°�Â���É�Ďëã��É��ÜÐãã°�Â��ß°ã¿ã�Ð§�Ü�ßë°�°Ü�ë°ÐÉț�WÂ��ã��ß�����É�Ȕ
ãÐðÂ��ĂÐð����°���ëÐ�Ü�ßë°�°Ü�ë�Ȕ�°É�°��ë��ĂÐðß��¨ß��È�Éë�ÐÉ�ë°ã

§ÐßÈț�jÜÐÉ�ß�Þð�ãëȔ�ĂÐð�ü°ÂÂ����¨°û�É��É�ðÉã°¨É����ÐÜĂ�Ð§�ë°ã�§ÐßÈ
§Ðß�ĂÐðß�ß��Ðß�ãț�Z�§ðã�Â�ëÐ�Ü�ßë°�°Ü�ë��°É�ë°ã�ãëð�Ă�ü°ÂÂ�ÉÐë��ċ��ë��ÉĂ
§ðëðß��ã�ßû°��ã�ĂÐð�È�Ă�����Éë°ëÂ���ëÐ�§ßÐÈ�ë��jÉ°û�ßã°ëĂț��ÉĂÐÉ�
üÐ��¨ß��ã�ëÐ�Ü�ßë°�°Ü�ë��°É�ë°ã�ãëð�Ă�°ã�§ß���ëÐ�ü°ë�ß�ü�§ßÐÈ�ë�
ãëð�Ă��ë��ÉĂ�ë°È��ü°ëÐðë�Ü�É�ÂëĂț�/��ÂãÐ�ðÉ��ßãë�É��ë�ë�°ë�°ã�ÉÐë
ÜÐãã°�Â��ëÐ�°��Éë°§Ă��ÂÂ�ÜÐë�Éë°�Â�ß°ã¿ã�°É���ãëð�ĂȔ��É��/���Â°�û��ë�ë

ß��ãÐÉ��Â��ã�§�¨ð�ß�ã��û�����É�ë�¿�É�ëÐ�È°É°È°ć���Ðë�ë��¿ÉÐüÉ
�É��ÜÐë�Éë°�Â��ðë�ðÉ¿ÉÐüÉ�ß°ã¿ãț�|Ðð�Èðãë����ƻǂ�Ă��ßã�Ð§��¨��Ðß
ÐÂ��ß�ëÐ�Ü�ßë°�°Ü�ë�ț�ƻț�E�ëðß���É��WðßÜÐã��Ð§�ë��WßÐ¼��ë�|Ðð��ß�

��°É¨��ã¿���ëÐ�Ü�ßë°�°Ü�ë��°É���ß�ã��ß��ãëð�Ă�§Ðß�ë���ÐÉ�Ð�u�ÂÂ�Ă
eß�Éã°ë��°ãëß°�ë�Ȩ�ue�ȩ�ã�ßû°����É��ë��^�É��É¨�ÂÐ�D�ëßÐÜÐÂ°ë�É
WÂ�ÉÉ°É¨�Kß¨�É°ć�ë°ÐÉ�ü°ë�ë��ãðÜ�ßû°ã°ÐÉ�Ð§��ßț��°�¿��ÜßÐÉë°��ë

�É¨�ÂÐ�^ë�ë��jÉ°û�ßã°ëĂț�e°ã�ãëð�Ă��°Èã�ëÐ���ë�ßÈ°É��ë�
ëß�ÉãÜÐßë�ë°ÐÉ�É���ã�§Ðß�ë���ÐÉ�Ð�u�ÂÂ�Ă�eß�Éã°ë��°ãëß°�ë�Ȩ�ue�ȩ��É�
ë��^�É��É¨�ÂÐ�D�ëßÐÜÐÂ°ë�É�WÂ�ÉÉ°É¨�Kß¨�É°ć�ë°ÐÉ�Ȩ^�DWKȩț�e�
ãëð�Ă�ß�ãðÂëã�ü°ÂÂ����ðã���ëÐ�ðÜ��ë��ë��ƿȭĂ��ß�ß�¨°ÐÉ�Â�ðÈ�É
ã�ßû°��ã�ȭ�Üð�Â°��ëß�ÉãÜÐßë�ë°ÐÉ��ÐÐß�°É�ë°ÐÉ�ÜÂ�Éț�|Ðð��ß��ÐÉÂĂ

Ü�ßÈ°ëë���ëÐ�Ü�ßë°�°Ü�ë��ÐÉ���°É�ë���ðßß�Éë�ãëð�Ăț�Ƽț��āÜÂ�É�ë°ÐÉ�Ð§
WßÐ���ðß�ãț�e��ãëð�Ă��ÐÉã°ãëã�Ð§�Ü�ßë°�°Ü�Éëã��ÐÈÜÂ�ë°É¨Ȕ�ÐÉÂ°É�

Þð�ãë°ÐÉÉ�°ß�ãț�e��Þð�ãë°ÐÉÉ�°ß�ã�ü°ÂÂ�ãðßû�Ă�ĂÐðß��āÜ�ß°�É��ã�ü°ë
ðã°É¨�ë��ëß�Éã°ë�ã�ßû°��ã��É��ĂÐðß�û°�üã���Ððë�ë��ëß�ÉãÜÐßë�ë°ÐÉ

ãĂãë�Èã��É��°É§ß�ãëßð�ëðß��ü°ë°É�ë���°ëĂ�Ð§�^�É��É¨�ÂÐț��ÐÈÜÂ�ë°É¨
ë��ãëð�Ă�ü°ÂÂ�ë�¿���ÜÜßÐā°È�ë�ÂĂ�ƻƿ�È°Éðë�ãț�e��ß�ãðÂëã�Ð§�ë��ãëð�Ă
ü°ÂÂ����Üð�Â°ã����É��È����Üð�Â°�ÂĂ��û�°Â��Â���Ă�ë���ÐÉ�Ð�u�ÂÂ�Ă

ƻțƺƺ ƻțƺƺ ƻțƺƺ ƺțƺƺ ƺțƺƺ ƿǂ



ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É
^ë�

��û°�ë°ÐÉ
u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

eß�Éã°ë��°ãëß°�ë��É��ë��^�É��É¨�ÂÐ�D�ëßÐÜÐÂ°ë�É�WÂ�ÉÉ°É¨
Kß¨�É°ć�ë°ÐÉț�W�ßë°�°Ü�Éëã���É�����ãã�ë��Üð�Â°��ë°ÐÉ�§Ðß�§ß����Ă

û°ã°ë°É¨�ë�°ß�ü��ã°ë�ãț�e�ß��ü°ÂÂ����ÉÐ��ÐÈÜ�Éã�ë°ÐÉ�§Ðß��ÐÈÜÂ�ë°É¨
ë��ãðßû�Ăț�ƽț��°ã�ÐÈ§Ðßë��É��Z°ã¿ãț�e��ß°ã¿ã�Ð§�Ü�ßë°�°Ü�ë°É¨�°É�ë°ã

ãëð�Ă��ß��È°É°È�Â��É��ÉÐë��āÜ��ë���ëÐ����¨ß��ë�ß�ë�É�ëÐã�
�āÜ�ß°�É����°É���°ÂĂ�Â°§�ț�^ÐÈ��Ð§�ë��Þð�ãë°ÐÉã�È�Ă���ðã��ãÐÈ�

°É�°û°�ð�Âã�ëÐ�§��Â�ðÉ�ÐÈ§Ðßë��Â�Ȕ��É���û�ßĂÐÉ���ã�ë��ß°¨ë�ëÐ�ÐÈ°ë
�Éãü�ßã�ëÐ��ÉĂ�Þð�ãë°ÐÉã�ü°ëÐðë�Ü�É�ÂëĂț�ƾț���É�Ďëãț�e��ĎÉ�°É¨ã

§ßÐÈ�ë°ã�ãëð�Ă���É�����ëÐ�ë���ā°ãë°É¨�¿ÉÐüÂ��¨��ß�Â�ë���ëÐ
ëß�ÉãÜÐßë�ë°ÐÉ�É���ã��ãã�ããÈ�Éëãț�e��ß�ãðÂëã�ü°ÂÂ����ðã���ëÐ�ðÜ��ë�
ë��Z�¨°ÐÉ�Â��ÐÐß�°É�ë°ÐÉ�eß�ÉãÜÐßë�ë°ÐÉ�WÂ�Éț�ƿț��ÐÉĎ��Éë°�Â°ëĂț�|Ððß

�ÐÉĎ��Éë°�Â°ëĂ�°ã�°ÈÜÐßë�Éëț���ë��ü°ÂÂ��������ãã°�Â��ÐÉÂĂ�ëÐ�ë�
ß�ã��ß��ßã�ëßÐð¨���ã��ðß��Ü�ããüÐß�ȭÜßÐë��ë���ÐÉÂ°É���ÂÐð�

ãëÐß�¨�Ȕ�'ÐÐ¨Â���ß°û�Ȕ��É��ÐÉ�ë����ë���ã��Ð§�ë��ãĂãë�È�ðë°Â°ć���§Ðß
ë��ãðßû�ĂȔ�Yð�Âëß°�ãț���ë��ü°ÂÂ����ãëÐß���§Ðß���Ü�ß°Ð��Ð§�ƽ�Ă��ßã��§ë�ß
�ÐÈÜÂ�ë°ÐÉ�Ð§�ë��ãëð�Ă��§ë�ß�ü°���ÂÂ���ë��ü°ÂÂ������Â�ë��ț��ÂÂ���ë�
ü°ÂÂ����ß�ÜÐßë����ë�ë��¨ßÐðÜ�Â�û�ÂȔ��É��ĂÐðß�É�È��ȨÐß��ÉĂ�Ðë�ß
°��Éë°§Ă°É¨�°É§ÐßÈ�ë°ÐÉȩ�ü°ÂÂ�É�û�ß����Â°É¿���ëÐ�ĂÐðß�°É�°û°�ð�Â

ß�ãÜÐÉã�ãț�|Ðð�È�Ă�ß°ã¿���ÂÐãã�Ð§��ÐÉĎ��Éë°�Â°ëĂ�°§�ĂÐð��ÐÐã��ëÐ
�È�°Â�ë��ß�ã��ß��ßã�ëÐ��ã¿�§Ðß�ë��ß�ãðÂëã�Ð§�ë��ãëð�Ăț�/§�ĂÐð

�ÐÐã��ëÐ��È�°Â�ë��ß�ã��ß��ßãȔ�ë�É�ë��ß�ã��ß��ßã�ü°ÂÂ
°ÈÈ��°�ë�ÂĂ���Â�ë��ãð���È�°Âã��§ë�ß�ß�ãÜÐÉ�°É¨�ëÐ�ë�Èț�e�ß��°ã��
ÜÐë�Éë°�Â�ß°ã¿�Ð§�ÂÐãã�Ð§��ÐÉĎ��Éë°�Â°ëĂ�°É��ÂÂ��È�°ÂȔ��ÐüÉÂÐ��°É¨Ȕ��É�
°Éë�ßÉ�ë�ëß�Éã��ë°ÐÉãț��¨ß��È�Éëȓ��Ă��Â°�¿°É¨�ÐÉ�ë���ÐÉë°Éð���ðëëÐÉ
��ÂÐü�ĂÐð��ß��°É�°��ë°É¨�ë�ë�ĂÐð��û��ß����ë����Ðû��ÜßÐ���ðß�ã
�É��ë�ë�ĂÐð��ß���ÐÉã�Éë°É¨�ëÐ�ûÐÂðÉë�ß°ÂĂ�Ü�ßë°�°Ü�ë��°É�ë°ã�ãëð�Ăț
e°ã�ÜßÐ¼��ë��ã����É�ß�û°�ü����É���ÜÜßÐû����Ă�ë���É¨�ÂÐ�^ë�ë�
jÉ°û�ßã°ëĂ�/Éãë°ëðë°ÐÉ�Â�Z�û°�ü��Ð�ß��Ȩ/Z�ȩ�§Ðß�ë��ÜßÐë��ë°ÐÉ�Ð§

ðÈ�É�ãð�¼��ëã�°É�ß�ã��ß���É��ß�ã��ß�ȭß�Â�ë�����ë°û°ë°�ãț�/Z��ș�WZȭ
ƺƾƼǂƼƻ�ȫ��Üß°Â�ƼǂȔ�ƼƺƼƻț��ÉĂ�Þð�ãë°ÐÉã�ß�¨�ß�°É¨�ë���ÐÉ�ð�ë�Ð§�ë�
ÜßÐ¼��ëȔ�Þð�ãë°ÐÉã�Ü�ßë�°É°É¨�ëÐ�ĂÐðß�ß°¨ëã��ã���ß�ã��ß��ãð�¼��ëȔ�Ðß
ß�ã��ß�ȭß�Â�ë���°É¼ðßĂ�ãÐðÂ������ßÐð¨ë�ëÐ�ë���ëë�Éë°ÐÉ�Ð§�ë��/Z�
��È°É°ãëß�ëÐßȔ��ßț�e�Ă�,��¿�Ȩë�Ăɪ�É¨�ÂÐț��ðȩ�e�>ȓ�ȨƽƼƿȩ�ǃƾƼȭƼƺǀǂȔ
�āëț�ǀƻƼƻț��ÉĂ�Þð�ãë°ÐÉ���Ððë�ë°ã�ãÜ��°Ď��ß�ã��ß��ÜßÐ¼��ë�ãÐðÂ����
�ßÐð¨ë�ëÐ�ë���ëë�Éë°ÐÉ�Ð§�ë��°Éû�ãë°¨�ëÐß�Â°ãë����ë�ë��ëÐÜ�Ð§�ë°ã

§ÐßÈț��Â°�¿��ÐÉë°Éð��KE>|�°§�ĂÐð��¨ß���ëÐ�Ü�ßë°�°Ü�ë�ț

^Ðü°É¨�ßÐüã�ƻ�ȭ�ƽ�Ð§�ƽ

ș &°�Â� �Ð°����ÐðÉë

ƻ �ÐÉë°Éð� ƻƺƺțƺƺɟ ƿǂ

Ƽ �ā°ë�ë��ãðßû�Ă ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƿǂ



4�������2Q�DYHUDJH�KRZ�PDQ\�WLPHV�GR�\RX�SDWURQL]H�SXEOLF�VHUYLFH"

ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É ^ë����û°�ë°ÐÉ u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

ƻ ��°ÂĂȓ�EðÈ��ß�Ð§�ë°È�ã�Ü�ß���Ă ƺțƺƺ Ƽƺțƺƺ ƺțǁƾ Ƽțǁǀ ǁțǀƺ ƿǁ

Ƽ v��¿ÂĂȓ�EðÈ��ß�Ð§�ë°È�ã�Ü�ß�ü��¿ ƺțƺƺ ƾƺțƺƺ ƽțƿǀ ǀțƾǀ ƾƻțǁǃ ƿǁ

ƽ DÐÉëÂĂȓ�EðÈ��ß�Ð§�ë°È��°É���ÈÐÉë ƺțƺƺ ǀƺțƺƺ ǁțƺǃ ƻƽțǂǀ ƻǃƼțƺƿ ƿǀ

ƾ Kë�ß�ȨWÂ��ã��^Ü��°§Ăȩ ƺțƺƺ ƻțƺƺ ƺțƺƼ ƺțƻƽ ƺțƺƼ ƿǁ

YƻȢƾȢe�{e�ȭ�Kë�ß�ȨWÂ��ã��^Ü��°§Ăȩ

Kë�ß�ȨWÂ��ã��^Ü��°§Ăȩ

Z�ß�ÂĂ

�û�ßĂ�Ðë�ß�ÈÐÉë



4�������:KDW�LV�DUH�WKH�SXUSRVH�V��RI�PRVW�RI�\RXU�WULSV"��VHOHFW�DOO�WKDW�DSSO\�

vÐß¿

^ÐÜÜ°É¨

,ÐãÜ°ë�Â

>�°ãðß�
Ȩ�°É�È�Ȕ

�°ß�ðãȔ��Âð�Ȕ
Üð�Ȕ��ë�țȩ

Kë�ß�ȨÜÂ��ã�
ãÜ��°§Ăȩ

ƺ ƿ ƻƺ ƻƿ Ƽƺ Ƽƿ ƽƺ

^Ðü°É¨�ßÐüã�ƻ�ȭ�ǀ�Ð§�ǀ

ș &°�Â� �Ð°����ÐðÉë

ƺ vÐß¿ Ƽǃțƾƻɟ ƽƺ

ƻ ^ÐÜÜ°É¨ Ƽƾțƿƻɟ Ƽƿ

Ƽ ,ÐãÜ°ë�Â ƼƼțƿƿɟ Ƽƽ

ƽ >�°ãðß��Ȩ�°É�È�Ȕ��°ß�ðãȔ��Âð�Ȕ�Üð�Ȕ��ë�țȩ ƻǂțǀƽɟ ƻǃ

ƿ Kë�ß�ȨÜÂ��ã��ãÜ��°§Ăȩ ƾțǃƺɟ ƿ

ƻƺƼ

YƼȢƿȢe�{e�ȭ�Kë�ß�ȨÜÂ��ã��ãÜ��°§Ăȩ

Kë�ß�ȨÜÂ��ã��ãÜ��°§Ăȩ

ëÐ�È��ë�ÈĂ�¨ß�É�È���ë�ë���ðã�ãë�ë°ÐÉ

W�ßÐÂ

ëÐ�ã�ÐÐÂ

�^��



4�������:KDW�LV�WKH�VL]H�RI�\RXU�KRXVHKROG"

ƻ

Ƽ

ƽ

ƾ

ƿ�Ðß�ÈÐß�

ƺ Ƽ ƾ ǀ ǂ ƻƺ ƻƼ ƻƾ ƻǀ ƻǂ Ƽƺ ƼƼ Ƽƾ

ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É ^ë����û°�ë°ÐÉ u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

ƻ ƽț�v�ë�°ã�ë��ã°ć��Ð§�ĂÐðß�Ððã�ÐÂ�Ȝ ƻțƺƺ ƿțƺƺ Ƽțƺǀ ƻțƻǃ ƻțƾƻ ƿƽ

^Ðü°É¨�ßÐüã�ƻ�ȭ�ǀ�Ð§�ǀ

ș &°�Â�
�Ð°��
�ÐðÉë

ƻ ƻ ƾƽțƾƺɟ Ƽƽ

Ƽ Ƽ Ƽǂțƽƺɟ ƻƿ

ƽ ƽ ƻƻțƽƼɟ ǀ

ƾ ƾ ƻƽțƼƻɟ ǁ

ƿ ƿ�Ðß�ÈÐß� ƽțǁǁɟ Ƽ

ƿƽ



4�������+RZ�PDQ\�YHKLFOHV�DUH�LQ�\RXU�KRXVHKROG"

ƺ

ƻ

Ƽ

ƽ

ƾ�Ðß�ÈÐß�

ƺ ƿ ƻƺ ƻƿ Ƽƺ Ƽƿ ƽƺ ƽƿ

ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É ^ë����û°�ë°ÐÉ u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

ƻ ƾț�,Ðü�È�ÉĂ�û�°�Â�ã��ß��°É�ĂÐðß�Ððã�ÐÂ�Ȝ ƻțƺƺ ƿțƺƺ ƻțƾƼ ƺțǁƾ ƺțƿƿ ƿƼ

^Ðü°É¨�ßÐüã�ƻ�ȭ�ǀ�Ð§�ǀ

ș &°�Â�
�Ð°��
�ÐðÉë

ƻ ƺ ǀǁțƽƻɟ ƽƿ

Ƽ ƻ ƼǀțǃƼɟ ƻƾ

ƽ Ƽ ƽțǂƿɟ Ƽ

ƾ ƽ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƿ ƾ�Ðß�ÈÐß� ƻțǃƼɟ ƻ

ƿƼ



4�������:KDW�LV�\RXU�KRXVHKROG�LQFRPH"

EÐë��ÜÜÂ°���Â�

�ÉÉð�Â�/É�ÐÈ��Â�ãã
ë�É�ɂƻƿȔƺƺƺ

>�ãã�ë�É�ɂƼƺȔƺƺƺ

>�ãã�ë�É�ɂƽƺȔƺƺƺ

>�ãã�ë�É�ɂƾƺȔƺƺƺ

Kë�ß�ȨWÂ��ã�
ãÜ��°§Ăȩ

ƺ Ƽ ƾ ǀ ǂ ƻƺ ƻƼ ƻƾ ƻǀ ƻǂ Ƽƺ ƼƼ Ƽƾ

ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É ^ë����û°�ë°ÐÉ u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

ƻ ƿț�v�ë�°ã�ĂÐðß�Ððã�ÐÂ��°É�ÐÈ�Ȝ�ȭ�^�Â��ë����Ð°�� ƻțƺƺ ƻǃțƺƺ ƻƻțǃƾ ǁțƼƾ ƿƼțƾƽ ƿƽ

^Ðü°É¨�ßÐüã�ƻ�ȭ�ǁ�Ð§�ǁ

ș &°�Â�
�Ð°��
�ÐðÉë

ƻ EÐë��ÜÜÂ°���Â� ƽƺțƻǃɟ ƻǀ

ƻǀ �ÉÉð�Â�/É�ÐÈ��Â�ãã�ë�É�ɂƻƿȔƺƺƺ ƾƽțƾƺɟ Ƽƽ

ƻǁ >�ãã�ë�É�ɂƼƺȔƺƺƺ ǃțƾƽɟ ƿ

ƻǂ >�ãã�ë�É�ɂƽƺȔƺƺƺ ƻƽțƼƻɟ ǁ

ƻǃ >�ãã�ë�É�ɂƾƺȔƺƺƺ ƽțǁǁɟ Ƽ

Ƽƺ Kë�ß�ȨWÂ��ã��ãÜ��°§Ăȩ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƿƽ

YƿȢƼƺȢe�{e�ȭ�Kë�ß�ȨWÂ��ã��ãÜ��°§Ăȩ

Kë�ß�ȨWÂ��ã��ãÜ��°§Ăȩ





4�������3OHDVH�UDQN�HDFK�RI�WKH�LVVXHV�DERXW�WKH�WUDQVLW�VHUYLFH�EHORZ�RQ�D�VFDOH

PHDVXULQJ�WKHLU�LPSRUWDQFH�WR�\RX�



u�ßĂ�/ÈÜÐßë�Éë

^Â°¨ëÂĂ�/ÈÜÐßë�Éë

E�ðëß�Â

&�°ßÂĂ�/ÈÜÐßë�Éë

EÐë�/ÈÜÐßë�Éë

EÐ�KÜ°É°ÐÉ

ƺ ƿ ƻƺ ƻƿ Ƽƺ Ƽƿ ƽƺ ƽƿ

DÐß���ðã�ßÐðë�ã��É��ãëÐÜã��É��ÈÐß���ß��ã�ã�ßû��

DÐß��§ß�Þð�Éë�ã�ßû°��

��ëë�ß�ÐÉȭë°È��Ü�ß§ÐßÈ�É��

DÐß��Ü�ß¿°É¨��û�°Â��°Â°ëĂ��ë�ãëÐÜã

^�§�ß��Éû°ßÐÉÈ�Éë��ë�ãëÐÜã��É��ã�Âë�ßã

�Â��É�ß��Éû°ßÐÉÈ�Éë�°É��ðã�ã��É���ë��ðã�ãëÐÜã

��ëë�ß�Ü���ãëß°�Éȡ�°�Ă�Â������ãã�ëÐȡ§ßÐÈ�ãëÐÜã

ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É ^ë����û°�ë°ÐÉ u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë



�É��Ð§�Z�ÜÐßë

ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É ^ë����û°�ë°ÐÉ u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

ƻ DÐß���ðã�ßÐðë�ã��É��ãëÐÜã��É��ÈÐß���ß��ã�ã�ßû�� ƻțƺƺ ǀțƺƺ ƻțǃƻ ƻțƽǃ ƻțǃƽ ƿƽ

Ƽ DÐß��§ß�Þð�Éë�ã�ßû°�� ƻțƺƺ ƿțƺƺ ƻțǂǂ ƻțƼƼ ƻțƾǃ ƿƼ

ƽ ��ëë�ß�ÐÉȭë°È��Ü�ß§ÐßÈ�É�� ƻțƺƺ ƿțƺƺ ƼțǃƼ ƻțƻƻ ƻțƼƼ ƿƼ

ƾ DÐß��Ü�ß¿°É¨��û�°Â��°Â°ëĂ��ë�ãëÐÜã ƻțƺƺ ǀțƺƺ ƽțƾǂ ƻțƿƿ Ƽțƾƺ ƿƼ

ƿ ^�§�ß��Éû°ßÐÉÈ�Éë��ë�ãëÐÜã��É��ã�Âë�ßã ƻțƺƺ ǀțƺƺ ƼțƼǃ ƻțƾǃ ƼțƼƻ ƿƼ

ǀ �Â��É�ß��Éû°ßÐÉÈ�Éë�°É��ðã�ã��É���ë��ðã�ãëÐÜã ƻțƺƺ ǀțƺƺ ƼțƾƼ ƻțƽƼ ƻțǁƾ ƿƼ

ǁ ��ëë�ß�Ü���ãëß°�Éȡ�°�Ă�Â������ãã�ëÐȡ§ßÐÈ�ãëÐÜã ƻțƺƺ ǀțƺƺ Ƽțƾǂ ƻțƿƺ ƼțƼƿ ƿƼ

^Ðü°É¨�ßÐüã�ƻ�ȭ�ǁ�Ð§�ǁ

ș &°�Â�
u�ßĂ

/ÈÜÐßë�Éë
^Â°¨ëÂĂ
/ÈÜÐßë�Éë

E�ðëß�Â
&�°ßÂĂ

/ÈÜÐßë�Éë
EÐë

/ÈÜÐßë�Éë
EÐ�KÜ°É°ÐÉ eÐë�Â

ƻ
DÐß���ðã�ßÐðë�ã��É��ãëÐÜã��É�
ÈÐß���ß��ã�ã�ßû��

ǀƺțƽǂɟ ƽƼ ƻƽțƼƻɟ ǁ ƻƿțƺǃɟ ǂ ƻțǂǃɟ ƻ ƿțǀǀɟ ƽ ƽțǁǁɟ Ƽ ƿƽ

Ƽ DÐß��§ß�Þð�Éë�ã�ßû°�� ƿƿțǁǁɟ Ƽǃ ƻǁțƽƻɟ ǃ ƻǁțƽƻɟ ǃ ƻțǃƼɟ ƻ ǁțǀǃɟ ƾ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ ƿƼ

ƽ ��ëë�ß�ÐÉȭë°È��Ü�ß§ÐßÈ�É�� ǃțǀƼɟ ƿ Ƽƻțƻƿɟ ƻƻ ƿƻțǃƼɟ Ƽǁ ƻțǃƼɟ ƻ ƻƿțƽǂɟ ǂ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ ƿƼ

ƾ
DÐß��Ü�ß¿°É¨��û�°Â��°Â°ëĂ��ë
ãëÐÜã

ƻǁțƽƻɟ ǃ ƿțǁǁɟ ƽ ƽƼțǀǃɟ ƻǁ ƿțǁǁɟ ƽ ƽƼțǀǃɟ ƻǁ ƿțǁǁɟ ƽ ƿƼ

ƿ
^�§�ß��Éû°ßÐÉÈ�Éë��ë�ãëÐÜã��É�
ã�Âë�ßã

ƾǀțƻƿɟ Ƽƾ ƻƻțƿƾɟ ǀ Ƽƿțƺƺɟ ƻƽ ǁțǀǃɟ ƾ ƽțǂƿɟ Ƽ ƿțǁǁɟ ƽ ƿƼ

ǀ
�Â��É�ß��Éû°ßÐÉÈ�Éë�°É��ðã�ã
�É���ë��ðã�ãëÐÜã

ƽƾțǀƼɟ ƻǂ ƻƿțƽǂɟ ǂ ƽƾțǀƼɟ ƻǂ ƿțǁǁɟ ƽ ǁțǀǃɟ ƾ ƻțǃƼɟ ƻ ƿƼ

ǁ
��ëë�ß�Ü���ãëß°�Éȡ�°�Ă�Â�
����ãã�ëÐȡ§ßÐÈ�ãëÐÜã

ƽǀțƿƾɟ ƻǃ ƻǁțƽƻɟ ǃ Ƽǂțǂƿɟ ƻƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ ƻƽțƾǀɟ ǁ ƽțǂƿɟ Ƽ ƿƼ



 

47 
 

Appendix E: Planning Project Instruments ± Prioritization of Needs Survey 



'HIDXOW�5HSRUW
3ULRULWL]DWLRQ�RI�1HHGV���Y��
'HFHPEHU���������������30�067

4����6FKHGXOLQJ�,PSDFW

ƻ

ƻțƿ

Ƽ

Ƽțƿ

ƽ

ƽțƿ

ƾ

ƾțƿ

ƿ

ƺ ƺțƿ ƻ ƻțƿ Ƽ Ƽțƿ ƽ ƽțƿ ƾ ƾțƿ ƿ ƿțƿ ǀ ǀțƿ

ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É ^ë����û°�ë°ÐÉ u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

ƻ ^���ðÂ°É¨�/ÈÜ��ë ƻƺțƺƺ Ƽƻțƺƺ ƻǂțǂƻ Ƽțǁǁ ǁțǀƿ ƻǀ

ș &°�Â�
�Ð°��
�ÐðÉë

ƻƺ ƻ ǀțƼƿɟ ƻ

ƻƻ ƻțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƻƿ Ƽ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƻǀ Ƽțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƻǁ ƽ Ƽƿțƺƺɟ ƾ

ƻǂ ƽțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƻǃ ƾ ƻǂțǁƿɟ ƽ

Ƽƺ ƾțƿ ƻƼțƿƺɟ Ƽ



^Ðü°É¨�ßÐüã�ƻ�ȭ�ƻƺ�Ð§�ƻƺ

ș &°�Â�
�Ð°��
�ÐðÉë

Ƽƻ ƿ ƽǁțƿƺɟ ǀ

ƻǀ



4����6FKHGXOLQJ�&RQVHTXHQFH

ƻ

ƻțƿ

Ƽ

Ƽțƿ

ƽ

ƽțƿ

ƾ

ƾțƿ

ƿ

ƺ ƺțƿ ƻ ƻțƿ Ƽ Ƽțƿ ƽ ƽțƿ ƾ ƾțƿ ƿ ƿțƿ

ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É ^ë����û°�ë°ÐÉ u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

ƻ ^���ðÂ°É¨��ÐÉã�Þð�É�� ƾțƺƺ ǃțƺƺ ǀțǀǃ ƻțǀƻ Ƽțƿǃ ƻǀ

^Ðü°É¨�ßÐüã�ƻ�ȭ�ƻƺ�Ð§�ƻƺ

ș &°�Â�
�Ð°��
�ÐðÉë

ƻ ƻ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

Ƽ ƻțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƽ Ƽ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƾ Ƽțƿ ǀțƼƿɟ ƻ

ƿ ƽ ƽƻțƼƿɟ ƿ

ǀ ƽțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ǁ ƾ ƽƻțƼƿɟ ƿ

ǂ ƾțƿ ƻƼțƿƺɟ Ƽ

ǃ ƿ ƻǂțǁƿɟ ƽ

ƻǀ





4����6FKHGXOLQJ�&RPPHQWV

^���ðÂ°É¨��ÐÈÈ�Éëã

u°��°Â°ëĂ�ü°ë�¨ß��ëȡÜÐã°ë°û��°ÈÜ��ëã

�ÂÂÐü��Â°�Éëã�ãÐßë�ÉÐë°��ȡÜß�û°ÐðãÂĂ�ðÉã���ț�ãëÐÜã�°§�ë°È���ÂÂÐüã

e��ðÂë°È�ë��¨Ð�Â�°ã�ëÐ�È�¿��ë��ã�ßû°���ÈÐß��ðã�ß�§ß°�É�ÂĂ��É�������É���ã��Ð§�ðã�¨�

ÐÉ��ü�Ă��ðã�ã

E����ëÐ�üÐß¿�ëÐü�ß�ã��ÐÉû°É����É��ÉÐë�¼ðãë��Ðû�ß�¨�

�°¨�°ããð�ã�§Ðß�ã�É°ÐßãȖ

��ã°�ß�§Ðß�ß°��ßã�ëÐ�È�ÈÐß°ć���ã�ü�ÂÂ��ã�È�¿��ÈÐß��ß��ãÐÉ��Â�����ÐÈÈÐ��ë°ÐÉã��É��Â�ãã�ü�°ë�ë°È�ã��ðß°É¨��°ċ�ß�Éë�ü��ë�ß��ÐÉ�°ë°ÐÉã

�ÐÉã°ãë�É�Ă�°ã�ÈÐãë�°ÈÜÐßë�Éëț�ü°Â��ãëÐÜã��É����ãë°É�ë°ÐÉ��ß��°ÈÜÐßë�Éë�ãÐÈ�ë°È�ã�ÈÐß��°ã�¼ðãë�ÈÐß�ț

É�

v°Â��ë°ã�°ã�°���Â�°ã�°ë�§��ã°�Â�

DÐß��°É�°û°�ð�Âã�È�Ă�ß°����ðã�°§�ÈÐß���ÐÉû�É°�Éë�ãëÐÜã��ß��È���

���°ë°ÐÉ�Â�ãëÐÜã�§Ðß�ÐÈ�Â�ããȔ�ÂÐü�°É�ÐÈ�



4����$ZDUHQHVV�,PSDFW

ƻ

ƻțƿ

Ƽ

Ƽțƿ

ƽ

ƽțƿ

ƾ

ƾțƿ

ƿ

ƺ ƻ Ƽ ƽ ƾ ƿ ǀ ǁ

ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É ^ë����û°�ë°ÐÉ u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

ƻ �ü�ß�É�ãã�/ÈÜ��ë ƽțƺƺ ǃțƺƺ ǁțƾƾ ƻțǀǃ Ƽțǂǁ ƻǀ

^Ðü°É¨�ßÐüã�ƻ�ȭ�ƻƺ�Ð§�ƻƺ

ș &°�Â�
�Ð°��
�ÐðÉë

ƻ ƻ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

Ƽ ƻțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƽ Ƽ ǀțƼƿɟ ƻ

ƾ Ƽțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƿ ƽ ǀțƼƿɟ ƻ

ǀ ƽțƿ ǀțƼƿɟ ƻ

ǁ ƾ ƽǁțƿƺɟ ǀ

ǂ ƾțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ǃ ƿ ƾƽțǁƿɟ ǁ

ƻǀ





4����$ZDUHQHVV�&RQVHTXHQFH

ƻ

ƻțƿ

Ƽ

Ƽțƿ

ƽ

ƽțƿ

ƾ

ƾțƿ

ƿ

ƺ ƺțƿ ƻ ƻțƿ Ƽ Ƽțƿ ƽ ƽțƿ ƾ ƾțƿ ƿ ƿțƿ ǀ ǀțƿ

ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É ^ë����û°�ë°ÐÉ u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

ƻ �ü�ß�É�ãã��ÐÉã�Þð�É�� ƻțƺƺ ǃțƺƺ ǀțǀǃ Ƽțƽǃ ƿțǁƻ ƻǀ

^Ðü°É¨�ßÐüã�ƻ�ȭ�ƻƺ�Ð§�ƻƺ

ș &°�Â�
�Ð°��
�ÐðÉë

ƻ ƻ ǀțƼƿɟ ƻ

Ƽ ƻțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƽ Ƽ ǀțƼƿɟ ƻ

ƾ Ƽțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƿ ƽ Ƽƿțƺƺɟ ƾ

ǀ ƽțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ǁ ƾ ƻǂțǁƿɟ ƽ

ǂ ƾțƿ ǀțƼƿɟ ƻ

ǃ ƿ ƽǁțƿƺɟ ǀ

ƻǀ





4����$ZDUHQHVV�&RPPHQWV

�ü�ß�É�ãã��ÐÈÈ�Éëã

^�É��ď°�ßã��°ß��ëÂĂ�ëÐ�ß�ã°��Éëã�ëßÐð¨�È�°Â�°É��É¨Â°ã��É��ãÜ�É°ã

/§�ë��Üð�Â°���Ð�ã�ÉÐë�¿ÉÐü�ü�ë�ü��Ðċ�ß�Ðü��ß��ë�Ă�ëÐ�ðã��ë��ã�ßû°��

ÉÐ���û�ßë°ã�È�Éë

�°¨�°ããð�ã�§Ðß�ã�É°ÐßãȖ

/É�ß��ã°É¨��ü�ß�É�ãã��ÐðÂ���ð°Â��ÈÐß��ß°��ßã°Ü��ÈÐÉ¨�ë���ÐÈÈðÉ°ëĂ�°É�Âð�°É¨�ÉÐȭß°��ßã��É��ÜÐë�Éë°�Â�ß°��ßã

Wð�Â°���ü�ß�É�ãã��É��Ü�ßë°�°Ü�ë°ÐÉ�°ã�üĂ�ĂÐð��ß���ß�

/�ë°É¿�ë��üÐß��°ã�Ððë�ë�ß��§Ðß�ë��ÈÐãë�Ü�ßë

�ü�ß�É�ãã�ÐÉ�Ðü�ëÐ�ß°���ÉÐ�É���ãã�ß°ÂĂ��û�°Â��°Â°ëĂ

É����ëÐ�Â�ë�Üð�Â°��¿ÉÐü��ue�°ã�§Ðß�ÉÐë�ÐÉÂĂ�ã�É°Ðßã��ðë�¨�É�ß�Â�Üð�Â°�

�ü�ß�É�ããȭã�É°ÐßãȔ�û�ë�ß�ÉãȔ��É���°ã��Â��

|Ððß�ã�ßû°��ã��û��°É�ß��ã���Ðû�ß�ë��Ă��ßãț�e��Üð�Â°��É���ã�ëÐ�¿ÉÐü�ë°ãț

DÐß��ÂÐ��Â��É��ßðß�Â�Ü�ÐÜÂ��ëÐ�����ü�ß��Ð§��ue



4����$FFHVVLELOLW\�,PSDFW

ƻ

ƻțƿ

Ƽ

Ƽțƿ

ƽ

ƽțƿ

ƾ

ƾțƿ

ƿ

ƺ ƺțƿ ƻ ƻțƿ Ƽ Ƽțƿ ƽ ƽțƿ ƾ ƾțƿ ƿ ƿțƿ ǀ ǀțƿ

ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É ^ë����û°�ë°ÐÉ u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

ƻ ����ãã°�°Â°ëĂ�/ÈÜ��ë ƽțƺƺ ǃțƺƺ ǁțƺƺ ƻțǂƾ ƽțƽǂ ƻǀ

^Ðü°É¨�ßÐüã�ƻ�ȭ�ƻƺ�Ð§�ƻƺ

ș &°�Â�
�Ð°��
�ÐðÉë

ƻ ƻ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

Ƽ ƻțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƽ Ƽ ǀțƼƿɟ ƻ

ƾ Ƽțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƿ ƽ ƻǂțǁƿɟ ƽ

ǀ ƽțƿ ƻƼțƿƺɟ Ƽ

ǁ ƾ Ƽƿțƺƺɟ ƾ

ǂ ƾțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ǃ ƿ ƽǁțƿƺɟ ǀ

ƻǀ





4����$FFHVVLELOLW\�&RQVHTXHQFH

ƻ

ƻțƿ

Ƽ

Ƽțƿ

ƽ

ƽțƿ

ƾ

ƾțƿ

ƿ

ƺ ƺțƿ ƻ ƻțƿ Ƽ Ƽțƿ ƽ ƽțƿ ƾ ƾțƿ ƿ ƿțƿ ǀ ǀțƿ

ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É ^ë����û°�ë°ÐÉ u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

ƻ ����ãã°�°Â°ëĂ��ÐÉã�Þð�É�� Ƽțƺƺ ǃțƺƺ ǀțǂǂ ƻțǃƺ ƽțǀƻ ƻǀ

^Ðü°É¨�ßÐüã�ƻ�ȭ�ƻƺ�Ð§�ƻƺ

ș &°�Â�
�Ð°��
�ÐðÉë

ƻ ƻ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

Ƽ ƻțƿ ǀțƼƿɟ ƻ

ƽ Ƽ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƾ Ƽțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƿ ƽ ƻǂțǁƿɟ ƽ

ǀ ƽțƿ ǀțƼƿɟ ƻ

ǁ ƾ ƽǁțƿƺɟ ǀ

ǂ ƾțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ǃ ƿ ƽƻțƼƿɟ ƿ

ƻǀ





4�����$FFHVVLELOLW\�&RPPHQWV

����ãã°�°Â°ëĂ��ÐÈÈ�Éëã

Z�ÈÜã�§Ðß��È�ðÂ�ëÐßĂ��Â°�Éëã�ü°ë�ãÜ��°�Â�É���ã

e��¨Ð�Â�°ã�ëÐ��ß°É¨�ë��ã�ßû°���ëÐ�ëÐã��üÐ�É����ë��ã�ßû°���ü�ß��ë�ß��°ã�ÉÐÉ�

v���ß��ÜßÐû°�°É¨��Ðû�ß�¨��Ðû�ß��ÐÉû°É��

�°¨�°ããð�ã�§Ðß�ã�É°ÐßãȖ

W�ßãÐÉȭ��ã���°Éãë����Ð§�ÜÂ������ã���ëÐ����ÐÈÈÐ��ë��ß°��ßã�ÉÐë�ß��������§Ðß��°É�ß��ã�ã�ß°��ßã°Ü�ü�ß���ãã°ãë°É¨�ë�°ß�É���ã�§Ðß�ëß�ÉãÜÐßë�ë°ÐÉ

����ããã°�°Â°ëĂ�°ã�ë��¿�Ă�ëÐ�ÈÐ�°Â°ëĂț

É�

/�ë°É¿�ë°ã�üÐðÂ��°É�Âð���ÉÐÉȭÈ��°��Â��ÜÜÐ°ÉëÈ�Éëã

É�



4�����6HQLRUV�,PSDFW

ƻ

ƻțƿ

Ƽ

Ƽțƿ

ƽ

ƽțƿ

ƾ

ƾțƿ

ƿ

ƺ ƻ Ƽ ƽ ƾ ƿ ǀ ǁ

ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É ^ë����û°�ë°ÐÉ u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

ƻ ^�É°Ðßã�/ÈÜ��ë ƿțƺƺ ǃțƺƺ ǁțǀƽ ƻțƽǀ ƻțǂǀ ƻǀ

^Ðü°É¨�ßÐüã�ƻ�ȭ�ƻƺ�Ð§�ƻƺ

ș &°�Â�
�Ð°��
�ÐðÉë

ƻ ƻ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

Ƽ ƻțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƽ Ƽ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƾ Ƽțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƿ ƽ ƻƼțƿƺɟ Ƽ

ǀ ƽțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ǁ ƾ ƾƽțǁƿɟ ǁ

ǂ ƾțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ǃ ƿ ƾƽțǁƿɟ ǁ

ƻǀ





4�����6HQLRUV�&RQVHTXHQFH

ƻ

ƻțƿ

Ƽ

Ƽțƿ

ƽ

ƽțƿ

ƾ

ƾțƿ

ƿ

ƺ ƺțƿ ƻ ƻțƿ Ƽ Ƽțƿ ƽ ƽțƿ ƾ ƾțƿ ƿ ƿțƿ ǀ ǀțƿ

ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É ^ë����û°�ë°ÐÉ u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

ƻ ^�É°Ðßã��ÐÉã�Þð�É�� ƿțƺƺ ǃțƺƺ ǁțƽƻ ƻțƾǃ ƼțƼƻ ƻǀ

^Ðü°É¨�ßÐüã�ƻ�ȭ�ƻƺ�Ð§�ƻƺ

ș &°�Â�
�Ð°��
�ÐðÉë

ƻ ƻ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

Ƽ ƻțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƽ Ƽ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƾ Ƽțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƿ ƽ ƻǂțǁƿɟ ƽ

ǀ ƽțƿ ǀțƼƿɟ ƻ

ǁ ƾ ƽǁțƿƺɟ ǀ

ǂ ƾțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ǃ ƿ ƽǁțƿƺɟ ǀ

ƻǀ





4�����6HQLRUV�&RPPHQWV

^�É°Ðßã��ÐÈÈ�Éëã

�ü�ß�É�ãã�üÐðÂ����É�Ďë��ÐÉã°��ß�ë°ÐÉ�ëÐ�ðã��ëß�Éã°ë�ß�ë�ß�ë�É�Ü�ßãÐÉ�Â�û�°�Â�

��û�ßë°ã��ÐÉ�ÂÐ��Â�ß��°Ð��É��eu�ãë�ë°ÐÉã�°É��É¨Â°ã��É��ãÜ�É°ã�Â�É¨ð�¨�ã

�ã�ë��ÜÐÜðÂ�ë°ÐÉ��¨�ã�°ë�°ã�ÈÐß��Â°¿�ÂĂ�ë�ë�ãÐÈ��ãÐßë�Ð§�ëß�ÉãÜÐßë�ë°ÐÉ��ãã°ãë�É���ü°ÂÂ����É�����

&ß�Þð�ÉëÂĂ�ÉÐ�ƿƽƻƺ�§ðÉ�°É¨ț�ãÐÈ�ë°È�ã�ë�ß�Ȕ�ãÐÈ�ë°È��ÉÐëț�/ÉÐãÜ°ë��Â���Éû°ßÐÉÈ�Éë�°É��ðã�ã�§Ðß�ã�É°Ðßã

E����ëÐ�§Ð�ðã�ÐÉ�ã�É°Ðßã��ü�ß�É�ãã�°É�ë����ÈÐ¨ß�Ü°�

�°¨�°ããð�ã�§Ðß�ã�É°ÐßãȖ

��ð��ë°É¨�ã�É°Ðßã�ÐÉ�ë��ãðûã�Ðċ�ß���ȭ�ãÐ�È�ÉĂ��Ð�ÉÐë�¿ÉÐü

DÐ�°Â°ëĂ�§Ðß�ëÐã��üÐ��û��ÂÐãë�°É��Ü�É��É���°ã�ã°¨É°Ď��Éë��É��ÉÐë���ë°É¨�ü°ÂÂ�ÉÐë���É¨��Üß�ã�Éë

É�

/�ë°É¿�ü���Ð���¨ß��ë�¼Ð��Ð§�ë°ã

Éȡ�

�ü�ß�É�ãã�ëÐ�ÈÐß��ã�É°Ðßã��É��ß°�°É¨�ÐÜë°ÐÉãȨȞ^�É°Ðß�,ÐðßȞȩ



4�����&DSDFLW\�,PSDFW

ƻ

ƻțƿ

Ƽ

Ƽțƿ

ƽ

ƽțƿ

ƾ

ƾțƿ

ƿ

ƺ ƻ Ƽ ƽ ƾ ƿ ǀ ǁ

ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É ^ë����û°�ë°ÐÉ u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

ƻ ��Ü��°ëĂ�/ÈÜ��ë ƻțƺƺ ǃțƺƺ ƿțǀǁ Ƽțƺƿ ƾțƼƼ ƻƿ

^Ðü°É¨�ßÐüã�ƻ�ȭ�ƻƺ�Ð§�ƻƺ

ș &°�Â�
�Ð°��
�ÐðÉë

ƻ ƻ ǀțǀǁɟ ƻ

Ƽ ƻțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƽ Ƽ ǀțǀǁɟ ƻ

ƾ Ƽțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƿ ƽ ƾǀțǀǁɟ ǁ

ǀ ƽțƿ ǀțǀǁɟ ƻ

ǁ ƾ ƻƽțƽƽɟ Ƽ

ǂ ƾțƿ ǀțǀǁɟ ƻ

ǃ ƿ ƻƽțƽƽɟ Ƽ

ƻƿ





4�����&DSDFLW\�&RQVHTXHQFH

ƻ

ƻțƿ

Ƽ

Ƽțƿ

ƽ

ƽțƿ

ƾ

ƾțƿ

ƿ

ƺ ƺțƿ ƻ ƻțƿ Ƽ Ƽțƿ ƽ ƽțƿ ƾ ƾțƿ ƿ ƿțƿ

ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É ^ë����û°�ë°ÐÉ u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

ƻ ��Ü��°ëĂ��ÐÉã�Þð�É�� ƻțƺƺ ǃțƺƺ ƿțǁƽ ƼțƼƻ ƾțǂǀ ƻƿ

^Ðü°É¨�ßÐüã�ƻ�ȭ�ƻƺ�Ð§�ƻƺ

ș &°�Â�
�Ð°��
�ÐðÉë

ƻ ƻ ǀțǀǁɟ ƻ

Ƽ ƻțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƽ Ƽ ƻƽțƽƽɟ Ƽ

ƾ Ƽțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƿ ƽ ƽƽțƽƽɟ ƿ

ǀ ƽțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ǁ ƾ Ƽǀțǀǁɟ ƾ

ǂ ƾțƿ ǀțǀǁɟ ƻ

ǃ ƿ ƻƽțƽƽɟ Ƽ

ƻƿ





4�����&DSDFLW\�&RPPHQWV

��Ü��°ëĂ��ÐÈÈ�Éëã

,�û��ÈÐß��û�°�Â�ã��û�°Â��Â��ÂÐ��ÂÂĂ�°É�ãÈ�ÂÂ�ß��ÐÈÈðÉ°ë°�ã

E����ëÐ�°É�ß��ã��§ß�Þð�É�Ă�§ßÐÈ�^�É��É¨�ÂÐ�ëÐ�ë���ÐðÉë°�ã

�°¨�°ããð�ã�§Ðß�ã�É°ÐßãȖ

/É�ß��ã°É¨�û�°�Â���É��ãû�ã��Â°È°É�ë�ã�Ðû�ß�ßÐü�°É¨ȡÂ°È°ë���Ü��ë°É¨��ã�ü�ÂÂ��ã�Â�ãã�ü�°ë�ë°È�ã�ÐÉ�û�°�Â�

jÉë°Â����Ü�ß�ÈÐß��È��É°É¨§ðÂ�Ððëß�����É���ðĂȭ°É�°ã����ÐÈÜÂ°ã���ÈÐß��ü°ÂÂ�ÉÐë�°É�ß��ã��°Éë�ß�ÐÉÉ��ë°û°ëĂ

���������°ë°ÐÉ�Â�É����§Ðß�°Éë�ß�°ëĂ�ÐÉ�ƼÉ��Ü�¨�ȏ�ß�§�ßß°É¨�ëÐ��ß��ÐÜĂ

v���Ð���¨ÐÐ��¼Ð��Ð§�ë°ãț�<��Ü�°ë�ðÜț

Éȡ�

DÐß���ðã�ã�°É�ßðß�Â



4�����$SSRLQWPHQWV�,PSDFW

ƻ

ƻțƿ

Ƽ

Ƽțƿ

ƽ

ƽțƿ

ƾ

ƾțƿ

ƿ

ƺ ƺțƿ ƻ ƻțƿ Ƽ Ƽțƿ ƽ ƽțƿ ƾ ƾțƿ ƿ ƿțƿ

ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É ^ë����û°�ë°ÐÉ u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

ƻ �ÜÜÐ°ÉëÈ�Éëã�/ÈÜ��ë ƻțƺƺ ǃțƺƺ ƿțǃƽ ƼțƺƼ ƾțƺǀ ƻƿ

^Ðü°É¨�ßÐüã�ƻ�ȭ�ƻƺ�Ð§�ƻƺ

ș &°�Â�
�Ð°��
�ÐðÉë

ƻ ƻ ǀțǀǁɟ ƻ

Ƽ ƻțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƽ Ƽ ǀțǀǁɟ ƻ

ƾ Ƽțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƿ ƽ Ƽǀțǀǁɟ ƾ

ǀ ƽțƿ ƻƽțƽƽɟ Ƽ

ǁ ƾ ƽƽțƽƽɟ ƿ

ǂ ƾțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ǃ ƿ ƻƽțƽƽɟ Ƽ

ƻƿ





4�����$SSRLQWPHQWV�&RQVHTXHQFH

ƻ

ƻțƿ

Ƽ

Ƽțƿ

ƽ

ƽțƿ

ƾ

ƾțƿ

ƿ

ƺ ƺțƿ ƻ ƻțƿ Ƽ Ƽțƿ ƽ ƽțƿ ƾ ƾțƿ ƿ ƿțƿ ǀ ǀțƿ

ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É ^ë����û°�ë°ÐÉ u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

ƻ �ÜÜÐ°ÉëÈ�Éëã��ÐÉã�Þð�É�� ƻțƺƺ ǃțƺƺ ǀțƼǁ Ƽțƻƾ ƾțǀƺ ƻƿ

^Ðü°É¨�ßÐüã�ƻ�ȭ�ƻƺ�Ð§�ƻƺ

ș &°�Â�
�Ð°��
�ÐðÉë

ƻ ƻ ǀțǀǁɟ ƻ

Ƽ ƻțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƽ Ƽ ǀțǀǁɟ ƻ

ƾ Ƽțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƿ ƽ Ƽƺțƺƺɟ ƽ

ǀ ƽțƿ ǀțǀǁɟ ƻ

ǁ ƾ ƾƺțƺƺɟ ǀ

ǂ ƾțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ǃ ƿ Ƽƺțƺƺɟ ƽ

ƻƿ





4�����$SSRLQWPHQWV�&RPPHQWV

�ÜÜÐ°ÉëÈ�Éëã��ÐÈÈ�Éëã

^°ÈÜÂ°§Ă�ÜßÐ���ðß�Ȕ��ÂÂÐü�ãÐßë�ÉÐë°�����É¨�ãȔ��É���û��ãÜ�É°ã�Â�É¨ð�¨��ÐÜ�ß�ëÐßȡûÐ°���ÜßÐÈÜëã

Z�Â°��°Â°ëĂ�°ã�¿�Ă�ëÐ��É��ċ��ë°û��ëß�ÉãÜÐßë�ë°ÐÉ��ÐÈÜ�ÉĂ

v���û��ë�¿�É�ÐÉ�Ƽ�É�ü��ÐÉëß��ëã�§Ðß�È��°��Â�ëß�ÉãÜÐßë�ë°ÐÉ

�°¨�°ããð�ã�§Ðß�ã�É°ÐßãȖ

e°ã�°ã�°É�ÜÂ�����É��üÐß¿°É¨�°ÈÜßÐû�È�Éë�°É�ë��ãĂãë�È�ü°ÂÂ�ÐÉÂĂ��û����È°ÉÐß���É¨��°É��û�°Â��°Â°ëĂ

É�

/�§��Â�ë°ã�ÜßÐ��ãã�°ã�ãðČ�°�Éë�§ßÐÈ�ü�ë�/�¿ÉÐüț

Éȡ�

Eȡ�



4�����/RZ�9HKLFOH�$FFHVV�,PSDFW

ƻ

ƻțƿ

Ƽ

Ƽțƿ

ƽ

ƽțƿ

ƾ

ƾțƿ

ƿ

ƺ ƺțƿ ƻ ƻțƿ Ƽ Ƽțƿ ƽ ƽțƿ ƾ ƾțƿ ƿ ƿțƿ ǀ ǀțƿ

ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É ^ë����û°�ë°ÐÉ u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

ƻ >Ðü�u�°�Â������ãã�/ÈÜ��ë ƻțƺƺ ǃțƺƺ ǀțƼƿ ƻțǃƿ ƽțǂƻ ƻǀ

^Ðü°É¨�ßÐüã�ƻ�ȭ�ƻƺ�Ð§�ƻƺ

ș &°�Â�
�Ð°��
�ÐðÉë

ƻ ƻ ǀțƼƿɟ ƻ

Ƽ ƻțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƽ Ƽ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƾ Ƽțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƿ ƽ ƽǁțƿƺɟ ǀ

ǀ ƽțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ǁ ƾ ƽƻțƼƿɟ ƿ

ǂ ƾțƿ ƻƼțƿƺɟ Ƽ

ǃ ƿ ƻƼțƿƺɟ Ƽ

ƻǀ





4�����/RZ�9HKLFOH�$FFHVV�&RQVHTXHQFHV

ƻ

ƻțƿ

Ƽ

Ƽțƿ

ƽ

ƽțƿ

ƾ

ƾțƿ

ƿ

ƺ ƺțƿ ƻ ƻțƿ Ƽ Ƽțƿ ƽ ƽțƿ ƾ ƾțƿ ƿ ƿțƿ

ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É ^ë����û°�ë°ÐÉ u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

ƻ >Ðü�u�°�Â������ãã��ÐÉã�Þð�É��ã ƻțƺƺ ǃțƺƺ ǀțƺǀ ƼțƼƿ ƿțƺǀ ƻǀ

^Ðü°É¨�ßÐüã�ƻ�ȭ�ƻƺ�Ð§�ƻƺ

ș &°�Â�
�Ð°��
�ÐðÉë

ƻ ƻ ǀțƼƿɟ ƻ

Ƽ ƻțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƽ Ƽ ǀțƼƿɟ ƻ

ƾ Ƽțƿ ǀțƼƿɟ ƻ

ƿ ƽ ƽƻțƼƿɟ ƿ

ǀ ƽțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ǁ ƾ ƻǂțǁƿɟ ƽ

ǂ ƾțƿ ƻƼțƿƺɟ Ƽ

ǃ ƿ ƻǂțǁƿɟ ƽ

ƻǀ





4�����/RZ�9HKLFOH�$FFHVV�&RPPHQWV

>Ðü�u�°�Â������ãã��ÐÈÈ�Éëã

DÐãë�Ü�ÐÜÂ��°É�^ðëëÐÉ��Ðț��ü�ß��Ð§��ue��ðë�ßðß�Â�ß�ã°��Éëã�È�Ă�ÉÐë�¿ÉÐü�§ðÂÂ��āë�Éë�Ð§�ã�ßû°��ã

EÐ��ue����û�ßë°ã°É¨�Ü�ÐÜÂ���ÐÉȟë�¿ÉÐü�ü�ë��ß���ðã�ã��É��ü�ë��ß�Éȟë

^ÐÈ���ß��ã�Ð§�ë���°ëĂ��Ð�ÉÐë��û����&Z�°É��ÂÐã��ÜßÐā°È°ëĂ�ëÐ�ë�È

�°¨�°ããð�ã�§Ðß�ã�É°ÐßãȖ

>Ðü�Â�û�Â�����ãã�°ã���Üß°Ðß°ëĂ�§Ðß��Â��ßÂĂ��É���°ã��Â��

É�

e��ÐÉ�ã�üÐ�É����°ë�¿ÉÐü���Ððë�°ë

Éȡ�

>Ðü�°É�ÐÈ��Ü�ßëã�Ð§�ëÐüÉ

Eȡ�



4�����9HWHUDQV�,PSDFW

ƻ

ƻțƿ

Ƽ

Ƽțƿ

ƽ

ƽțƿ

ƾ

ƾțƿ

ƿ

ƺ ƺțƿ ƻ ƻțƿ Ƽ Ƽțƿ ƽ ƽțƿ ƾ ƾțƿ ƿ ƿțƿ

ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É ^ë����û°�ë°ÐÉ u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

ƻ u�ë�ß�Éã�/ÈÜ��ë ƻțƺƺ ǃțƺƺ ǀțƾǁ Ƽțƻǀ ƾțǀƿ ƻƿ

^Ðü°É¨�ßÐüã�ƻ�ȭ�ƻƺ�Ð§�ƻƺ

ș &°�Â�
�Ð°��
�ÐðÉë

ƻ ƻ ǀțǀǁɟ ƻ

Ƽ ƻțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƽ Ƽ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƾ Ƽțƿ ǀțǀǁɟ ƻ

ƿ ƽ Ƽƺțƺƺɟ ƽ

ǀ ƽțƿ ǀțǀǁɟ ƻ

ǁ ƾ ƽƽțƽƽɟ ƿ

ǂ ƾțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ǃ ƿ Ƽǀțǀǁɟ ƾ

ƻƿ





4�����9HWHUDQV�$FFHVVLELOLW\

ƻ

ƻțƿ

Ƽ

Ƽțƿ

ƽ

ƽțƿ

ƾ

ƾțƿ

ƿ

ƺ ƻ Ƽ ƽ ƾ ƿ ǀ ǁ ǂ

ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É ^ë����û°�ë°ÐÉ u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

ƻ u�ë�ß�Éã�����ãã°�°Â°ëĂ ƻțƺƺ ǃțƺƺ ƿțǀǁ Ƽțƻƿ ƾțǀƼ ƻƿ

^Ðü°É¨�ßÐüã�ƻ�ȭ�ƻƺ�Ð§�ƻƺ

ș &°�Â�
�Ð°��
�ÐðÉë

ƻ ƻ ǀțǀǁɟ ƻ

Ƽ ƻțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƽ Ƽ ǀțǀǁɟ ƻ

ƾ Ƽțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƿ ƽ ƿƽțƽƽɟ ǂ

ǀ ƽțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ǁ ƾ ƻƽțƽƽɟ Ƽ

ǂ ƾțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ǃ ƿ Ƽƺțƺƺɟ ƽ

ƻƿ





4�����9HWHUDQV�&RPPHQWV

u�ë�ß�Éã��ÐÈÈ�Éëã

DÐß����û�ßë°ã°É¨�Ð§�ë�ã���û�°Â��Â��ã�ßû°��ã�ȨÈ�Ă�ÉÐë�����ü�ß�ȩ

u�ë�ß�Éã�ëß�Éã°ë�ðã�¨��°ã��Ð�ã�ÉÐë��û���ã�Èð��°ÈÜ��ë�ÐÉ�Ððß�Ðß¨�É°ć�ë°ÐÉ��ã�ë��¨�É�ß�Â�Üð�Â°�

v���ðßß�ÉëÂĂ�ÜßÐû°�����ãðëëÂ��§Ðß�'&�&���ðë�ü���Ð�ÉÐë��û����Ă���ë��§Ðß�ãÜ��°Ď��ÂÂĂ�û�ë�ß�Éã

�°¨�°ããð�ã�§Ðß�ã�É°ÐßãȖ

/ÈÜßÐû����ü�ß�É�ãã�°ã���¨ÐÐ��ÈÐû���ðë�ÐÉÂĂ�°§�ĂÐð���É�°É�ß��ã����ãë°É�ë°ÐÉ�ã�ßû°���Ü��ðÂ°�ß�ëÐ�û�ë�ß�Éã

É�

e��ÐÉ�ã�üÐ�É����°ë�¿ÉÐü���Ððë�°ë

Éȡ�

Eȡ�



4�����8QLQVXUHG�,PSDFW

ƻ

ƻțƿ

Ƽ

Ƽțƿ

ƽ

ƽțƿ

ƾ

ƾțƿ

ƿ

ƺ ƺțƿ ƻ ƻțƿ Ƽ Ƽțƿ ƽ ƽțƿ ƾ ƾțƿ ƿ ƿțƿ ǀ ǀțƿ

ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É ^ë����û°�ë°ÐÉ u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

ƻ jÉ°Éãðß���/ÈÜ��ë ƻțƺƺ ǃțƺƺ ǀțǂǁ Ƽțƻǀ ƾțǀƿ ƻƿ

^Ðü°É¨�ßÐüã�ƻ�ȭ�ƻƺ�Ð§�ƻƺ

ș &°�Â�
�Ð°��
�ÐðÉë

ƻ ƻ ǀțǀǁɟ ƻ

Ƽ ƻțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƽ Ƽ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƾ Ƽțƿ ǀțǀǁɟ ƻ

ƿ ƽ ǀțǀǁɟ ƻ

ǀ ƽțƿ ǀțǀǁɟ ƻ

ǁ ƾ ƾƺțƺƺɟ ǀ

ǂ ƾțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ǃ ƿ ƽƽțƽƽɟ ƿ

ƻƿ





4�����8QLQVXUHG�&RQVHTXHQFHV

ƻ

ƻțƿ

Ƽ

Ƽțƿ

ƽ

ƽțƿ

ƾ

ƾțƿ

ƿ

ƺ ƻ Ƽ ƽ ƾ ƿ ǀ ǁ ǂ ǃ

ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É ^ë����û°�ë°ÐÉ u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

ƻ jÉ°Éãðß����ÐÉã�Þð�É��ã ƻțƺƺ ǃțƺƺ ǀțƽƽ ƻțǃǃ ƽțǃǀ ƻƿ

^Ðü°É¨�ßÐüã�ƻ�ȭ�ƻƺ�Ð§�ƻƺ

ș &°�Â�
�Ð°��
�ÐðÉë

ƻ ƻ ǀțǀǁɟ ƻ

Ƽ ƻțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƽ Ƽ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƾ Ƽțƿ ƻƽțƽƽɟ Ƽ

ƿ ƽ ǀțǀǁɟ ƻ

ǀ ƽțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ǁ ƾ ǀƺțƺƺɟ ǃ

ǂ ƾțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ǃ ƿ ƻƽțƽƽɟ Ƽ

ƻƿ





4�����8QLQVXUHG�&RPPHQWV

jÉ°Éãðß����ÐÈÈ�Éëã

��û�ßë°ã°É¨�ȭ�È�Ă�ÉÐë�ë°É¿°É¨�ë�Ă�Þð�Â°§Ă

ÉÐ���ë���û�°Â��Â�

�°¨�°ããð�ã�§Ðß�ã�É°ÐßãȖ

e��ðÉ°Éãðß����É��ÜÐÐß��û���É�°È�¨��ë�ë�ë°ã�°ã�ÉÐë�§Ðß�ë�È�Ðß��û�°Â��Â��ëÐ�ë�È

É�

�ü�ß�É�ãã�ëÐ�ë�ã���ãë��Â°ãÈ�Éëã�ü�ß��ë�ã��Ü�ÐÜÂ���ß��ã��Éț

Éȡ�

jÉ°Éãðß���É����ëÐ�¨�ë�ëÐ��ßț��ÜÜëã



4�����/RZ�,QFRPH�,PSDFW

ƻ

ƻțƿ

Ƽ

Ƽțƿ

ƽ

ƽțƿ

ƾ

ƾțƿ

ƿ

ƺ ƻ Ƽ ƽ ƾ ƿ ǀ ǁ ǂ ǃ

ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É ^ë����û°�ë°ÐÉ u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

ƻ >Ðü�/É�ÐÈ��/ÈÜ��ë ƿțƺƺ ǃțƺƺ ǁțƾǁ ƻțƺǃ ƻțƻǂ ƻƿ

^Ðü°É¨�ßÐüã�ƻ�ȭ�ƻƺ�Ð§�ƻƺ

ș &°�Â�
�Ð°��
�ÐðÉë

ƻ ƻ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

Ƽ ƻțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƽ Ƽ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƾ Ƽțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƿ ƽ ǀțǀǁɟ ƻ

ǀ ƽțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ǁ ƾ ǀƺțƺƺɟ ǃ

ǂ ƾțƿ ǀțǀǁɟ ƻ

ǃ ƿ Ƽǀțǀǁɟ ƾ

ƻƿ





4�����/RZ�,QFRPH�&RQVHTXHQFHV

ƻ

ƻțƿ

Ƽ

Ƽțƿ

ƽ

ƽțƿ

ƾ

ƾțƿ

ƿ

ƺ ƻ Ƽ ƽ ƾ ƿ ǀ ǁ ǂ

ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É ^ë����û°�ë°ÐÉ u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

ƻ >Ðü�/É�ÐÈ���ÐÉã�Þð�É��ã ƿțƺƺ ǃțƺƺ ǁțƽƽ ƻțƺǁ ƻțƻǀ ƻƿ

^Ðü°É¨�ßÐüã�ƻ�ȭ�ƻƺ�Ð§�ƻƺ

ș &°�Â�
�Ð°��
�ÐðÉë

ƻ ƻ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

Ƽ ƻțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƽ Ƽ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƾ Ƽțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƿ ƽ ǀțǀǁɟ ƻ

ǀ ƽțƿ ǀțǀǁɟ ƻ

ǁ ƾ ƿƽțƽƽɟ ǂ

ǂ ƾțƿ ƻƽțƽƽɟ Ƽ

ǃ ƿ Ƽƺțƺƺɟ ƽ

ƻƿ





4�����/RZ�,QFRPH�&RPPHQWV

>Ðü�/É�ÐÈ���ÐÈÈ�Éëã

D�Ă�ÉÐë�¿ÉÐü�§ß���Ðß�ÂÐü��Ðãë�ß°��ã��û�°Â��Â�

��È�¼Ðß°ëĂ�Ð§�Ððß�ß°��ßã��ß��Ð§�ë��ÂÐü���ÐÉÐÈ°���Â�ãã

E����ëÐ�§Ð�ðã�ÐÉ�È�¿°É¨��ü�ß�É�ããȔ�ÜÂ�Éã�°É�ÜÂ����ëÐ�°ÈÜßÐû������ãã

�°¨�°ããð�ã�§Ðß�ã�É°ÐßãȖ

e��ðÉ°Éãðß����É��ÜÐÐß��û���É�°È�¨��ë�ë�ë°ã�°ã�ÉÐë�§Ðß�ë�È�Ðß��û�°Â��Â��ëÐ�ë�È

É�

�¨�°ÉȔ�¿ÉÐüÂ��¨��Ð§�Ðü�ëÐ�ß°����É������ãã°�°Â°ëĂ

Éȡ�

E������°É�ßðß�Â��ß��ã

^ÐÈ��ÂÐü�°É�ÐÈ��É����ß°��ã�ëÐ�üÐß¿



4�����'LVDELOLWLHV�,PSDFW

ƻ

ƻțƿ

Ƽ

Ƽțƿ

ƽ

ƽțƿ

ƾ

ƾțƿ

ƿ

ƺ ƻ Ƽ ƽ ƾ ƿ ǀ ǁ ǂ

ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É ^ë����û°�ë°ÐÉ u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

ƻ �°ã��°Â°ë°�ã�/ÈÜ��ë ƽțƺƺ ǃțƺƺ ǁțƾǁ ƻțǂǃ ƽțƿǂ ƻƿ

^Ðü°É¨�ßÐüã�ƻ�ȭ�ƻƺ�Ð§�ƻƺ

ș &°�Â�
�Ð°��
�ÐðÉë

ƻ ƻ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

Ƽ ƻțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƽ Ƽ ǀțǀǁɟ ƻ

ƾ Ƽțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƿ ƽ ƻƽțƽƽɟ Ƽ

ǀ ƽțƿ ǀțǀǁɟ ƻ

ǁ ƾ Ƽƺțƺƺɟ ƽ

ǂ ƾțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ǃ ƿ ƿƽțƽƽɟ ǂ

ƻƿ





4�����'LVDELOLWLHV�&RQVHTXHQFHV

ƻ

ƻțƿ

Ƽ

Ƽțƿ

ƽ

ƽțƿ

ƾ

ƾțƿ

ƿ

ƺ ƻ Ƽ ƽ ƾ ƿ ǀ ǁ ǂ ǃ

ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É ^ë����û°�ë°ÐÉ u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

ƻ �°ã��°Â°ë°�ã��ÐÉã�Þð�É��ã ƿțƺƺ ǃțƺƺ ǂțƻƽ ƻțƼƺ ƻțƾƿ ƻƿ

^Ðü°É¨�ßÐüã�ƻ�ȭ�ƻƺ�Ð§�ƻƺ

ș &°�Â�
�Ð°��
�ÐðÉë

ƻ ƻ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

Ƽ ƻțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƽ Ƽ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƾ Ƽțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƿ ƽ ǀțǀǁɟ ƻ

ǀ ƽțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ǁ ƾ Ƽǀțǀǁɟ ƾ

ǂ ƾțƿ ǀțǀǁɟ ƻ

ǃ ƿ ǀƺțƺƺɟ ǃ

ƻƿ





4�����'LVDELOLWLHV�&RPPHQWV

�°ã��°Â°ë°�ã��ÐÈÈ�Éëã

D�Ă�ÉÐë�¿ÉÐü�ë�ë�û�°�Â�ã��ß�������ÐÈÜÂ°�Éë

/ÈÜÐßë�Éë�§Ðß�Ððß�������È�É��ß�ãÜÐÉã��ëÐ�ëß°û�

v���û���āÜ�É���������°ëĂ�ü°��Ȕ�Ðü�û�ß�Ðû�ß�ÂÂ��ü�ß�É�ãã�É���ã�ëÐ�°É�ß��ã�

�°¨�°ããð�ã�§Ðß�ã�É°ÐßãȖ

�ü�ß�É�ãã��É��Ü�ßë°�°Ü�ë°ÐÉ�°É�ë��ã�ßû°����É��ÜßÐ��ãã�°ã�ðëÈÐãë

/�ë°É¿�°ë�°ã���¨ÐÐ��ãĂãë�È��ã�°ã�§Ðß��°ã��°Â°ë°�ã��ðë�°ë�°ã�ãë°ÂÂ�°ÈÜÐßë�Éë

�¨�°ÉȔ�¿ÉÐüÂ��¨��Ð§�Ðü�ëÐ�ß°����É������ãã°�°Â°ëĂț

Éȡ�

�°¨¨�ß��ðã�ã



4�����:RUNHU�8WLOL]DWLRQ�,PSDFW

ƻ

ƻțƿ

Ƽ

Ƽțƿ

ƽ

ƽțƿ

ƾ

ƾțƿ

ƿ

ƺ ƺțƿ ƻ ƻțƿ Ƽ Ƽțƿ ƽ ƽțƿ ƾ ƾțƿ ƿ ƿțƿ ǀ ǀțƿ

ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É ^ë����û°�ë°ÐÉ u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

ƻ vÐß¿�ß�jë°Â°ć�ë°ÐÉ�/ÈÜ��ë ƻțƺƺ ǃțƺƺ ƿțƾƾ Ƽțƾƺ ƿțǁƿ ƻǀ

^Ðü°É¨�ßÐüã�ƻ�ȭ�ƻƺ�Ð§�ƻƺ

ș &°�Â�
�Ð°��
�ÐðÉë

ƻ ƻ ƻƼțƿƺɟ Ƽ

Ƽ ƻțƿ ǀțƼƿɟ ƻ

ƽ Ƽ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƾ Ƽțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƿ ƽ ƽǁțƿƺɟ ǀ

ǀ ƽțƿ ǀțƼƿɟ ƻ

ǁ ƾ ƻǂțǁƿɟ ƽ

ǂ ƾțƿ ǀțƼƿɟ ƻ

ǃ ƿ ƻƼțƿƺɟ Ƽ

ƻǀ





4�����:RUNHU�8WLOL]DWLRQ�&RQVHTXHQFHV

ƻ

ƻțƿ

Ƽ

Ƽțƿ

ƽ

ƽțƿ

ƾ

ƾțƿ

ƿ

ƺ ƺțƿ ƻ ƻțƿ Ƽ Ƽțƿ ƽ ƽțƿ ƾ ƾțƿ ƿ ƿțƿ ǀ ǀțƿ

ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É ^ë����û°�ë°ÐÉ u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

ƻ vÐß¿�ß�jë°Â°ć�ë°ÐÉ��ÐÉã�Þð�É��ã ƻțƺƺ ǃțƺƺ ƿțƾƾ Ƽțƾƺ ƿțǁƿ ƻǀ

^Ðü°É¨�ßÐüã�ƻ�ȭ�ƻƺ�Ð§�ƻƺ

ș &°�Â�
�Ð°��
�ÐðÉë

ƻ ƻ ƻƼțƿƺɟ Ƽ

Ƽ ƻțƿ ǀțƼƿɟ ƻ

ƽ Ƽ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƾ Ƽțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƿ ƽ ƽǁțƿƺɟ ǀ

ǀ ƽțƿ ǀțƼƿɟ ƻ

ǁ ƾ ƻǂțǁƿɟ ƽ

ǂ ƾțƿ ǀțƼƿɟ ƻ

ǃ ƿ ƻƼțƿƺɟ Ƽ

ƻǀ





4�����:RUNHU�8WLOL]DWLRQ�&RPPHQWV

vÐß¿�ß�jë°Â°ć�ë°ÐÉ��ÐÈÈ�Éëã

D�¿���û�°Â��Â���É��ß�°ã���ü�ß�É�ãã�Ð§�°ë

&Ðß�ëÐã��°É�°û°�ð�Â�ü°ë�ÉÐ�ëß�ÉãÜÐßë�ë°ÐÉ�ë°ã�Ü°����°ã�û°ë�Â

�°¨��ÈÜÂÐĂ�ßã�°É�ëÐüÉȨ^�ÉÉÐÉȩ��ÐÉȟë�ã��È�ëÐ����°ÉûÐÂû��

KÉÂĂ���ãÈ�ÂÂ�Ü�ß��Éë�Ð§�Ððß�ÜÐÜðÂ�ë°ÐÉ�ðã����Â��ëß�ÉãÜÐßë�ë°ÐÉ�ëÐ�ü�Â¿

�°¨�°ããð�ã�§Ðß�ã�É°ÐßãȖ

^�É��É¨�ÂÐ��É��ü�ãë�ë�ā�ã�°ã��ðëÐ��ß°û�É��ÐÈÈðë�ßã

É�

/���É�ã���ü�ß��¨�ëë°É¨�ëÐ�üÐß¿�ÐÉ�ë°È��°ã�ãë°ÂÂ��É�°ããð�ț

Éȡ�

Eȡ�



4�����0HGLFDLG�6HUYLFH�,PSDFW

ƻ

ƻțƿ

Ƽ

Ƽțƿ

ƽ

ƽțƿ

ƾ

ƾțƿ

ƿ

ƺ ƺțƿ ƻ ƻțƿ Ƽ Ƽțƿ ƽ ƽțƿ ƾ ƾțƿ ƿ ƿțƿ ǀ ǀțƿ

ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É ^ë����û°�ë°ÐÉ u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

ƻ D��°��°��^�ßû°���/ÈÜ��ë Ƽțƺƺ ǃțƺƺ ǀțƾƺ ƻțǃǀ ƽțǂƾ ƻƿ

^Ðü°É¨�ßÐüã�ƻ�ȭ�ƻƺ�Ð§�ƻƺ

ș &°�Â�
�Ð°��
�ÐðÉë

ƻ ƻ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

Ƽ ƻțƿ ǀțǀǁɟ ƻ

ƽ Ƽ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƾ Ƽțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƿ ƽ ƾƺțƺƺɟ ǀ

ǀ ƽțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ǁ ƾ Ƽƺțƺƺɟ ƽ

ǂ ƾțƿ ƻƽțƽƽɟ Ƽ

ǃ ƿ Ƽƺțƺƺɟ ƽ

ƻƿ





4�����0HGLFDLG�6HUYLFHV�&RQVHTXHQFHV

ƻ

ƻțƿ

Ƽ

Ƽțƿ

ƽ

ƽțƿ

ƾ

ƾțƿ

ƿ

ƺ ƺțƿ ƻ ƻțƿ Ƽ Ƽțƿ ƽ ƽțƿ ƾ ƾțƿ ƿ ƿțƿ ǀ ǀțƿ

ș &°�Â� D°É°ÈðÈ D�ā°ÈðÈ D��É ^ë����û°�ë°ÐÉ u�ß°�É�� �ÐðÉë

ƻ D��°��°��^�ßû°��ã��ÐÉã�Þð�É��ã ƻțƺƺ ǃțƺƺ ǀțƾǁ Ƽțƻǀ ƾțǀƿ ƻƿ

^Ðü°É¨�ßÐüã�ƻ�ȭ�ƻƺ�Ð§�ƻƺ

ș &°�Â�
�Ð°��
�ÐðÉë

ƻ ƻ ǀțǀǁɟ ƻ

Ƽ ƻțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƽ Ƽ ǀțǀǁɟ ƻ

ƾ Ƽțƿ ƺțƺƺɟ ƺ

ƿ ƽ ƻƽțƽƽɟ Ƽ

ǀ ƽțƿ ǀțǀǁɟ ƻ

ǁ ƾ ƾƺțƺƺɟ ǀ

ǂ ƾțƿ ǀțǀǁɟ ƻ

ǃ ƿ Ƽƺțƺƺɟ ƽ

ƻƿ





4�����0HGLFDLG�6HUYLFHV�&RPPHQWV

D��°��°��^�ßû°��ã��ÐÈÈ�Éëã

�ü�ß�É�ãã�Ð§�Þð�Â°Ď��ë°ÐÉ��É��ã�ßû°����û�°Â��°Â°ëĂ

/É�ß��ã°É¨��ü�ß�É�ãã�°É�ë��ßðß�Â�Ð§�È��°��°��ã�ßû°��ã�°ã��ßð�°�Â

v���û��È����°ÈÜßÐû�È�Éëã��Âß���Ă��Ă�ã°¨É°É¨�É�ü��ÐÉëß��ëã�ü°ë�DeD��É��^Ð¿ß°��

�°¨�°ããð�ã�§Ðß�ã�É°ÐßãȖ

v°Â��/�§��Â�ë°ã�°ã�û�ßĂ�°ÈÜÐßë�Éë�ë��ã�ßû°���°ã�°É�ÜÂ�����Âß���Ă

É�

DÐß��§ß�Þð�Éë��û�É�ëüÐ�ëß°Üã�����Ă�°É�ë��ßðß�Âț

Éȡ�

Eȡ�



4�����)LUVW�$GGHG�,PSDFW

&°ßãë�������/ÈÜ��ë

,�û��ÈÐß���°Â°É¨ð�Â��ß°û�ßã��û�°Â��Â�Ȕ��ãÜ��°�ÂÂĂ�°É�ßðß�Â��ß��ã

�ÐëëÐÈ�>°É�ȓ�>Ð��Â�¨Ðû�ßÉÈ�Éë�Â�ÐČ�°�Âã�ÂÐÐ¿��ë�ëß�Éã°ë��ã���ü�Â§�ß��ÜßÐ¨ß�ÈȔ�ÉÐë���û°ë�Â��Â�È�ÉëȔ��É��É���ãã�ßĂ��Â�È�ÉëȔ�Ð§��ÉĂ��ÐÈÈðÉ°ëĂț��ã��
ß�ãðÂëȔ�ë�Ă�Üðë�°É�ÐÉÂĂ�ë����ß��È°É°ÈðÈ�ë�ë�ë�Ă���Éț�e�°ß�È°É��ã�ë�°ã�ÈÐãë�Ü�ÐÜÂ��ÐÉ�ëß�Éã°ë�ãÐðÂ��Þð°ë���°É¨���§ß��ȭÂÐ��°É¨��ðß��É�ÐÉ��ß�ȭ
üÐß¿°É¨�ë�āÜ�Ă�ßãț�'�ë���¼Ð���É��¨�ë�����ßȖ

�ÐÉÉ��ë°û°ëĂ�ëßð��ü�ß�É�ãã��É��Ü�ßë�ƿ

ƻȩ�Ððë�Ð§��°ëĂ�ëß�Éã°ëȭ�/ÈÜ��ëȓ�ƾ

�ÜÜëã�ëÐ�°É�Âð����ÂãÐ�ÉÐÉȭÈ��°��Â�ëß�ÉãÜÐßë�ë°ÐÉ�ƿ

Éȡ�

�ü�ß�É�ãã�°É�ÂÐü�°É�ÐÈ��É�°¨�ÐßÐÐ�ãȭ°É�ãÜ�É°ã��ë���ÜÂ����ë�Ă�§��Â��ÐÈ§Ðßë��Â��Ȩ�ðß�ȡ�ÐÈÈðÉ°ëĂ���Éë�ßȩ�ƿ

>Ðü��Ðãë�ß°��ã



4�����)LUVW�$GGHG�&RQVHTXHQFH

&°ßãë��������ÐÉã�Þð�É��

�ÐÉÉ��ë°û°ëĂ�ëßð��ü�ß�É�ãã��É��Ü�ßë�ƾ

ƻȩ�Ððë�Ð§��°ëĂ�ëß�Éã°ëȭ��ÐÉã�Þð�É��ȓ�ƾ

Éȡ�

�ü�ß�É�ãã�°É�ÂÐü�°É�ÐÈ��É�°¨�ÐßÐÐ�ãȭ°É�ãÜ�É°ã��ë���ÜÂ����ë�Ă�§��Â��ÐÈ§Ðßë��Â��Ȩ�ðß�ȡ�ÐÈÈðÉ°ëĂ���Éë�ßȩ�ƿ

>Ðü��Ðãë�ß°��ã�ƽ



4�����)LUVW�$GGHG�&RPPHQW

&°ßãë��������ÐÈÈ�Éë

�°¨�ãÜß°É¨Ȕ���Â�ß°ÐȔ���°Â�É�

Éȡ�



4�����6HFRQG�$GGHG�,PSDFW

^��ÐÉ��������/ÈÜ��ë

WÐÐß��É���Â��ßÂĂ�ƿ

É�

EÐë°���Â���ðã�°��Éë°Ď��ë°ÐÉ�ƿ

Éȡ�

&ß���ß°��ã�§Ðß�ÐÈ�Â�ããȡüÐ���Éȟë��ċÐß�



4�����6HFRQG�$GGHG�&RQVHTXHQFH

^��ÐÉ���������ÐÉã�Þð�É��

WÐÐß��É���Â��ßÂĂ�ƿ

É�

Éȡ�

&ß���ß°��ã�§Ðß�ÐÈ�Â�ããȡüÐ���Éȟë��ċÐß��ƿ



4�����6HFRQG�$GGHG�&RPPHQW

^��ÐÉ���������ÐÈÈ�Éë

É�

Éȡ�

Eȡ�



4�����7KLUG�$GGHG�,PSDFW

e°ß��������/ÈÜ��ë

^�É°Ðßã�����ãã��É���ü�ß�É�ãã�ƿ

É�

Éȡ�



4�����7KLUG�$GGHG�&RQVHTXHQFH

e°ß���������ÐÉã�Þð�É��

^�É°Ðßã�����ãã��É���ü�ß�É�ãã�ƿ

É�

Éȡ�



4�����7KLUG�$GGHG�&RPPHQW

�É��Ð§�Z�ÜÐßë

e°ß���������ÐÈÈ�Éë

É�

Éȡ�



 

48 
 

Appendix F: Stakeholder Signature Approval and Plan Adoption 

 

 

 




	NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING CVT MAY
	Minutes for CVT April 13 Meeting
	CVTD Mar 2022 Checks in excess of 2000
	CVTD March 2022 Financials
	CVTD Schedule of Revenue by Source Mar 2022
	CVTD Grant Detail  Mar 2022
	memos
	Coord-plan-2021 v12 APPROVED

	undefined: 
	Judge Steve Floyd Chairman: 
	Councilman Harry Thomas ViceChair: 
	Name: 
	21669621: 
	000: 
	6202: 
	2893367: 
	undefined_2: 
	23053027: 
	57839686: 
	025: 
	27155506: 
	000_2: 
	662870: 
	59100: 
	523071: 
	FTA 202110001 Y446 14106700: 
	Total 15311900: 
	Total 54088800: 
	1995300: 
	6058000: 
	Total 10863280: 
	1398800: 
	l89990: 
	l: 
	Total 35000: 
	Total 314133: 
	Total 683468: 
	237750: 
	Total 10200: 
	Total 14600: 
	1540000: 
	Total 198000: 
	ooo: 
	000_3: 
	000_4: 
	000_5: 
	ooo_2: 
	000_6: 
	000_7: 
	000_8: 
	undefined_3: 
	882551: 
	58140: 
	000_9: 
	undefined_4: 
	000_10: 
	000_11: 
	000_12: 
	000_13: 
	undefined_5: 
	ooo_3: 
	49444: 
	000_14: 
	000_15: 
	JIJ00: 
	000_16: 
	000_17: 
	000_18: 
	000_19: 
	ooo_4: 
	000_20: 
	undefined_6: 
	000_21: 
	000_22: 
	000_23: 
	000_24: 
	000_25: 
	000_26: 
	000_27: 
	000_28: 
	undefined_7: 
	000_29: 
	undefined_8: 
	ooo_5: 
	undefined_9: 
	ooo_6: 
	6584023: 
	000_30: 
	undefined_10: 
	000_31: 
	6584023_2: 
	Total Amount owed to CVCOG 40560813: 
	17590827: 
	97c47333: 
	8336949: 
	Grand Total Deferred AMR Revenue 1410384: 
	201000: 
	Total Government Funding: 
	20569500: 
	23210700: 
	31545500: 
	13543100: 
	21702100: 
	10603800: 
	14467500: 
	135642200: 
	98807800: 
	349044800: 
	114594800: 
	Total Urban ExcessShortage: 
	2175927: 
	3014768: 
	2895985: 
	36633: 
	9000: 
	7112821: 
	1019492: 
	undefined_11: 
	Total Government Funding_2: 
	13057800: 
	11798600: 
	16298200: 
	15148400: 
	18895900: 
	9781200: 
	9806500: 
	94946300: 
	73278600: 
	232344400: 
	65105400: 
	Total Rural ExcessShortage: 
	120087: 
	14102: 
	1240544: 
	984917: 
	251123: 
	154657: 
	undefined_12: 
	Chairman  Judge Steve Floyd: 
	Vicechairman Councilman Harry Thomas: 
	Chairman  Judge Steve Floyd_2: 
	Vicechairman Councilman Harry Thomas_2: 
	Chairman  Judge Steve Floyd_3: 
	Vicechairman Councilman Harry Thomas_3: 
	Name_2: 
	Jeff York: 
	Concho Valley Transit District: 
	Jeffyorkcvcogorg: 
	Jaylon Seales: 
	Concho Valley Transit District_2: 
	Concho Valley Transit District_3: 
	Mark Bethune: 
	CV Community Action Agency: 
	mbethunecvcaaorg: 
	CV Economic Development: 
	Dusty McCoy: 
	dustymwtcgus: 
	Betty Teston: 
	Texas Hunger Initiative: 
	Pete Madrid: 
	Lisette Alverio: 
	Workforce Solutions: 
	Matt Groth: 
	Teresa Covey: 
	West Texas RSVP: 
	Toni Roberts: 
	Area Agency on Aging: 
	DuCar LLC: 
	Citizen: 
	rlportermsncom: 
	MHMR: 
	City of Sonora: 
	TxDOT: 
	Economic Development: 
	County: 
	Coke: 
	Concho: 
	Crockett: 
	Irion: 
	Kimble: 
	McCulloch: 
	Menard: 
	Reagan: 
	Schleicher: 
	Sterling: 
	Sutton: 
	Tom Green: 
	Age Groups: 
	Percent: 
	Under age 18: 
	18 to 64: 
	65 and older: 
	Hispanic: 
	Other: 
	Workers: 
	Number: 
	Percent_2: 
	Workers using public transit: 
	Employed Workers: 
	Households with no vehicle: 
	Low access households: 
	Total Households: 
	Poverty Status: 
	Number_2: 
	Percent_3: 
	Below twice poverty level: 
	Below poverty level: 
	Under 50 poverty level: 
	Total Population: 
	Health Insurance Status: 
	Number_3: 
	Percent_4: 
	Medicaid: 
	Veterans Administration: 
	No Health Insurance: 
	Total Population_2: 
	Seniors: 
	Number_4: 
	Percent_5: 
	Age 65 and Older: 
	Total Population_3: 
	Disability Status: 
	Number_5: 
	Percent_6: 
	People with a Disability: 
	Total Population_4: 
	Children: 
	Number_6: 
	Percent_7: 
	Under age 18_2: 
	Total Population_5: 
	Proficiency Status: 
	Percent_8: 
	Limited English Proficient: 
	Total Households_2: 
	Source US Census Bureau America Community Survey 20152019 5 Year sample estimates: 
	County_2: 
	Worker Utilization: 
	Medicaid_2: 
	Veterans: 
	No Health Insurance_2: 
	Seniors_2: 
	Disability: 
	Coke_2: 
	Concho_2: 
	Crockett_2: 
	Irion_2: 
	Kimble_2: 
	Menard_2: 
	Reagan_2: 
	Sterling_2: 
	Sutton_2: 
	Texas: 
	County_3: 
	Worker Utilization_2: 
	Medicaid_3: 
	Veterans_2: 
	No Health Insurance_3: 
	Seniors_3: 
	Disability_2: 
	Coke_3: 
	Concho_3: 
	Crockett_3: 
	Irion_3: 
	Kimble_3: 
	McCulloch_2: 
	Reagan_3: 
	Schleicher_2: 
	Sutton_3: 
	Tom Green_2: 
	Question: 
	Very Important: 
	Slightly Important: 
	Neutral: 
	Fairly Important: 
	Not Important: 
	No Opinion: 
	Total: 
	6038: 
	32: 
	1321: 
	7: 
	1509: 
	8: 
	189: 
	1: 
	566: 
	3: 
	377: 
	2: 
	53: 
	More frequent service: 
	5577: 
	29: 
	1731: 
	9: 
	1731_2: 
	9_2: 
	192: 
	1_2: 
	769: 
	4: 
	000_32: 
	0: 
	52: 
	Better ontime performance: 
	962: 
	5: 
	2115: 
	11: 
	5192: 
	27: 
	192_2: 
	1_3: 
	1538: 
	8_2: 
	000_33: 
	0_2: 
	52_2: 
	1731_3: 
	9_3: 
	577: 
	3_2: 
	3269: 
	17: 
	577_2: 
	3269_2: 
	17_2: 
	577_3: 
	52_3: 
	4615: 
	24: 
	1154: 
	6: 
	2500: 
	13: 
	769_2: 
	4_2: 
	385: 
	2_2: 
	577_4: 
	3_3: 
	52_4: 
	3462: 
	18: 
	1538_2: 
	8_3: 
	3462_2: 
	18_2: 
	577_5: 
	3_4: 
	769_3: 
	4_3: 
	192_3: 
	1_4: 
	52_5: 
	3654: 
	19: 
	1731_4: 
	9_4: 
	2885: 
	15: 
	000_34: 
	0_3: 
	1346: 
	7_2: 
	385_2: 
	2_3: 
	52_6: 
	Need: 
	Rating A: 
	Percent providing majority rating B: 
	Combined Priority rating AxB: 
	Quality of ride: 
	4_4: 
	4348: 
	17392: 
	Awareness: 
	3_5: 
	4783: 
	14349: 
	Capacity: 
	3_6: 
	4348_2: 
	13044: 
	Appointments: 
	3_7: 
	3913: 
	11739: 
	Disabilities: 
	3_8: 
	3913_2: 
	11739_2: 
	Medicaid Service: 
	3_9: 
	3913_3: 
	11739_3: 
	Scheduling: 
	3_10: 
	3478: 
	10434: 
	Accessibility: 
	3_11: 
	3478_2: 
	10434_2: 
	Seniors_4: 
	3_12: 
	3478_3: 
	10434_3: 
	Low Vehicle Access: 
	3_13: 
	3478_4: 
	10434_4: 
	Veterans_3: 
	3_14: 
	3478_5: 
	10434_5: 
	Uninsured: 
	3_15: 
	3478_6: 
	10434_6: 
	Worker Utilization_3: 
	3_16: 
	3478_7: 
	10434_7: 
	Low income: 
	25: 
	3182: 
	07955: 
	Pricing: 
	1_5: 
	3043: 
	03043: 
	County_4: 
	Worker Utilization_4: 
	Vehicle Access: 
	Medicaid_4: 
	Veterans_4: 
	Seniors_5: 
	Disability_3: 
	Weight: 
	322: 
	358: 
	372: 
	353: 
	38: 
	42: 
	423: 
	44: 
	Coke_4: 
	16: 
	14: 
	4_5: 
	18_3: 
	11_2: 
	17_3: 
	21: 
	22: 
	Concho_4: 
	16_2: 
	11_3: 
	4_6: 
	18_4: 
	11_4: 
	17_4: 
	21_2: 
	13_2: 
	Crockett_4: 
	16_3: 
	7_3: 
	7_4: 
	14_2: 
	19_2: 
	13_3: 
	17_5: 
	9_5: 
	Irion_4: 
	3_17: 
	4_7: 
	7_5: 
	18_5: 
	11_5: 
	13_4: 
	21_3: 
	18_6: 
	Kimble_4: 
	10: 
	14_3: 
	4_8: 
	18_7: 
	15_2: 
	21_4: 
	21_5: 
	22_2: 
	16_4: 
	7_6: 
	4_9: 
	18_8: 
	15_3: 
	21_6: 
	21_7: 
	22_3: 
	Menard_3: 
	16_5: 
	11_6: 
	4_10: 
	18_9: 
	19_3: 
	17_6: 
	21_8: 
	22_4: 
	Reagan_4: 
	16_6: 
	14_4: 
	4_11: 
	11_7: 
	19_4: 
	13_5: 
	8_4: 
	9_6: 
	6_2: 
	7_7: 
	4_12: 
	7_8: 
	19_5: 
	13_6: 
	21_9: 
	13_7: 
	Sterling_3: 
	16_7: 
	4_13: 
	4_14: 
	11_8: 
	19_6: 
	17_7: 
	13_8: 
	18_10: 
	Sutton_4: 
	16_8: 
	14_5: 
	4_15: 
	18_11: 
	15_4: 
	13_9: 
	21_10: 
	13_10: 
	13_11: 
	11_9: 
	4_16: 
	18_12: 
	11_10: 
	17_8: 
	17_9: 
	18_13: 
	Geography: 
	Percent Operating Costs: 
	Runs: 
	Revenue Miles: 
	Revenue Hours: 
	Total Riders: 
	Total Riders  Medicaid: 
	Riders Per Run: 
	Coke_5: 
	77: 
	14045: 
	6087: 
	521: 
	67: 
	389: 
	Concho_5: 
	101: 
	18412: 
	8920: 
	597: 
	116: 
	737: 
	57: 
	6119: 
	495: 
	0_4: 
	356: 
	Irion_5: 
	11_11: 
	1904: 
	880: 
	131: 
	0_5: 
	312: 
	Kimble_5: 
	06: 
	1116: 
	776: 
	142: 
	15_5: 
	384: 
	114: 
	20757: 
	111: 
	761: 
	Menard_4: 
	10_2: 
	1897: 
	712: 
	63: 
	7_9: 
	150: 
	Reagan_5: 
	24_2: 
	9708: 
	4193: 
	350: 
	0_6: 
	438: 
	48: 
	8656: 
	4571: 
	374: 
	47: 
	603: 
	Sterling_4: 
	30: 
	54127: 
	2846: 
	140: 
	0_7: 
	203: 
	Sutton_5: 
	39: 
	7008: 
	3325: 
	235: 
	0_8: 
	154: 
	Tom Green_3: 
	453: 
	167: 
	82419: 
	45946: 
	1206: 
	80: 
	722: 
	County_5: 
	Worker UtilizationCoke: 
	Vehicle AccessCoke: 
	MedicaidCoke: 
	VeteransCoke: 
	No Health InsuranceCoke: 
	Under Twice PovertyCoke: 
	SeniorsCoke: 
	DisabilityCoke: 
	Worker UtilizationConcho: 
	Vehicle AccessConcho: 
	MedicaidConcho: 
	VeteransConcho: 
	No Health InsuranceConcho: 
	Under Twice PovertyConcho: 
	SeniorsConcho: 
	DisabilityConcho: 
	Worker UtilizationCrockett: 
	MedicaidU: 
	VeteransU: 
	No Health InsuranceU: 
	Under Twice PovertyU: 
	SeniorsU: 
	DisabilityU: 
	Worker UtilizationIrion: 
	UIrion: 
	No Health InsuranceU_2: 
	Under Twice PovertyU_2: 
	Worker UtilizationKimble: 
	UU: 
	UU_2: 
	No Health InsuranceU_3: 
	Worker UtilizationMcCulloch: 
	UMcCulloch: 
	UMcCulloch_2: 
	UMcCulloch_3: 
	No Health InsuranceMcCulloch: 
	UMcCulloch_4: 
	UMcCulloch_5: 
	UMcCulloch_6: 
	Menard_5: 
	UU_3: 
	Reagan_6: 
	UU_4: 
	UU_5: 
	UU_6: 
	UU_7: 
	UU_8: 
	USchleicher: 
	USchleicher_2: 
	USchleicher_3: 
	USchleicher_4: 
	USchleicher_5: 
	USchleicher_6: 
	USchleicher_7: 
	Sterling_5: 
	UU_9: 
	UU_10: 
	UU_11: 
	UU_12: 
	Sutton_6: 
	UU_13: 
	UU_14: 
	UU_15: 
	UU_16: 
	UU_17: 
	UTom Green: 
	UTom Green_2: 
	UTom Green_3: 
	UTom Green_4: 
	UTom Green_5: 
	UTom Green_6: 
	UTom Green_7: 
	UTom Green_8: 
	County_6: 
	Coke_6: 
	Concho_6: 
	Irion_6: 
	Kimble_6: 
	Menard_6: 
	Reagan_7: 
	Sterling_6: 
	Sutton_7: 
	Worker utilization: 
	Vehicle access: 
	Medicaid_5: 
	Veterans_5: 
	Uninsured_2: 
	Low income_2: 
	Seniors_6: 
	Disability_4: 
	Status: 
	Description: 
	Priority: 
	Pilot New Fixed Routes: 
	Ongoing: 
	Intercity Bus Service: 
	Proposed: 
	Passenger Amenities: 
	Proposed_2: 
	Branding and Marketing: 
	rural passengers indicated Safer environment at stops and shelters as very important in the survey: 
	Ongoing_2: 
	High Priority  the RCPC identified awareness as a priority necessary for increasing the patronage of the CVTD services: 
	Advertising: 
	Ongoing_3: 
	High Priority  the RCPC identified awareness as a priority necessary for increasing the patronage of the CVTD services_2: 
	Comprehensive SystemWide Transportation Study: 
	Proposed_3: 
	Ride Quality: 
	High Priority  the RCPC identified scheduling as a priority necessary for improving the services of the CVTD: 
	Proposed_4: 
	Create partnerships with TxDOT and City Engineer to utilize transit drivers to help identify routes with poor pavement quality that severely impacts rides: 
	Quality Assurance Plan: 
	Ongoing_4: 
	High priority: 
	Centralized Dispatch: 
	Ongoing_5: 
	High Priority  the RCPC identified scheduling as a priority necessary for improving the services of the CVTD_2: 
	Inhouse Maintenance: 
	Planning phase: 
	High priority_2: 
	State of Good Repair: 
	Ongoing_6: 
	High priority_3: 
	Name_3: 
	Affiliation: 
	Signature: 
	Return to Agenda: Off


